
Cabinet

Date Wednesday 17 October 2018
Time 10.00 am
Venue Committee Room 2 - County Hall, Durham

Business

Part A

Items during which the press and public are welcome to attend - 
members of the public can ask questions with the Chairman's 

agreement

1. Public Questions  
2. Minutes of the meeting held on Wednesday 12 September 2018  

(Pages 3 - 6)
3. Declarations of interest  
Key Decision:

4. Mainstream Primary and Secondary Formula Funding 2019-20 and 
Transfer to High Needs Block - Joint Report of Corporate Director of 
Children and Young People's Services and Corporate Director of 
Resources [Key Decision: CORP/R/18/06]  (Pages 7 - 54)

Ordinary Decisions:

5. Durham History Centre Update - Report of Director of Transformation 
and Partnerships  (Pages 55 - 68)

6. County Durham Partnership Update - Report of Director of 
Transformation and Partnerships  (Pages 69 - 86)

7. Council Activity Update - Report of Director of Transformation and 
Partnerships  (Pages 87 - 102)

8. Draft Children and Young People's Strategy - Joint Report of Corporate 
Director of Children and Young People's Services and Director of 
Transformation and Partnerships  (Pages 103 - 134)

9. Selective Licensing in County Durham - Report of Corporate Director of 
Regeneration and Local Services  (Pages 135 - 152)

10. Director of Public Health Annual Report - Joint Report of Corporate 
Director of Adult and Health Services and Director of Public Health, 
County Durham  (Pages 153 - 176)

11. Such other business as, in the opinion of the Chairman of the meeting, 
is of sufficient urgency to warrant consideration.  



12. Any resolution relating to the exclusion of the public during the 
discussion of items containing exempt information.  

Part B

Items during which it is considered the meeting will not be open to the 
public (consideration of exempt or confidential information)

13. Such other business as, in the opinion of the Chairman of the meeting, 
is of sufficient urgency to warrant consideration.  

Helen Lynch
Head of Legal and Democratic Services

County Hall
Durham
9 October 2018

To: The Members of the Cabinet

Councillors S Henig and A Napier (Leader and Deputy Leader of the 
Council) together with Councillors J Allen, J Brown, O Gunn, 
L Hovvels, O Johnson, C Marshall, K Shaw and B Stephens

Contact: Ros Layfield Tel: 03000 269708



DURHAM COUNTY COUNCIL

At a Meeting of Cabinet held in Committee Room 2, County Hall, Durham, on 
Wednesday 12 September 2018 at 10.00 am

Present:

Councillor S Henig (Leader of the Council) in the Chair 

Cabinet Members:
Councillors J Allen, J Brown, O Gunn, L Hovvels, O Johnson, C Marshall, A Napier, 
K Shaw and B Stephens  

Also Present:
Councillors D Bell, J Blakey, R Crute, J Clare, A Hopgood, J Shuttleworth, A Surtees
 
1 Public Questions 

A written response would be made to a question received from a member of the 
public who could not be present at the meeting about the western and northern 
relief roads.

2 Minutes 

The minutes of the meeting held on 11 July 2018 were confirmed as a correct 
record and signed by the Chairman. 

3 Declarations of interest 

There were no declarations made.

4 Delivery Proposals for Aykley Heads Strategic Employment Site                 
[Key Decision: REAL/06/18] 

The Cabinet considered a joint report of the Corporate Director of Regeneration 
and Local Services and the Corporate Director of Resources which considered the 
next steps in delivering the Aykley Heads Strategic Employment site in order to 
ensure the proposed 6,000 jobs are secured for the benefit of County Durham’s 
economy.  The report also proposed a strategy for the development of the site in a 
flexible manner, enabling a responsive approach to opportunities and changes 
within the marketplace (for copy see file of minutes). 

Councillor Marshall responded to questions from Councillors Shuttleworth and 
Hopgood about the use of consultants, accommodation of the increase in traffic and 
parking demands, and traffic solutions.  

Cabinet members spoke about the redevelopment of the site being a real 
opportunity to provide a better future for those in county durham and the region by 
providing for the continuation of attracting new private sector businesses, give the 
area an economic boost and providing the employment opportunities for its future 
generations.
 

Page 3

Agenda Item 2



Resolved:

That the recommendations contained in the report be approved.

5 Annual Reports 2017/18 – Health and Wellbeing Board and Local 
Safeguarding Adults Board  

The Cabinet considered a joint report of the Corporate Director of Adult and Health 
Services, Corporate Director of Children and Young People’s Services, Director of 
Transformation and Partnerships, and Director of Public Health, County Durham  
which presented the Health and Wellbeing Board Annual Report 2017/18 and the 
Safeguarding Adults Board Annual Report (for copy see file of minutes).

Members welcomed the excellent work that was being undertaken in partnership in 
these very important areas.

Resolved:

That the recommendations contained in the report be approved. 

6 Forecast of Revenue and Capital Outturn 2018/19 – Period to 30 June 2018 

The Cabinet considered a report of the Corporate Director of Resources which 
provided information on the following:

(a) forecast revenue and capital outturn for 2018/19;

(b) forecast for the council tax and business rates collection fund position 
at 31 March 2019;

(c) use of earmarked, cash limit and general reserves.

The report also sought approval of the budget adjustments and proposed sums 
outside of the cash limit (for copy see file of minutes).

Members welcomed the comprehensive report, and spoke of the difficulties being 
faced by local authorities through the austerity measures, and that they would 
continue to lobby the government on the pressures being faced particularly in 
relation to the children services funding. 

Resolved:

That the recommendations contained in the report be approved. 

7 Update on the delivery of the Medium Term Financial Plan 8 

The Cabinet considered a report of the Director of Transformation and Partnerships 
which provided an update on the progress made at the end of June 2018 on the 
delivery of the 2018/19 Medium Term Financial Plan (MTFP8) (for copy see file of 
minutes).

Page 4



The Director of Transformation and Partnerships in presenting the report advised 
that the recommendations set out in the report related to MTFP 8 not 7.

Resolved:

That the report be noted. 

8 Quarter One 2018/19 Performance Management Report 

The Cabinet considered a report of the Director of Transformation and Partnerships 
which presented progress towards achieving the key outcomes of the council’s 
corporate performance framework by Altogether priority theme for the first quarter 
of the 2018/19 financial year (for copy see file of minutes).

Resolved:

That the recommendations contained in the report be approved. 

9 Transport Asset Management Plan – Annual Update  

The Cabinet considered a report of the Corporate Director of Regeneration and 
Local Services which provided Cabinet with an annual update on the Transport 
Asset Management Plan (TAMP) (for copy see file of minutes). 

Resolved:

That the recommendations contained in the report be approved. 

10 Update on North East Combined Authority  

The Cabinet considered a joint report of the Chief Executive and the Corporate 
Director of Regeneration and Local Services which updated Cabinet on proposals 
to amend the boundary and membership of the North East Combined Authority 
(NECA), to create a new North of Tyne Mayoral Combined Authority and to 
establish a new statutory Joint Transport Committee covering the two combined 
authorities.

In addition, the report sought the endorsement of Cabinet to a decision taken under 
urgency provisions to agree to a Deed of Cooperation between the seven Local 
Authorities and NECA setting out the proposed joint working arrangements in 
relation to transport and the North East LEP (for copy see file of minutes). 

Resolved: 

That the report be noted. 

Page 5



11 Exclusion of the public 

Resolved: 

That under Section 100(A)(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the public be 
excluded from the meeting for the following items of business on the grounds that it 
involves the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in paragraph 3 of 
Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act.

12 Delivery Proposals for Aykley Heads Strategic Employment Site [Key 
Decision: REAL/06/18] 

The Cabinet considered a joint report of the Corporate Director of Regeneration 
and Local Services and the Corporate Director of Resources about delivery 
proposals for Aykley Heads Strategic Employment Site (for copy see file of 
minutes). 

Resolved: 

That the recommendations contained in the report be approved. 

13 Commercial Development Opportunity in the County 

The Cabinet considered a joint report of the Corporate Director of Regeneration 
and Local Services and the Corporate Director of Resources about a Commercial 
Development Opportunity in the County (for copy see file of minutes). 

Resolved: 

That the recommendations contained in the report be approved. 

Page 6



Cabinet 
 
17 October 2018 
 
Mainstream Primary and Secondary 
Formula Funding 2019-20 and Transfer to 
High Needs Block  
 

KEY DECISION: CORP/R/18/06 
 

 

 
 

Report of Corporate Management Team 

Margaret Whellans, Corporate Director of Children and Young 
People’s Services   

John Hewitt, Corporate Director of Resources  

Councillor  Olwyn Gunn, Portfolio Holder for Children and Young 
People’s Services 

Councillor Alan Napier, Portfolio Holder for Finance  

 
Purpose of the Report 

1 To consider the Council’s approach to setting a funding formula for mainstream 
primary and secondary schools for 2019/20, which would apply to maintained 
schools from 1 April 2019 and academies from 1 September 2019.1 

2 The report provides Cabinet with details of the options available in terms of the 
mainstream primary and secondary school funding formula for 2019-20, in light 
of the National Funding Formula announcements made by Government in July 
2018, together with details of the ongoing consultation with individual schools 
and through the Schools Forum across the autumn 2018. 

3 The report also sets out proposals to apply to the Secretary of State for 
Education for permission to transfer funding from the schools block to 
supplement High Needs funding in response to the significant budget pressures 
being experienced in this area. This transfer would impact on the funding 
formula for mainstream primary and secondary schools for 2019/20 and full 
details of the forecast impact on individual schools is included within the report. 

 
Background 

4 The main source of funding for mainstream primary and secondary schools and 
academies is the local schools funding formula.   Each local authority currently 
sets its own formula, within the restrictions imposed by the Department for 
Education (DfE), after consultation with schools and the Schools Forum.  

5 The DfE had previously announced that local formulas would be replaced by 
the National Funding Formula (NFF) from 2020-21, however, in July 2018, the 
DfE announced that this has been postponed and local authorities will continue 
to set local formulas for 2020-21. 

                                                 
1 References in this report to schools should be read to include both maintained schools and academies. 

Page 7

Agenda Item 4



6 The DfE has cited the progress made by local authorities in aligning local 
formulas to the NFF as the main reason for this decision.   The DfE has 
expressed confidence that in the light of the progress made to date, local 
authorities will continue to increase the alignment between local formulas and 
the NFF in 2020-21 without the need for a statutory deadline of convergence in 
that year.    

7 In the DfE’s view, the NFF is fairer to schools than local formulas, because it is 
consistent between local authority areas, but in the short-term it sees local 
formulas as a way to allow a smoother transition from local formulas to the 
NFF.   The argument for this is presumably that each local authority is best 
placed to determine the appropriate transition to the NFF from its local formula. 

8 Members will recall that in setting the funding formula for mainstream primary 
and secondary schools for the current financial year, the Council took the 
decision to use a transitional formula, intended to smooth the transition from the 
local formula in place in 2017/18 to the NFF allocations for individual schools 
over three years (2018/19 to 2020/21), with the plan to converge in 2020/21. 
The strategy agreed last year would see continuing the transition in 2019-20, 
which would have been the last year a local formula would have needed to be 
set if the replacement of local formulas had not been delayed. 

 
Mainstream School Funding 

9 Funding for the mainstream primary and secondary schools formula is provided 
through the Dedicated Schools Grant (DGS). 

10 Until 2013-14 this funding was provided as a single allocation and local 
authorities had significant freedom as to how this was used, with the caveat 
that it was ring-fenced for spending on schools / education. 

11 Since 2013-14, the DSG has been split into different funding blocks, Early 
Years, Schools and High Needs (for SEND) and from 2018-19 a Central School 
Services Block (CSSB) - the latter includes funding formerly included in the 
Schools Block and Education Services Grant.   From 2013/14 there were also 
changes to how SEND is funded, which affected the amounts provided through 
formula funding. 

12 The allocations for academies, as determined by the local formula, is recouped 
from the overall DSG allocations for the local authority area and paid direct to 
academies in County Durham. The remaining DSG is paid to the Council, who 
then distributes (delegates) the funding received to individual maintained 
schools in line with their formula funding allocations. 

13 Mainstream schools and academies also receive funding for High Needs 
Special Educational Needs (SEN) pupils, early years, (where primary schools 
have nursery units), post-16 funding and also the Pupil Premium, which in the 
current year is worth circa £20 million. 

14 Since 2013-14, local discretion over the local funding formulae has been 
significantly restricted, with local decision making limited to the application of a 
relatively small number of permissible formula factors, most of which are 
pupil-led, (i.e. an amount per eligible pupil), with the rest being either school-
led, (i.e. an amount per school), or relating to specific premises related costs, 
for example rates).   There is still, however, significant variation between local 

Page 8



authorities in terms of the proportions of funding allocated to different factors 
within the formula. 

15 Local authorities must consult Schools Forums and schools about their local 
formula before deciding on the final version.   The final version of the formula is 
determined in early January, by adjusting the agreed formula to take account of 
the actual amount of funding received and updated pupil numbers and data for 
schools, including the proportions of pupils deemed to have additional needs, 
for example, because of deprivation.  

16 Between 2013-14 and 2017-18, the local schools funding formula in Durham 
did not change significantly from year-to-year in respect of either the formula 
factors or the proportions allocated to each factor and in general there was little 
appetite by either schools or the Council to make significant changes to the 
formula. This was a conscious decision to try and restrict turbulence within the 
schools funding regime in Durham.  One exception was in respect of the 
primary lump sum, which was reduced over the two years 2016-17 and 
2017-18, with the funding released being used to increase the allocation of 
pupil-led funding for secondary schools. 

17 For 2018-19, the Council decided to begin to make changes to the formula, to 
reduce differences between the local formula used in previous years and the 
NFF, with the intention of smoothing the transition to the NFF over the 
remaining two years of the local formula.   That decision does not preclude the 
Council making a different decision for 2019-20, and now that the statutory 
implementation of the NFF has been delayed, for 2020/21 as well. 

 
Government Funding for Schools 

18 The trade union led School Cuts campaign (a coalition of unions: NEU, NAHT, 
ASCL, UNISON, GMB and Unite) has sought to highlight the impact of levels of 
funding for schools not increasing in line with inflation and pay awards. The 
Council is sympathetic to the key message of the campaign, that funding has 
not increased in line with increasing costs: 

 Increases in contributions to teachers’ pensions (a 17% increase in costs, 

effective from September 2015); 

 Increases in National Insurance Contributions with effect from 1 April 

2016, which are estimated to have added around £2.5m to schools’ 

payroll costs in the first financial year; 

 The apprentice levy, introduced in April 2017, which increased costs by an 

amount equivalent to 0.5% of the pay bill – as much as an additional £1m 

per year; 

 General inflationary pressures linked to utilities and other unavoidable 

operating costs; 

 Reductions in capital funding available for basic need, capitalised 

maintenance and maintenance backlogs. 

19 In terms of real terms cut to schools funding it is possible to extrapolate what 
additional DSG would have been received in 2018/19 if funding per pupil across 
the period 2011 to 2018 had kept pace with either RPI or CPI inflationary 
increases.  

Page 9



20 This shows that if either RPI or CPI indices had been used to determine funding 

levels per pupil, the amount available for the mainstream school funding 

formula for the current financial year would be circa 15% higher than the actual 

amount received.   For Durham this is equivalent to circa £46 million, or around 

£120,000 per primary school and £600,000 per secondary school.    

 
Funding for 2019-20 

21 The majority of funding for individual schools is provided through the 

mainstream primary and secondary schools funding formula. This report 

focuses on this funding stream. 

22 DSG funding for this formula is provided as an amount per primary and 
secondary pupil. 

23 The amounts per pupil are set each year by central government and are 
calculated using notional NFF allocations to each school using pupil numbers 
from the previous financial year. 

24 For 2019-20 the amounts per pupil allocated to Durham have increased 
compared to 2018-19 as set out in the table below: 

DSG amounts 
per pupil (£)  

 Primary   Secondary  

 2019-20   4,227.34   5,253.15  

 2018-19   4,183.61   5,236.06  

 Increase (£)  43.73   17.09  

 Increase (%) 1.045% 0.326% 

 
25 The final funding will be determined by the pupil numbers recorded in the 

October 2018 Schools Census.   Total allocations for 2019-20 using the £/pupil 
amounts and estimated October Census numbers are as follows: 

 

Estimated 
October 

2018 
Pupils 

DSG 
amounts per 

pupil (£) 

Total (£ 
rounded) 

Primary  39,062 4,227.34 165,128,000 

Secondary 25,315 5,253.15 132,983,000 

Total 64,377  298,112,000 

 
26 In addition to this, funding is provided for premises-related costs and growth.   

A further adjustment is that, subject to decisions of the Schools Forum, an 
amount is de-delegated from funding for maintained schools in respect of 
support for looked after children, contingencies for schools in financial difficulty 
and trade union facility time.   The estimated total funding and the funding net 
of de-delegation (decisions not yet taken by the Schools Forum for 2019/20 but 
based on de-delegation decisions taken for 2018/19) is shown below: 

 

Page 10



 £ (rounded) 

£.pupil funding 298,112,000 

Add - Funding for premises 6,665,000 

Add - Funding for growth 397,000 

Estimated total funding for 2019-20 305,173,000 

Less - Estimated de-delegation -582,000 

Estimated funding net of de-delegation 304,591,000 

 
Setting the Local Formula for 2019-20 

27 The final decision about the formula rests with the Council, but it must consult 
schools and the Schools Forum and must apply for permission to transfer 
funding to or from the High Needs Funding Block.    

28 Officers have been working on options for the mainstream primary and 
secondary schools funding formula for a number of months. The timetable for 
decision-making is set out below: 

 Recipient Content 

9,10,13  
July 2018 

Schools Forum 
Working Groups 

 Initial discussions about formula options 
and HNB transfer - prior to announcement 
of delay to replacement of local formulas 

20-21 Sept 2018 
Schools Forum 
Working Groups 

 Options for formula for 2019-20 

 Outline of HNB transfer information and 
impacts on schools formula / individual 
schools 

September 2018 
Extranet 
consultation with 
schools 

 Options for formula for 2019-20 

 Outline of HNB transfer information and 
impacts on schools formula / individual 
schools 

17 Oct 2018 Cabinet 
 Options for formula for 2019-20 

 HNB transfer - decision as to whether to 
apply 

5 November 2018 Schools Forum 
 Options for formula for 2019-20 – will 

include de-delegation decisions 

 Proposals for HNB transfer  

7 November 2018 CYPS O&S Cttee 
 Presentation on options for formula for 

2019-20 & overview of proposals for HNB 
transfer 

30 November 2018 Secretary of State 
 Deadline for submission of application for 

HNB transfer  

5 December 2018 Schools Forum  Update on options for formula 2019-20  

12 December  2018 Cabinet  Decision on formula for 2019-20  

Mid-December 2018 DCC (from DfE) 
 Final funding and data provided for use in 

final local formula 

21 Jan 2019 DfE 
 Submission of final version of formula to 

DfE 

20 February 2019 Council 
 Details of final schools formula reported to 

Council as part of the budget report 

 

Page 11



Options for 2019-20 Formula 

29 A number of options have been identified for the 2019-20 formula.   These are 
described below.   All the options would be affected by a potential transfer of 
funding to High Needs.   This is discussed later in this report, followed by an 
evaluation of the individual options. 

30 The following options have been identified for the formula for 2019-20: 

OPTION 1: Accelerate the pace of change and move to implement the NFF 
as closely as possible from 2019-20 

31 This would involve the use values in the formula as close as possible to the 
indicative NFF values.    

32 The local formula would not replicate the NFF exactly, because, as described, 
funding is based on 2018-19 funding levels and is not updated to take account 
of changes affecting 2019-20, which means that the amount that would be 
allocated using the NFF would not match the funding available. 

33 The NFF also incorporates a funding floor, which guarantees a 1% increase in 
funding compared to a baseline amount per pupil from 2017-18.   This will form 
part of the funding for schools when the NFF replaces local formulas, but at 
present it is not clear that this could actually be applied in Durham without 
significantly distorting the formula.   Further work is underway undertaken to 
clarify this with the DfE.   In the meantime this option has been modelled 
without the baseline adjustment. 

OPTION 2: Continue with the strategy implemented with effect from 
2018/19: a transitional formula which moves schools to a NFF based 
allocation from 2020/21 

34 This would continue the path established in setting the 2018-19 formula, but 
would reduce the differences between that formula and the NFF, with the 
intention of a further reduction in 2020-21, which would eliminate the 
differences and replicate the NFF as far as possible.  (As with the NFF option 
above, it would not be possible to replicate the NFF exactly at this stage due to 
the 1% baseline adjustment). 

35 The table below shows the difference between the local and national formulas 
in each year of the transition years leading up to a NFF equivalent formula in 
2020/21: 

Year 

Difference 
between 

local 
formula 
and NFF 

2017-18 100% 

2018-19 67% 

2019-20 33% 

2020-21 0% 

 

Page 12



OPTION 3: Continue with a transitional formula approach, but at a slower 
rate than currently planned i.e. aim for a NFF equivalent formula from 
2021/22 instead of 2020/21 

36 This would result in a slower pace of change to reduce the differences between 
the current formula and the NFF.  

37 The slower rate would be set to implement a smooth transition from the 
2018-19 transitional formula on the basis that the NFF would be implemented 
from 2021-22. (As with the NFF option above, it would not be possible to 
replicate the NFF exactly at this stage due to the 1% baseline adjustment).   

38 The table below shows the difference between the local and national formulas 
in each year of the transition and the first year in which the NFF replaces local 
formulas: 

Year 

Difference 
between 

local 
formula 
and NFF 

2017-18 100% 

2018-19 67% 

2019-20 45% 

2020-21 22% 

2021-22 0% 

 
OPTION 4: Retain the 2018/19 formula factors and halt the transition to 
the NFF in 2019/20 

39 This would update the 2018-19 formula for changes in funding and data, (pupil 
numbers, pupils eligible for additional needs funding, numbers of schools and 
premises factors), but make no changes to the lump sums or the relative 
allocations between pupil-led factors, which are required to converge with the 
NFF. 

Other Options 

40 The following options have been considered but are not recommended for 
consideration. 

Revert to the 2017-18 Local Formula 

41 This would reverse the changes made in 2018-19.   This is not recommended 
for the following reasons: 

a. The old formula was designed to reduce turbulence at the time of the initial 
funding reforms in 2013-14 and there was no significant consideration, then 
or since, of the rationale for the formula. 

b. The old formula made no provision for sparsity funding for rural schools, 
such as those in Weardale. 

Page 13



c. The pupil-led funding in the old formula was heavily weighted in favour of a 
small number of additional needs factors, which meant that schools could 
lose out if they did not have many pupils eligible for these factors: 

i. There was no Free School Meals - FSM - deprivation factor for primary 
schools; 

ii. For secondary schools, the deprivation factors were heavily weighted in 
respect of current entitlement to Free School Meals, which could create 
significant turbulence in funding from year-to-year; 

iii. For both primary and secondary the allocation to Low Prior Attainment 
was much less than for deprivation factors. 

Make changes to transitional formula 

42 This would mean making choices as to which elements of the NFF to 
implement and the rate at which they were implemented.   For example, 
increasing the speed at which the changes in the relative allocations to 
pupil-led factors are implemented, but delaying further changes to the lump 
sum.    

43 This would increase the differences between the factor values in the local 
formula and the NFF and it is likely to increase turbulence when the NFF 
replaces local formulas. 

Vary the Minimum Funding Guarantee 

44 Local authorities are permitted to increase the MFG from -1.5% to up to 0.5%.   
This is to allow authorities to partly replicate the increases in funding included in 
the overall DSG allocation at national level, which provides for an increase in 
the notional funding per pupil in the DSG calculations of at least 1% from 
2017-18 to 2019-20.   This increases the amounts per pupil used for the DSG 
allocation, but this does not necessarily mean that each school’s allocation 
through the local formula increases. 

45 This would not be an option for Durham’s local formula unless there was no 
transfer to the HNB, because it would lead to a negative ceiling. 

Proposed Transfer to the High Needs Block 

46 The High Needs Block of the DSG funds provision for pupils and students with 
Special Educational Needs, including those in mainstream and special schools 
and out-of-county placements.    
 

47 Funding for High Needs is provided through the High Needs Block (HNB) of the 
DSG.   The HNB funding is determined by a national formula. 

48 Funding has been included in a separate High Needs Block since 2013-14.   
From 2013-14 to 2017-18 the allocation was largely based on historic patterns 
of budget allocation in Durham.   From 2018-19 the HNB is based on a national 
formula, which takes account of special school pupil numbers, historic patterns 
of spending and proxy indicators for additional, including population, 
deprivation, health and disability and low prior educational attainment.   The 

Page 14



2018-19 allocation is £0.6 million more than it would have been had the 
2013-14 allocation been increased in line with inflation. 

49 For 2019-20, Durham’s provisional allocation has increased by 2.84% (£1.42 
million).   The current rate of inflation is around 3.4% and the allocations for 
2019/20 do not address the real terms cuts in schools per pupil funding over 
recent years, where successive allocations have failed to keep track with the 
demographic and inflationary pressures in this area. 

50 Members will recall that in 2017/18 there was an overspend against the DSG 
High Needs Block of £4.652 million. This was the net outturn position and took 
into account an overspend of £5.851 million against budgets for top-up funding 
for mainstream schools and for special schools provision, and an underspend 
of £1.199 million against centrally provided services. In terms of the current 
year, there is a forecast overspend of £5.129 million in these budgets.  

 

51 In 2017/18 the overspend was covered by centrally held DSG Reserves and in 
2018/19 an element of the overspend can be absorbed by the DSG reserves, 
however, there is insufficient DSG reserves to cover this in total and on this 
basis the Council’s DSG reserve will be in deficit by the end of the financial 
year. 

 

52 The pressures on the High Needs block are driven by increasing demand to 
meet the requirement of young people with special education needs and 
disabilities. This is a demand driven volatile area of activity for which the 
authority has a statutory duty to provide.   The key reasons for increasing cost 
pressures in this area are set out below: 

 
(a) Numbers of children and young people with SEND 

There has been a significant increase in the number of children with SEND 
who require high needs support due to: 

 The extension of support to young people up to the age of 
25.    Recent changes mean that local authorities are now supporting 
young people aged 19-25 for which they have received no additional 
funding.  The number of young people with complex needs engaging 
in further education has increased from 166 in 2015 to 833 
currently.   

 Early identification of additional needs, particularly in the early years, 
has also increased the size of the cohort of children who are 
receiving support. EHCP requests for pre-school children increased 
from 90 three years ago to 250 last year.   

(b) Complexity of need 

 
The needs of children with special educational needs and/ or disabilities 
are becoming more complex and this is driving increased financial 
pressures across the system.  Demand for specialist placement is greater 
than the places available, particularly in relation to ASD and SEMH.  This 
is resulting in increased specialist placements with independent providers, 
some of which are located outside of the local area.  Durham and other 

Page 15



authorities are also seeing increased demands for top-up funding across 
all settings. 

 

(c) Inclusiveness of the system 

Many mainstream schools are facing financial pressures, have 
difficulties with capacity to provide additional support and are not always 
able to gain parental preference, especially when planning for complex 
needs or challenging behaviour.  This is driving up the demand for more 
specialist education services, which is legally difficult to contest due to 
the weight given to parental preference.    

In parallel with the SEND pressures there has been an increase in the 
number of students being at risk of or permanently excluded, this has 
significantly increased the number of young people placed in the Pupil 
Referral Unit or in alternative provision.  Pupil Referral Unit numbers 
have almost doubled in the last three years from 58 to 94.   
 

53 Durham is not unique in experiencing these pressures and over the past year 
this has been highlighted across the country by a number of local authorities 
and education leaders.   Recent data published by the County Councils 
Network (CCN) indicates that 22 county councils are projecting an over spend 
in 2018-19.  

54 There is an ongoing review into this area of service delivery, reviewing how the 
needs of these young people are met and routes to secure additional funding 
continue to be explored.  
 

55 However, it is clear that there is a significant shortfall in funding for pupils with 
Special Educational Needs (SEN).  To help alleviate some of these continuing 
pressures in 2019/20 it is proposed to apply to the Secretary of State, DfE to 
transfer funding from the mainstream primary and secondary funding formula to 
the HN block to help address this shortfall. 
 

56 Local authorities can apply for permission to transfer funding from the Schools 
Block of the DSG to the HNB.   Transfers of up to 0.5% of the Schools Block 
must be approved by the Schools Forum.   Transfers in excess of 0.5% must 
be approved by the Secretary of State, DfE.  Any agreement to transfer funding 
between these blocks is reconsidered on an annual basis. Officers in Children 
and Young Peoples Services are preparing the supporting information required 
for an application to the Secretary of State, DfE for a transfer from 2019/20 
onwards. 

57 A transfer of 0.5% would be around £1.5 million, which is less than the amount 
required to offset the significant pressures in the HN DSG block, so it is likely 
that if the recommendation to apply for a transfer is approved by Cabinet, it will 
have to be in excess of the 0.5% threshold and therefore the request will have 
to be made to the Secretary of State, DfE for consideration and approval. 

58 Modelling of options for the mainstream formula indicates that the maximum 
amount that can be transferred is between 1.3 and 1.5%.   The limit on 
transfers is the amount required to fund the Minimum Funding Guarantee 

Page 16



(MFG), which ensures that schools do not see a reduction in funding per pupil 
of more than 1.5% per year.    

59 The amount required for the MFG increases as the amount transferred to the 
HNB increases and more schools come within the scope of the MFG, (i.e. their 
formula funding per pupil is more than 1.5% less than in the previous year). 
This happens because the amounts allocated through the formula reduce as 
the amount transferred increases. 

60 The MFG is funded by imposing a ceiling on increases in funding per pupil for 
other schools, but statutory regulations require that the ceiling cannot be 
negative.   As the amount transferred to the HNB increases, the amount 
required for the MFG increases and this means that the ceiling has to be 
lowered, so that more funding can be recovered.   Eventually the point is 
reached where the ceiling cannot be reduced further.    

61 The table below summarises the position in respect of each of the options 
under consideration, including the maximum transfer with a positive ceiling: 

Option Transfer to HNB 
Transfer to HNB 

Ceiling 
% Value (£) 

OPTION 1: 
Implement the NFF as closely as 
possible from 2019-20 

No transfer -       -    3.729%  

Maximum transfer  1.304%  £3,979,460  0.001%  

OPTION 2: 
Continue with the transitional 
formula to converge in 2020/21 

No transfer -       -    3.887%  

Maximum transfer 1.462%  £4,461,634  0.002%  

OPTION 3: 
Continue with the transitional 
formula, but at a slower rate – 
converge 2021/22 

No transfer -       -    3.717%  

Maximum transfer 1.514%  £4,620,324  0.001%  

OPTION 4: 
Using existing formula, with no 
further transition 

No transfer -       -    3.403%  

Maximum transfer 1.333%  £4,067,960  0.001%  

 
62 The figures including in the modelling at this time are indicative only and will 

change once the final funding and schools data is confirmed in December.    

63 For the purposes of an application for a transfer, Cabinet is being asked to 
support the principle of a transfer and to agree whether to apply for a transfer to 
the maximum permissible amount that would avoid a negative ceiling. 

64 In view of the shortfall in funding, Cabinet is recommended to agree to an 
application for a transfer of funding from the Schools Block of the Dedicated 
Schools Grant of the maximum permissible without a negative ceiling. This in 
itself will not fully address the overspend in the HN block currently being 
experienced or the forecast deficit in the DSG reserve at 31 March 2019.  

Page 17



Comparison of Options 

65 All comparisons included in this report are based on a HNB transfer at the 
maximum permissible amount for each option and are a comparison with net 
formula funding for 2018-19.    

66 Changes in funding are broadly consistent across the options.   Changes in 
funding are mainly driven by changes in pupil numbers and this is the main 
determinant of whether schools see their funding reduce or increase in 2019/20 
when compared to 2018/19. The overall impact on schools is summarised in 
the tables below: 

Impact of 2019-20 formula 
options compared to 2018-19 net 
formula funding - schools with 
reduced funding 

 OPTION1: 
NFF in 
2019/20 

 OPTION2: 
Existing 

Transitional 
formula  

 OPTION3: 
Transitional 

formula 
slower rate  

 OPTION4: 
201819 
formula 
updated  

 Primary  
 No. of schools  127  126  124  126  

 Average reduction (£)  -24,000  -23,000  -23,000  -21,000  

 Secondary  
 No. of schools  10  10  10  9  

 Average reduction (£)  -172,000  -169,000  -166,000  -171,000  
 

Impact of 2019-20 formula options 
compared to 2018-19 net formula 
funding - schools with increased 
funding 

 OPTION1: 
NFF in 
2019/20 

 OPTION2: 
Existing 

Transitional 
formula  

 OPTION3: 
Transitional 

formula 
slower rate  

 OPTION4: 
201819 
formula 
updated 

 Primary  
 No. of schools   88   89   91   89  

 Average increase (£)   24,000   22,000   21,000   21,000  

 Secondary  
 No. of schools   21   21   21   22  

 Average increase (£)   233,000   210,000   202,000   205,000  

 
67 Appendix 2 shows the estimated funding for each option by school and 

compares this to the 2018-19 funding levels currently received.   The change in 
pupil numbers for each school is also provided in this appendix for reference as 
overall reductions in pupil numbers on roll year on year will inevitably result in 
reductions in overall funding regardless of the impact of the changes to the 
formula factors. 

68 The table below summarises the impact of the transfer to the HNB compared to 
formula options with no transfer.   The schools with no change in funding are 
those that qualify for MFG in all options. 

Reduction in funding with the maximum 
transfer of funding to HNB without a 
negative ceiling 

 OPTION1: 
NFF in 
2019/20 

 OPTION2: 
Existing 

Transitional 
formula  

 OPTION3: 
Transitional 

formula 
slower rate  

 OPTION4: 
201819 
formula 
updated 

 Primary  

No. of schools with no change 
in funding 

54  28  22  10  

 No. of schools with reduced 
funding 

161  187  193  205  

 Average reduction (£)  -21,000  -17,000  -16,000  -11,000  

Page 18



Reduction in funding with the maximum 
transfer of funding to HNB without a 
negative ceiling 

 OPTION1: 
NFF in 
2019/20 

 OPTION2: 
Existing 

Transitional 
formula  

 OPTION3: 
Transitional 

formula 
slower rate  

 OPTION4: 
201819 
formula 
updated 

 
Secondary  

No. of schools with no change 
in funding 

19  5  4  -    

 No. of schools with reduced 
funding 

12  26  27  31  

 Average reduction (£)  -54,000  -47,000  -60,000  -61,000  

 
69 Appendix 3 shows the impact of the HNB transfer for each school. 

70 The table below summaries the proportions of funding allocated to each type of 
factor in the formula and Appendix 4 provides the formula values and the 
proportions of funding allocated to each factor for each of the options. 

% allocated through 
formula 2019-20 options 
are with the maximum 
transfer to the HNB  

 2018-19 
formula  

OPTION1: 
NFF in 
2019/20 

 OPTION2: 
Existing 

Transitional 
formula  

 OPTION3: 
Transitional 

formula 
slower rate  

 
OPTION4: 

201819 
formula 
updated 

 Pupil-led factors            

 Basic amount per pupil  70.34%  70.55%  70.33%  70.26%  70.07%  

 Deprivation  11.96%  12.59%  12.26%  12.16%  11.94%  

 English as an Additional  
Language  

0.06%  0.17%  0.11%  0.09%  0.06%  

 Low Prior Attainment  3.49%  5.23%  4.55%  4.33%  3.89%  

 Minimum per-pupil funding  0.01%  0.17%  0.06%  0.01%  0.01%  

 School-led factors            

 Lump Sum  11.90%  8.98%  10.41%  10.89%  11.81%  

 Sparsity  0.04%  0.12%  0.08%  0.07%  0.04%  

 Premises-related factors            

 Rates  1.59%  1.56%  1.56%  1.57%  1.56%  

 Split-site  0.13%  0.11%  0.11%  0.11%  0.11%  

 PFI  0.47%  0.49%  0.49%  0.49%  0.49%  

 Joint-use Leisure  0.02%  0.02%  0.02%  0.02%  0.02%  

 
Evaluation of options 

OPTION 1: Accelerate the pace of change and move to implement the NFF 
as closely as possible from 2019-20 

71 This option would be appropriate if no significant changes are anticipated in the 
NFF in future years or if the NFF was seen as the most appropriate formula for 
schools in Durham or if a shorter transition was preferred. 

72 In respect of the future of the NFF, this will be determined by the outcome of 
the next Spending Review, in 2019 and it would not be prudent to assume that 
there would be no changes to the NFF in the future at this stage. 

Page 19



73 As a formula, the NFF emphasises pupil-led funding, which can be an issue for 
smaller schools, particularly primary schools and this is of concern to the 
Council, because of the number of small primary schools in the County.   There 
are also concerns over the eligibility criteria for sparsity funding based on 
current NFF proposals.    

74 In other respects, the NFF does improve on the old local formula, in respect of 
the broader range of criteria used to determine deprivation funding and the 
increased provision for Low Prior Attainment - which recognises that some 
pupils have not achieved a satisfactory standard earlier in their school 
education and are likely to need additional support in their current school. 

75 There is a view amongst some headteachers that transition periods are 
destabilising for schools and that a short transition allows schools to make 
adjustments to staffing and other expenditure quickly and then move on with 
more certainty about their futures. 

OPTION 2: Continue with the strategy implemented with effect from 
2018/19: a transitional formula which moves schools to a NFF based 
allocation from 2020/21 

76 This option is consistent with the strategic decisions made last year and allows 
flexibility to make changes in following years to take account of any changes in 
the NFF, whilst following the general direction of travel of the NFF in respect of 
increased pupil-led funding and less lump sum funding.   This option also gives 
schools more time to adapt to anticipated changes in future funding. 

77 As noted, there is uncertainty about the future of the NFF, but although it would 
not be prudent to assume that the NFF will not change, it would also not be 
prudent to assume that the underlying policy in respect of increased pupil-led 
funding will not continue, particularly as many local authorities are already 
either using the NFF or transitioning towards it.   When local formulas are 
increasingly aligned to the NFF there is less likelihood of significant changes, 
because of the potential disruption that this would cause. 

78 This option is also consistent with the DfE’s expectation that local authorities 
will manage the transition to the NFF. 

OPTION 3: Continue with a transitional formula approach, but at a slower 
rate than currently planned i.e. aim for a NFF equivalent formula from 
2021/22 instead of 2020/21 

79 This option would further extend the transition period.   This could be seen as 
an advantage through giving schools more time to adapt to anticipated 
changes.   It would also allow more flexibility to make changes to take account 
of changes in the NFF.    

80 Slowing down the rate of transition would however go against the DfE’s 
expectation that local authorities will continue to align local formulas more 
closely with the NFF to smooth the transition to the NFF.   It is not clear what, if 
any, the consequences would be of going against the expectation, particularly if 
Durham was an outlier in this respect.    

OPTION 4: Retain the 2018/19 formula factors and halt the transition to 
the NFF in 2019/20 

Page 20



81 This option would maintain existing differences from the NFF and is likely to 
lead to a shorter transition in the future.   As with the previous option, this would 
go against DfE expectations. 

Equality Impact Assessment 

82 An Equality Impact Assessment screening has been undertaken on the options 
set out in this report and is attached at Appendix 5, which is summarised as 
follows: 

a. There is evidence of actual or potential impact on some/all of the 
protected characteristics and a full Equality Impact Assessment will be 
undertaken on the final proposals and will be included with the Cabinet 
report in December when the final formula is agreed. 

83 A full Equality Impact Assessment will be undertaken on the final proposals and 
will be included with the Cabinet report in December when the final formula is 
agreed. 

Further Consultation 

84 The final decision on the 2019-20 funding formula for mainstream primary and 
secondary schools will need to be made by Cabinet in December, following 
further consultation with schools and the Schools Forum.    

85 In the meantime, Cabinet is recommended to consider the proposals to seek 
permission from the Secretary of State, DfE, to transfer funding from the 
schools block to the HN Block and to consider the options available and provide 
comments on its recommended option, for feedback to the Schools Forum at its 
meeting on 5 November 2018. 

Conclusions 

86 This report considers the Council’s approach to setting a funding formula for 
mainstream primary and secondary schools for 2019/20, which would apply to 
maintained schools from 1 April 2019 and academies from 1 September 2019 

87 The report provides Cabinet with details of the options available in terms of the 
mainstream primary and secondary school funding formula for 2019-20, in light 
of the National Funding Formula announcements made by Government in July 
2018, together with details of the ongoing consultation with individual schools 
and through the Schools Forum across the autumn 2018. 

88 The report proposes that an application is made to the Secretary of State, DfE 
for permission to transfer funding from the schools block to supplement High 
Needs funding in response to the significant budget pressures being 
experienced in this area. Officer from CYPS are preparing the detailed 
business case to support this request, which will need to be submitted to the 
Secretary of State, DfE by 30 November, 2018. 
 

89 This transfer would impact on the funding formula for mainstream primary and 
secondary schools for 2019/20 and full details of the forecast impact on 
individual schools is included within the report and supporting appendices. 

 

Page 21



90 At this stage Cabinet are being asked to support the direction of travel in terms 
seeking to transfer funding to the DSG High Needs Block and to consider the 
options set out in this report in terms of the funding formula for mainstream 
primary and secondary schools for 2019/20. 

 
Recommendations 

91 Cabinet is recommended to: 

(a) Note the indicative financial modelling that has been undertaken to date 
and the timetable for decision-making for the 2019-20 mainstream primary 
and secondary funding formula; 

(b) Authorise the Corporate Director of Resources and Corporate Director of 
Children and Young Peoples Services, in consultation with the relevant 
Cabinet members, to submit an application for a transfer of funding from 
the Schools Block of the Dedicated Schools Grant of the maximum 
permissible, without creating a negative ceiling. 

(c) Consider the options available in terms of the 2019-20 mainstream 
primary and secondary funding formula and to provide comments for 
feedback to the Schools Forum at its meeting on 5 November 2018. 

 

Contact: Paul Darby                        Tel:    03000 261 930 

 

 
 
 

 
  

Page 22



Appendix 1:  Implications 

Finance 

The Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG) is a specific earmarked grant provided by the 
Government which provides the major source of funding for schools and the 
provision of support to them.  It is notionally split into four ‘blocks’: Early Years, High 
Needs Central School Services and Schools.   

All DSG funding must be spent on schools or support to them.   

Starting in 2018-19, funding allocations to each local authority’s Schools Block of the 
DSG are based on notional funding for each school using the National Funding 
Formula, which is determined by the DfE. Individual local authorities use the Schools 
Block funding to set a local formula using the available funding and in accordance 
with funding regulations, which limit the discretion of authorities.   

Local authorities will continue to set local formulas until at least 2020-21.   DfE policy 
is that in the longer term local formulas will be replaced by the NFF, which will 
determine allocations to individual schools. The Government are encouraging local 
authorities to align their local formula with the NFF. 

The NFF puts more funding into pupil-led factors than school-led factors, which could 
create longer-term challenges for smaller schools, because the increase in pupil-led 
funding will be of less benefit to schools with smaller numbers of pupils.   The NFF 
will include minimum funding levels which may reduce the amount that can be 
allocated through factors such as deprivation. 

Estimated funding for 2019-20 is £305.2 million. 

There was an overspend against the DSG High Needs Block of £4.652 million in 
2017/18and in the current year, there is a forecast overspend of £5.129 million in 
these budgets.  

 

In 2017/18 the overspend was covered by centrally held DSG Reserves and in 
2018/19 an element of the overspend can be absorbed by the DSG reserves, 
however, there is insufficient DSG reserves to cover this in total and on this basis the 
Council’s DSG reserve will be in deficit by the end of the financial year. 
 
Staffing 

There are likely to be consequential restructuring and potential redundancies in 
schools where funding is reduced. 

Risk 

The National Funding Formula increases the proportion of funding allocated on pupil 
based factors, by reducing the amounts of funding allocated through schools led 
factors such as lump sums. The NFF also distributes deprivation linked funding 
differently to the current local formula arrangements, with greater proportions of 
funding being distributed on the basis of low Prior Attainment.  Small schools and 
those schools receiving a proportionately higher proportion of deprivation linked 
funding currently distributed via the existing local formula will face a greater financial 
challenge as a result of the move towards a National Funding Formula for schools.  

Page 23



The long-term policy of replacing local formulas with the NFF requires local authorities 
to consider the implications for schools when local formulas are replaced by the NFF.    

There is a risk of significant turbulence for schools if there is a ‘cliff-edge’ change in 
funding when their funding changes to the NFF.      

Equality and Diversity / Public Sector Equality Duty 

An Equality Impact Assessment screening has been undertaken on the options set 
out in this report and is attached at Appendix 5, which is summarised as follows: 

There is evidence of actual or potential impact on some/all of the protected 
characteristics and a full Equality Impact Assessment will be undertaken on the final 
proposals and will be included with the Cabinet report in December when the final 
formula is agreed. 

Accommodation 

None 

Crime and Disorder – none 

None 

Human Rights 

None 

Consultation 

The Council must consult with schools and the Schools Forum.   The latter is a 
statutory consultative body, mainly consisting of representatives of headteachers, 
governors and academy trusts. 

The Schools Forum received a report about these issues in June and initial 
consultation with Schools Forum Working Groups took place in July.   A more 
detailed consultation with working groups took place in September and a 
consultation document was made available to schools through the Schools Extranet.   
Further consultation with schools will take place in November and December at 
scheduled Schools Forum meetings, (5 November and 5 December). 

Procurement  

None 

Disability Issues 

None 

Legal Implications 

Schools are largely funded by Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG) and the amount of 
DSG made available for this purpose is largely based presently on historic 
allocations dating back to the mid-2000s. 

Page 24



The Dedicated Schools Grant is issued by the Department for Education, with the 
terms of grant given governed by section 16 of the Education Act 2002, which states 
that it is a ring-fenced specific grant that must be used in support of the schools 
budget as defined in the School and Early Years Finance (England) Regulations. 

Local authorities are currently responsible for establishing a local formula for 
distributing the funding to individual schools. This is subject to national regulations 
and statutory restrictions established by the Education and Skills Funding Agency. 

Since 2013/14, local discretion over the funding formulae that can be applied has 
been significantly restricted, with local decision making limited to the application of a 
relatively small number of formula factors, most of which are pupil-led, with the rest 
being either school-led or relating to specific premises related costs.    

The funding framework governing schools finance, which replaced Local 
Management of Schools, is based on the legislative provisions in sections 45-53 of 
the School Standards and Framework Act 1998.  Under this legislation, the council is 
required to publish a Scheme of Financing for Schools.   

The scheme sets out the financial relationship between the authority and the 
maintained schools that it funds, including the respective roles and responsibilities of 
the authority and schools. Under the scheme, deficits of expenditure against budget 
share (formula funding and other income due to the school) in any financial year are 
charged against the school and deducted from the following year’s budget share to 
establish the funding available to the school for the coming year. 
 
  

Page 25



Appendix 5:  Durham County Council Equality Impact Assessment 

 
NB: The Public Sector Equality Duty (Equality Act 2010) requires Durham County 
Council to have ‘due regard’ to the need to eliminate unlawful discrimination, 
harassment and victimisation, advance equality of opportunity and foster good 
relations between people from different groups. Assessing impact on equality and 
recording this is one of the key ways in which we can show due regard. 

Section One: Description and Screening 
Service/Team or Section 
 

Financial Services, School Funding Team 

Lead Officer 
 

David Shirer 

Title 
 

Mainstream Primary and Secondary Formula 
Funding 2019-20 and Transfer to High Needs 
Block 

MTFP Reference (if relevant) 
 

 

Cabinet Date (if relevant) 
 

17 October 2018 

Start Date 
 

1 April 2019 

Review Date 
 

 

 
Subject of the Impact Assessment 

Please give a brief description of the policy, proposal or practice as appropriate (a 
copy of the subject can be attached or insert a web-link): 
 

The Council is required to set a formula to distribute funding to mainstream primary 
and secondary schools, including academies and will continue to set a local formula 
for at least the next two years.   Government policy is to replace local formulas set 
by local authorities with the National Funding Formula (NFF).   For 2018-19, the 
Council set a transitional formula, intended to reduce the differences between the 
local formula and the NFF over a three-year period, culminating in 2020-21 when 
the NFF was expected to replace local formulas. 
 
At the end of July 2018, the DfE announced that the replacement of local formulas 
was being delayed and that local authorities would set local formulas for 2020-21.   
The Council is considering options for the local formula for 2019-20 and is consulting 
schools and the Schools Forum during the autumn term, prior to taking a final 
decision in December. 
 
The options under consideration are: 
 

 Option 1: Implement the NFF as closely as possible from 2019-20 
 

 Option 2: Continue with the transitional formula to converge in 2020/21 
 

 Option 3: Continue with the transitional formula, but at a slower rate – 
converge in 2021/22 

 

Page 26



 Option 4: Using existing formula, with no further transition 
 
At the same time, Cabinet will be recommended to approve an application to transfer 
funding from the Schools Block of the Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG), to the High 
Needs Block. 
 
The Schools Block provides the funding for the mainstream primary and secondary 
formula, so a transfer will reduce the amount distributed through the formula. 
 
The High Needs Block provides the funding for provision for pupils and students with 
Special Educational Needs and there is a substantial shortfall in funding for this 
provision. 
 
A national EIA for the NFF is available through the gov.uk website: 
 
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/national-funding-formula-for-schools-
and-high-needs 
 
This is relevant, because the option that is recommended for the formula is the 
transitional option, which is partly based on the NFF. 
 
Transition to the NFF will increase the funding allocated to pupil-led factors and 
reduce the lump sum provided to all schools, which could create longer term 
challenges for smaller schools which is relevant to the County due to its semi-rural 
nature.   Pupil-led factors include factors linked to deprivation, English as an 
Additional Language and Low Prior Attainment.   The transition to the NFF will 
reduce the amount allocated to deprivation, albeit using a wider range of measures, 
and will significantly increase the funding allocated to Low Prior Attainment. 
 

 

Who are the main stakeholders? (e.g. general public, staff, members, specific 
clients/service users): 
 

Pupils, their families and school-based staff.   Also affected are the Council, which 
is responsible for maintaining schools, academy trusts and Roman Catholic and 
Church of England diocese, in respect of voluntary controlled and voluntary aided 
schools. 
 
 
 
 

Screening 

Is there any actual or potential negative or positive impact on the following protected 
characteristics? 
 

Protected Characteristic Negative Impact 
Indicate: Y = Yes, 
N = No, ? = unsure 
 

Positive Impact 
Indicate: Y = Yes, 
N = No, ? = unsure 
 

Age 
 

? N 

Disability 
 

? Y 

Page 27

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/national-funding-formula-for-schools-and-high-needs
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/national-funding-formula-for-schools-and-high-needs


Marriage and civil partnership  
(workplace only) 

N N 

Pregnancy and maternity 
 

N N 

Race (ethnicity) 
 

N ? 

Religion or Belief 
 

N N 

Sex (gender) 
 

? N 

Sexual orientation 
 

N N 

Transgender 
 

N N 

 

Please provide brief details of any potential to cause adverse impact. Record full 
details and analysis in the following section of this assessment. 
 

 
The impact on schools is varied and for those that lose out financially there are 
potential negative impacts for both pupils and staff. In relation to staff there may be 
greater potential impact in terms of age (older) and gender (women). 
 
 

 

How will this policy/proposal/practice promote our commitment to our legal 
responsibilities under the public sector equality duty to: 

 eliminate discrimination, harassment and victimisation,  

 advance equality of opportunity, and  

 foster good relations between people from different groups? 
 

The formula includes factors which act as proxy measures for pupils who are likely 
to need additional support to achieve the expected level of attainment, which will 
contribute to increasing equality of opportunity. 
 
The formula does not differentiate between pupils from different groups and 
allocates funding on the basis of factors that are likely to be relevant to their 
educational needs. 
 

 
Evidence 

What evidence do you have to support your findings?  
Please outline your data sets and/or proposed evidence sources, highlight any gaps 
and say whether or not you propose to carry out consultation. Record greater detail 
and analysis in the following section of this assessment. 
 

 
NFF EIA (see link above) 
 
Report to Cabinet on 13.12.17 details the factors considered in determining the 
transitional formula recommended to Cabinet to approve. The report appendices 
contain detail on how each school in the County will be financially impacted by all 

Page 28



three implementation options. This EIA is based on the recommended transitional 
model. 
 
Consultation 
Feedback from the Schools Forum working groups (Oct/Nov 2017) has been mixed 
but overall has tended to favour a transitional option. 
 
On 7th Nov 17, Children’s and Young People’s Overview and Scrutiny committee 
received a report and presentation on the schools funding formula options and the 
impact of NFF. The committee recognised that the impact on schools varied and 
that change would inevitably be to the benefit of some schools, but to the detriment 
of other schools. They also recognised that no moment towards the NFF would 
potentially create significant challenges for a number of schools in 2020/21. In 
conclusion the committee was supportive of the proposals to use a transitional 
model recognising this was something the Education and Skills Funding Agency 
was encouraging and this seemed the fairest solution to a difficult issue. 
 
Update October 2018 

The final decision on the 2019-20 funding formula for mainstream primary and 
secondary schools will need to be made by Cabinet in December, following further 
consultation with schools and the Schools Forum on 5 November, after which this 
EIA will be updated.   

 
Screening Summary 

On the basis of this screening is there: 
 

Confirm which 
refers (Y/N) 

Evidence of actual or potential impact on some/all of the protected 
characteristics which will proceed to full assessment? 
 

Y 

No evidence of actual or potential impact on some/all of the 
protected characteristics? 
 

N 

 
Sign Off 

Lead officer sign off: 
David Shirer 
 

Date: 
November 2017 

Service equality representative sign off: 
Research and Equality Manager 
 

Date: 
November 2017 
Updated October 2018 

 
If carrying out a full assessment please proceed to section two. 
If not proceeding to full assessment please return completed screenings to your 
service equality representative and forward a copy to equalities@durham.gov.uk 
If you are unsure of potential impact please contact the corporate research and 
equalities team for further advice at equalities@durham.gov.uk 
 

Page 29

mailto:equalities@durham.gov.uk
mailto:equalities@durham.gov.uk


Section Two: Data analysis and assessment of impact 
Please provide details on impacts for people with different protected characteristics 
relevant to your screening findings. You need to decide if there is or likely to be a 
differential impact for some. Highlight the positives e.g. benefits for certain groups, 
advancing equality, as well as the negatives e.g. barriers for and/or exclusion of 
particular groups. Record the evidence you have used to support or explain your 
conclusions. Devise and record mitigating actions where necessary. 

Protected Characteristic: Age 

What is the actual or 
potential impact on 
stakeholders? 

Record of evidence to support 
or explain your conclusions on 
impact. 

What further action 
or mitigation is 
required? 

 
Public authorities do not 
have to comply with the 
Public Sector Equality Duty 
in relation to age for the 
provision of education and 
services to pupils in schools. 
 
In relation to potential impact 
on staff for schools 
experiencing funding 
reductions there could be 
implications for older staff. 
 
Following agreed HR 
procedures will ensure fair 
treatment. 
 
 

 
Basic funding per pupil 
increases from primary 
(reception to Year 6) to KS3 
(Years 7 to 9) to KS4 (Years 
10 to 11).   This is in line with 
normal practice in most 
authorities and the NFF and 
recognises the increasing cost 
per pupil as they get older: As 
pupils progress through key 
stages, the breadth and 
complexity of the curriculum 
increases, requiring more 
subject experts, specialist 
teaching facilities and 
examination fees expenditure. 
(NFF EIA, paragraph 19, DfE). 
 
The table below shows the 
allocations in the 2018-19 
formula and those for the 
options for 2019-20, assuming 
that the maximum amount 
permissible is transferred for 
each option. 
 

 
Where funding 
reduces from year-
to-year schools are 
supported to 
understand the 
implications, to 
forecast any budget 
shortfall and to 
identify appropriate 
savings that can be 
made to balance 
the budget.   Where 
a staff re-
structuring is 
necessary schools 
are supported 
through this 
process. 
 

 
  

Page 30



 
  % allocated through formula  

 2019-20 options are with the 
maximum transfer to the HNB  

Option 1 
2018-19 
formula  

Option2 
NFF   

Option 3 
Transi-
tional 

formula   

Option 4 
Transi-
tional 

formula 
slower 

rate   

  1819 
formula   

 Pupil-led factors            

 Basic amount per pupil  70.34%  70.55%  70.33%  70.26%  70.07%  

 Deprivation  11.96%  12.59%  12.26%  12.16%  11.94%  

 English as an Additional Language  0.06%  0.17%  0.11%  0.09%  0.06%  

 Low Prior Attainment  3.49%  5.23%  4.55%  4.33%  3.89%  

 Minimum per-pupil funding  0.01%  0.17%  0.06%  0.01%  0.01%  

 School-led factors            

 Lump Sum  11.90%  8.98%  10.41%  10.89%  11.81%  

 Sparsity  0.04%  0.12%  0.08%  0.07%  0.04%  

 Premises-related factors            

 Rates  1.59%  1.56%  1.56%  1.57%  1.56%  

 Split-site  0.13%  0.11%  0.11%  0.11%  0.11%  

 PFI  0.47%  0.49%  0.49%  0.49%  0.49%  

 Joint-use Leisure  0.02%  0.02%  0.02%  0.02%  0.02%  

 
 

Protected Characteristic: Disability 

What is the actual or 
potential impact on 
stakeholders? 

Explain your conclusion 
considering relevant evidence 
and consultation 

What further action 
or mitigation is 
required? 

 
Limited positive impact. 
 
 
 
 
The transitional formula will 
increase the proportion of 
funding allocated to Low 
Prior Attainment (LPA), 
which is one of the DfE’s 
proxy indicators for Special 
Educational Needs (SEN). 
 
Increasing the proportion of 
funding provided through 
LPA should increase the 

 
Most funding to meet the 
needs of children with 
disabilities is provided 
separately to this formula.   
 
The proportion of funding 
allocated for LPA will increase 
from 3.49% in the 2018-19 
formula to at least 3.89%.  
Schools contribute the first 
£6,000 of the cost of SEN 
provision and receive targeted 
support to offset these costs if 
the contributions for High 
Needs SEN pupils (those 
whose provision costs more 

 
As above 

Page 31



correlation between the 
number of pupils with 
disabilities and the notional 
SEN budget, which should 
improve the efficiency of the 
allocation of targeted support 
in reaching schools with the 
most pupils with disabilities. 
 
In relation to potential 
impact on staff for schools 
experiencing funding 
reductions there could be 
implications for disabled 
staff and reasonable 
adjustments will be made 
where required. 

than £6,000) exceeds the 
school’s notional SEN budget. 
The SEN budget is a notional 
share of formula funding, 
based on a target of £350/pupil 
in each phase 
(primary/secondary) and 
includes all of the LPA funding 
with the balance from 
deprivation funding.    
 

 

Protected Characteristic: Marriage and civil partnership  (workplace only) 

What is the actual or 
potential impact on 
stakeholders? 

Explain your conclusion 
considering relevant evidence 
and consultation 

What further action 
or mitigation is 
required? 

 
N/A 
 
 

  

 

Protected Characteristic: Pregnancy and maternity 

What is the actual or 
potential impact on 
stakeholders? 

Explain your conclusion 
considering relevant evidence 
and consultation 

What further action 
or mitigation is 
required? 

 
None 
 
 

 
This is not relevant to school 
funding 

 
None 

 

Protected Characteristic: Race (ethnicity) 

What is the actual or 
potential impact on 
stakeholders? 

Explain your conclusion 
considering relevant evidence 
and consultation 

What further action 
or mitigation is 
required? 

 
Limited positive impact. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The transitional formula does 
not include a mobility factor, 
which is potentially relevant 

 
The proportion of funding 
allocated for pupils recorded 
as having had with English as 
an Additional Language in the 
past three years increases 
under all options except the 
existing formula option, 
(Option 4).  
 
No funding is included in the 
funding allocation to Durham 
in respect of mobility because 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Support for 
Gypsy/Roma 
pupils and pupils of 

Page 32



to Gypsy/Roma pupils and 
pupils of Irish traveller 
heritage.    

it has not been used in the past 
and the data can be unreliable 
due to issues with recording of 
data on pupils’ previous 
schools after academy 
conversion.   
 
 
 
 

Irish traveller 
heritage is 
available through 
centrally funded 
service provided by 
the Council, which 
responds to 
specific needs, as 
opposed to a 
formula allocation 
based on lagged 
data. 

 

Protected Characteristic: Religion or belief 

What is the actual or 
potential impact on 
stakeholders? 

Explain your conclusion 
considering relevant evidence 
and consultation 

What further action 
or mitigation is 
required? 

 
The formula is applied to 
Roman Catholic primary and 
secondary schools and 
Church of England primary 
schools (there are no Church 
of England secondary 
schools). The formula does 
not differentiate between 
schools according to whether 
they are faith schools or not.  
 
Compared to the 2017-18 
formula, faith schools 
generally see smaller 
increases in funding than 
other schools, but this is a 
result of applying the 
formula, which takes account 
of additional needs 
(deprivation, English as an 
Additional Language and 
Low Prior Attainment), where 
faith schools tend to have 
fewer eligible pupils.  Faith 
schools also tend to be 
smaller than non-faith 
schools, which has an effect 
because of the proportion of 
funding allocated through 
pupil-led factors. 
 
 

 
The proportion of pupils who 
are eligible for funding through 
additional needs factors is 
higher for non-faith schools in 
all categories except English 
as an additional language 
which is predominately why 
faith schools will see a smaller 
increase in funding per pupil.  

 
As above 

 
  

Page 33



Protected Characteristic: Sex (gender) 

What is the actual or potential 
impact on stakeholders? 

Explain your conclusion 
considering relevant evidence 
and consultation 

What further action 
or mitigation is 
required? 

 
The formula does not 
differentiate between pupils 
on this basis and there are no 
single-sex schools affected 
by the formula. 
 
In relation to potential impact 
on staff for schools 
experiencing funding 
reductions there could be 
disproportionate impact on 
female staff especially within 
primary education. Following 
agreed HR procedures will 
ensure fair treatment. 
 
 

 
Higher proportions of female 
staff are employed within the 
primary school sector. 

 
 
As above 

 

Protected Characteristic: Sexual orientation 

What is the actual or 
potential impact on 
stakeholders? 

Explain your conclusion 
considering relevant evidence 
and consultation 

What further action 
or mitigation is 
required? 

 
None 
 
 
 

 
The formula does not 
differentiate between pupils on 
this basis 

 
None 

 

Protected Characteristic: Transgender 

What is the actual or 
potential impact on 
stakeholders? 

Explain your conclusion 
considering relevant evidence 
and consultation 

What further action 
or mitigation is 
required? 

 
None 
 
 
 

 
The formula does not 
differentiate between pupils on 
this basis 

 
None 
 
 
 

 
Section Three: Conclusion and Review 

Summary 

Please provide a brief summary of your findings stating the main impacts, both 
positive and negative, across the protected characteristics. 
 

With the exception of age, the formula does not differentiate according to protected 
characteristics.  The differentiation in respect of age is in accordance with usual 
practice and recognises differences in the provision required by pupils of different 
ages. There is a small positive impact in relation to disability as the transitional 
formula will increase the proportion of funding allocated to Low Prior Attainment 

Page 34



(LPA), which is one of the DfE’s proxy indicators for Special Educational Needs 
(SEN). 
 
Compared to the 2017-18 formula, faith schools generally will see smaller increases 
in funding than non-faith schools. The formula does not differentiate between 
schools but does take account of additional needs and school size in calculating 
allocations. A comparison of faith and non-faith schools illustrates that funding 
differences between these types of school is a result of differences in the proportion 
of pupils who are eligible for additional needs funding and school size.  

 
 

Will this promote positive relationships between different communities? If so how? 

No impact expected 
 
 

 
Action Plan 

Action Responsibility Timescales for 
implementation 

In which plan will 
the action appear? 

Consultation with schools 
and the Schools Forum on 
5 November 

   

    

    

    

    

 
Review 

Are there any additional assessments that need to be 
undertaken? (Y/N) 

Refresh of faith school 
analysis 
 

When will this assessment be reviewed? 
Please also insert this date at the front of the template 

November 2018 

 
Sign Off 

Lead officer sign off: 
David Shirer  
 

Date: 
22.11.17 
Updated 24.09.18 

Service equality representative sign off: 
Research and Equality Manager 
Corporate Equality and Strategy Manager 
 

Date: 
22.11.17 
Updated 24.09.18 

 
Please return the completed form to your service equality representative and forward 
a copy to equalities@durham.gov.uk 
 

Page 35

mailto:equalities@durham.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



Cabinet, 17 October 2018, 
Mainstream Primary and Secondary Formula Funding 2019-20 and Transfer to High Needs Block

Appendix 2 - Comparison of Formula Funding Options with 2018-19 Funding

 Option 1 NFF 
 Option 2 

Transitional 
Formula 

 Option 3 
Transitional - 
slower rate 

 Option 4 
Updated 1819 

Formula 
 Option 1 NFF 

 Option 2 
Transitional 

Formula 

 Option 3 
Transitional - 
slower rate 

 Option 4 
Updated 1819 

Formula 

 Totals          63,634 64,403    769         298,317,000 300,612,000 300,130,000 299,971,000 300,523,000  2,295,000      1,813,000      1,654,000      2,206,000        

2000 Ropery Walk Primary Maintained 263 256 -7 1,100,000 1,075,000 1,075,000 1,075,000 1,075,000 -25,000 -25,000 -25,000 -25,000
2001 Middlestone Moor Primary Maintained 263 252 -11 1,053,000 1,015,000 1,015,000 1,016,000 1,016,000 -38,000 -37,000 -37,000 -37,000
2002 Chilton Primary Academy 269 266 -3 1,080,000 1,048,000 1,048,000 1,048,000 1,046,000 -32,000 -32,000 -32,000 -34,000
2003 North Park Primary Maintained 194 191 -3 876,000 865,000 865,000 865,000 865,000 -11,000 -11,000 -11,000 -11,000
2004 Seascape Primary Maintained 246 233 -13 1,241,000 1,170,000 1,175,000 1,179,000 1,187,000 -71,000 -67,000 -62,000 -54,000
2005 Pelton Primary Maintained 279 278 -1 1,156,000 1,153,000 1,154,000 1,154,000 1,154,000 -3,000 -3,000 -3,000 -3,000
2008 Acre Rigg Primary Academy 256 249 -7 1,098,000 1,071,000 1,071,000 1,071,000 1,069,000 -27,000 -26,000 -27,000 -29,000
2009 Victoria Lane Primary Academy 159 167 8 739,000 771,000 770,000 770,000 768,000 32,000 31,000 30,000 29,000
2010 Stephenson Way Primary Academy 311 307 -4 1,309,000 1,294,000 1,294,000 1,294,000 1,295,000 -15,000 -15,000 -15,000 -15,000
2015 Browney Primary Academy 111 133 22 502,000 572,000 569,000 568,000 568,000 70,000 67,000 66,000 66,000
2016 Rosa Street Primary Academy 198 177 -21 832,000 756,000 757,000 758,000 759,000 -76,000 -74,000 -74,000 -73,000
2017 Shield Row Primary Academy 181 172 -9 785,000 751,000 752,000 752,000 751,000 -33,000 -33,000 -32,000 -33,000
2018 Dene House Primary Academy 275 273 -2 1,199,000 1,175,000 1,181,000 1,184,000 1,191,000 -24,000 -18,000 -15,000 -7,000
2019 South Hetton Primary Academy 207 200 -7 879,000 854,000 854,000 854,000 855,000 -26,000 -25,000 -25,000 -25,000
2020 St. Joseph's RC, N/A Primary Academy 121 125 4 579,000 587,000 586,000 586,000 593,000 7,000 7,000 7,000 13,000
2021 Sacriston Primary Academy 213 203 -10 874,000 838,000 839,000 839,000 840,000 -36,000 -35,000 -35,000 -34,000
2023 New Seaham Primary Academy 264 261 -3 992,000 980,000 980,000 980,000 982,000 -13,000 -13,000 -12,000 -10,000
2043 Westlea Primary Maintained 233 226 -7 1,009,000 983,000 984,000 984,000 984,000 -26,000 -25,000 -25,000 -25,000
2105 Edmondsley Primary Maintained 171 166 -5 696,000 676,000 677,000 677,000 679,000 -20,000 -19,000 -18,000 -16,000
2107 Lumley Jun. Primary Maintained 160 154 -6 660,000 640,000 640,000 639,000 639,000 -20,000 -20,000 -21,000 -21,000
2108 Lumley Inf. Primary Maintained 129 172 43 555,000 594,000 593,000 592,000 593,000 39,000 38,000 38,000 38,000
2114 West Pelton Primary Maintained 69 58 -11 394,000 346,000 349,000 350,000 355,000 -48,000 -45,000 -44,000 -39,000
2116 Nettlesworth Primary Maintained 92 87 -5 452,000 430,000 431,000 432,000 434,000 -22,000 -20,000 -20,000 -18,000
2125 Red Rose Primary Maintained 276 285 9 998,000 1,017,000 1,015,000 1,016,000 1,021,000 19,000 17,000 18,000 23,000
2126 Woodlea Primary Maintained 208 203 -5 831,000 814,000 815,000 815,000 815,000 -17,000 -16,000 -16,000 -16,000
2133 Cestria Primary Maintained 418 414 -4 1,486,000 1,473,000 1,473,000 1,472,000 1,469,000 -13,000 -12,000 -13,000 -16,000
2136 Ouston Primary Academy 267 253 -14 976,000 917,000 920,000 921,000 925,000 -59,000 -56,000 -55,000 -51,000
2146 Bournmoor Primary Maintained 113 110 -3 522,000 511,000 512,000 512,000 511,000 -11,000 -10,000 -10,000 -11,000
2185 Cotherstone Primary Maintained 50 45 -5 304,000 285,000 286,000 287,000 288,000 -19,000 -18,000 -18,000 -16,000
2205 Beamish Primary Maintained 72 68 -4 408,000 387,000 389,000 390,000 393,000 -21,000 -18,000 -17,000 -15,000
2208 Collierley Primary Maintained 142 143 1 632,000 636,000 636,000 636,000 634,000 4,000 4,000 4,000 2,000
2210 Catchgate Primary Maintained 237 238 1 1,056,000 1,060,000 1,060,000 1,060,000 1,058,000 5,000 5,000 4,000 2,000
2212 Annfield Plain Jun. Primary Maintained 134 134 -           606,000 607,000 607,000 607,000 607,000 -                   -                   -                   -                     

 Change in net formula funding from 1819  2019-20 net formula funding with maximum transfer to HNB 
 Comparison of net formula funding after de-delegation  - 2019-20 
options to 2018-19 actual (£ - rounded) 

 Pupil 
Numbers 

used in 2018-
19 Formula 

 Change in 
pupil 

numbers 

 Pupil 
Numbers 
used for 
2019-20 
Formula 

 Net formula 
funding in 
2018-19 

Cabinet 180914 Appendix 2.xlsx
09/10/18 1 of 8

P
age 37



Cabinet, 17 October 2018, 
Mainstream Primary and Secondary Formula Funding 2019-20 and Transfer to High Needs Block

Appendix 2 - Comparison of Formula Funding Options with 2018-19 Funding

 Option 1 NFF 
 Option 2 

Transitional 
Formula 

 Option 3 
Transitional - 
slower rate 

 Option 4 
Updated 1819 

Formula 
 Option 1 NFF 

 Option 2 
Transitional 

Formula 

 Option 3 
Transitional - 
slower rate 

 Option 4 
Updated 1819 

Formula 

 Totals          63,634 64,403    769         298,317,000 300,612,000 300,130,000 299,971,000 300,523,000  2,295,000      1,813,000      1,654,000      2,206,000        

 Change in net formula funding from 1819  2019-20 net formula funding with maximum transfer to HNB 
 Comparison of net formula funding after de-delegation  - 2019-20 
options to 2018-19 actual (£ - rounded) 

 Pupil 
Numbers 

used in 2018-
19 Formula 

 Change in 
pupil 

numbers 

 Pupil 
Numbers 
used for 
2019-20 
Formula 

 Net formula 
funding in 
2018-19 

2213 Annfield Plain Inf. Primary Maintained 115 154 39 563,000 578,000 578,000 577,000 576,000 16,000 15,000 15,000 14,000
2217 East Stanley Primary Maintained 228 221 -7 967,000 941,000 942,000 942,000 940,000 -26,000 -25,000 -25,000 -26,000
2225 South Stanley Inf. Primary Academy 131 172 41 627,000 600,000 600,000 600,000 600,000 -27,000 -27,000 -27,000 -27,000
2226 South Stanley Jun. Primary Academy 175 182 7 819,000 848,000 847,000 847,000 846,000 28,000 28,000 27,000 27,000
2232 Burnside Primary Maintained 197 200 3 903,000 915,000 915,000 915,000 913,000 12,000 12,000 12,000 10,000
2233 Bloemfontein Primary Academy 157 159 2 727,000 729,000 729,000 729,000 727,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 -                     
2234 Burnopfield Primary Maintained 366 361 -5 1,309,000 1,293,000 1,293,000 1,293,000 1,293,000 -16,000 -15,000 -15,000 -15,000
2257 Shotley Bridge Primary Maintained 378 390 12 1,363,000 1,434,000 1,402,000 1,402,000 1,401,000 71,000 39,000 39,000 38,000
2259 Leadgate Primary Maintained 182 183 1 828,000 832,000 832,000 832,000 832,000 4,000 4,000 4,000 4,000
2261 Burnhope Primary Maintained 73 73 -           414,000 415,000 415,000 415,000 414,000 -                   -                   -                   -                     
2266 Castleside Primary Maintained 129 131 2 567,000 567,000 567,000 567,000 571,000 -                   -                   -                   4,000
2269 The Grove Primary Maintained 163 157 -6 719,000 697,000 698,000 698,000 698,000 -22,000 -21,000 -21,000 -21,000
2272 Delves Lane Primary Maintained 311 296 -15 1,195,000 1,144,000 1,145,000 1,146,000 1,146,000 -51,000 -50,000 -50,000 -50,000
2276 Moorside Primary Maintained 103 102 -1 531,000 527,000 526,000 526,000 527,000 -4,000 -5,000 -5,000 -4,000
2277 Consett Jun. Primary Maintained 191 204 13 773,000 817,000 816,000 816,000 815,000 45,000 43,000 43,000 42,000
2278 Consett Inf. Primary Maintained 153 219 66 633,000 677,000 674,000 674,000 674,000 44,000 42,000 41,000 41,000
2301 Hamsterley Primary Maintained 45 41 -4 286,000 271,000 271,000 272,000 274,000 -15,000 -14,000 -14,000 -12,000
2302 Hunwick Primary Maintained 160 158 -2 655,000 642,000 644,000 644,000 647,000 -13,000 -11,000 -11,000 -8,000
2307 Tow Law Primary Maintained 84 94 10 467,000 502,000 500,000 499,000 503,000 35,000 33,000 33,000 36,000
2308 Crook Primary Maintained 363 371 8 1,475,000 1,505,000 1,504,000 1,504,000 1,504,000 30,000 30,000 30,000 29,000
2310 Hartside Primary Academy 208 208 -           893,000 879,000 879,000 879,000 877,000 -13,000 -13,000 -13,000 -15,000
2311 Peases West Primary Maintained 94 90 -4 482,000 467,000 468,000 468,000 467,000 -15,000 -14,000 -14,000 -15,000
2313 Stanley (Crook) Primary Maintained 136 136 -           613,000 613,000 613,000 613,000 611,000 -                   -                   -                   -1,000
2316 Sunnybrow Primary Maintained 80 86 6 467,000 487,000 486,000 486,000 488,000 21,000 20,000 19,000 22,000
2318 Howden-le-Wear Primary Maintained 124 132 8 559,000 588,000 587,000 587,000 584,000 29,000 28,000 28,000 25,000
2319 Frosterley Primary Maintained 37 37 -           268,000 267,000 267,000 267,000 268,000 -2,000 -2,000 -2,000 -                     
2321 Rookhope Primary Maintained 12 8 -4 207,000 183,000 186,000 187,000 189,000 -24,000 -21,000 -21,000 -19,000
2322 St. John's Chapel Primary Maintained 20 13 -7 221,000 191,000 194,000 195,000 197,000 -30,000 -27,000 -26,000 -24,000
2324 Wearhead Primary Maintained 32 21 -11 248,000 208,000 211,000 212,000 215,000 -39,000 -36,000 -35,000 -33,000
2326 Willington Primary Maintained 205 200 -5 957,000 930,000 935,000 937,000 938,000 -27,000 -22,000 -20,000 -19,000
2328 Witton-le-Wear Primary Maintained 86 90 4 420,000 429,000 428,000 428,000 428,000 9,000 9,000 9,000 8,000
2329 Wolsingham Primary Maintained 200 191 -9 768,000 731,000 732,000 734,000 739,000 -38,000 -36,000 -34,000 -29,000
2330 Oakley Cross Primary Maintained 144 145 1 682,000 686,000 686,000 686,000 684,000 4,000 4,000 4,000 1,000

Cabinet 180914 Appendix 2.xlsx
09/10/18 2 of 8

P
age 38



Cabinet, 17 October 2018, 
Mainstream Primary and Secondary Formula Funding 2019-20 and Transfer to High Needs Block

Appendix 2 - Comparison of Formula Funding Options with 2018-19 Funding

 Option 1 NFF 
 Option 2 

Transitional 
Formula 

 Option 3 
Transitional - 
slower rate 

 Option 4 
Updated 1819 

Formula 
 Option 1 NFF 

 Option 2 
Transitional 

Formula 

 Option 3 
Transitional - 
slower rate 

 Option 4 
Updated 1819 

Formula 

 Totals          63,634 64,403    769         298,317,000 300,612,000 300,130,000 299,971,000 300,523,000  2,295,000      1,813,000      1,654,000      2,206,000        

 Change in net formula funding from 1819  2019-20 net formula funding with maximum transfer to HNB 
 Comparison of net formula funding after de-delegation  - 2019-20 
options to 2018-19 actual (£ - rounded) 

 Pupil 
Numbers 

used in 2018-
19 Formula 

 Change in 
pupil 

numbers 

 Pupil 
Numbers 
used for 
2019-20 
Formula 

 Net formula 
funding in 
2018-19 

2351 Byers Green Primary Maintained 97 86 -11 473,000 429,000 432,000 433,000 437,000 -44,000 -41,000 -39,000 -36,000
2357 Bluebell Meadow Primary Maintained 306 311 5 1,258,000 1,277,000 1,277,000 1,276,000 1,273,000 19,000 19,000 18,000 15,000
2361 Kirk Merrington Primary Maintained 125 131 6 560,000 574,000 573,000 573,000 578,000 14,000 14,000 13,000 19,000
2362 Cassop Primary Maintained 139 147 8 614,000 642,000 641,000 640,000 640,000 29,000 28,000 27,000 26,000
2368 Ferryhill Station Primary Maintained 80 78 -2 440,000 432,000 433,000 433,000 433,000 -8,000 -8,000 -7,000 -7,000
2370 West Cornforth Primary Maintained 177 165 -12 850,000 792,000 794,000 794,000 801,000 -57,000 -56,000 -55,000 -48,000
2372 Coxhoe Primary Maintained 299 315 16 1,109,000 1,162,000 1,161,000 1,160,000 1,155,000 53,000 52,000 51,000 46,000
2374 Kelloe Primary Maintained 86 97 11 465,000 509,000 507,000 506,000 503,000 44,000 42,000 41,000 39,000
2379 Tudhoe Colliery Primary Academy 202 202 -           828,000 828,000 828,000 828,000 828,000 -                   -                   -                   -                     
2385 Dean Bank Primary Maintained 159 167 8 778,000 808,000 807,000 806,000 807,000 30,000 29,000 29,000 30,000
2388 Bowburn Jun. Primary Maintained 171 194 23 750,000 835,000 833,000 832,000 830,000 85,000 82,000 82,000 80,000
2389 Bowburn Inf. Primary Maintained 139 179 40 622,000 572,000 574,000 574,000 574,000 -50,000 -48,000 -49,000 -48,000
2394 Ox Close Primary Maintained 279 285 6 1,088,000 1,109,000 1,109,000 1,108,000 1,105,000 21,000 21,000 20,000 17,000
2397 Cleves Cross Primary Academy 202 204 2 846,000 853,000 853,000 853,000 851,000 7,000 7,000 7,000 5,000
2399 Fishburn Primary Maintained 158 157 -1 645,000 641,000 640,000 640,000 641,000 -4,000 -5,000 -5,000 -4,000
2400 Broom Cottages Primary Maintained 264 263 -1 1,135,000 1,132,000 1,132,000 1,132,000 1,132,000 -3,000 -3,000 -3,000 -3,000
2401 Etherley Lane Primary Maintained 313 303 -10 1,221,000 1,187,000 1,187,000 1,187,000 1,184,000 -34,000 -34,000 -34,000 -37,000
2409 Ramshaw Primary Maintained 72 69 -3 384,000 369,000 370,000 371,000 375,000 -15,000 -14,000 -14,000 -10,000
2410 Forest-of-Teesdale Primary Maintained 9 8 -1 190,000 183,000 184,000 185,000 185,000 -7,000 -6,000 -5,000 -5,000
2411 Aycliffe Village Primary Maintained 153 153 -           649,000 642,000 644,000 644,000 647,000 -7,000 -5,000 -5,000 -2,000
2413 Butterknowle Primary Maintained 32 38 6 261,000 286,000 283,000 282,000 280,000 25,000 22,000 21,000 20,000
2417 Escomb Primary Maintained 208 209 1 837,000 841,000 841,000 841,000 838,000 4,000 4,000 3,000 1,000
2419 St. Helens Auckland Primary Maintained 159 168 9 732,000 766,000 765,000 765,000 756,000 35,000 34,000 33,000 24,000
2423 Thornhill Primary Maintained 208 208 -           901,000 890,000 890,000 892,000 898,000 -11,000 -11,000 -9,000 -3,000
2426 Toft Hill Primary Maintained 186 200 14 738,000 785,000 784,000 783,000 781,000 47,000 46,000 45,000 43,000
2428 Woodland Primary Maintained 44 35 -9 290,000 257,000 258,000 259,000 260,000 -33,000 -31,000 -31,000 -29,000
2430 Middleton-in -Teesdale Primary Maintained 123 118 -5 522,000 501,000 502,000 503,000 508,000 -21,000 -20,000 -20,000 -14,000
2433 Cockton Hill Jun. Primary Maintained 204 208 4 894,000 909,000 909,000 909,000 909,000 15,000 15,000 15,000 15,000
2434 Cockton Hill Inf. Primary Maintained 161 222 61 733,000 745,000 744,000 744,000 741,000 12,000 11,000 11,000 8,000
2438 Timothy Hackworth Primary Maintained 396 384 -12 1,596,000 1,553,000 1,553,000 1,554,000 1,554,000 -43,000 -43,000 -43,000 -42,000
2440 Cockfield Primary Maintained 109 98 -11 528,000 487,000 489,000 489,000 490,000 -41,000 -39,000 -39,000 -38,000
2442 Montalbo Primary Maintained 142 149 7 581,000 596,000 596,000 596,000 600,000 16,000 15,000 15,000 20,000
2453 New Brancepeth Primary Maintained 90 106 16 437,000 487,000 485,000 484,000 484,000 51,000 48,000 47,000 47,000

Cabinet 180914 Appendix 2.xlsx
09/10/18 3 of 8

P
age 39



Cabinet, 17 October 2018, 
Mainstream Primary and Secondary Formula Funding 2019-20 and Transfer to High Needs Block

Appendix 2 - Comparison of Formula Funding Options with 2018-19 Funding

 Option 1 NFF 
 Option 2 

Transitional 
Formula 

 Option 3 
Transitional - 
slower rate 

 Option 4 
Updated 1819 

Formula 
 Option 1 NFF 

 Option 2 
Transitional 

Formula 

 Option 3 
Transitional - 
slower rate 

 Option 4 
Updated 1819 

Formula 

 Totals          63,634 64,403    769         298,317,000 300,612,000 300,130,000 299,971,000 300,523,000  2,295,000      1,813,000      1,654,000      2,206,000        

 Change in net formula funding from 1819  2019-20 net formula funding with maximum transfer to HNB 
 Comparison of net formula funding after de-delegation  - 2019-20 
options to 2018-19 actual (£ - rounded) 

 Pupil 
Numbers 

used in 2018-
19 Formula 

 Change in 
pupil 

numbers 

 Pupil 
Numbers 
used for 
2019-20 
Formula 

 Net formula 
funding in 
2018-19 

2455 Langley Moor Primary Maintained 200 199 -1 764,000 753,000 755,000 756,000 759,000 -12,000 -9,000 -8,000 -5,000
2462 Witton Gilbert Primary Maintained 192 204 12 776,000 817,000 816,000 815,000 815,000 41,000 40,000 40,000 39,000
2470 Pittington Primary Maintained 195 189 -6 750,000 731,000 730,000 729,000 728,000 -19,000 -20,000 -21,000 -22,000
2472 Ludworth Primary Maintained 77 74 -3 424,000 412,000 413,000 413,000 410,000 -12,000 -11,000 -11,000 -14,000
2473 Sherburn Primary Maintained 169 163 -6 729,000 708,000 709,000 709,000 709,000 -21,000 -21,000 -20,000 -20,000
2475 West Rainton Primary Maintained 121 121 -           595,000 595,000 595,000 595,000 595,000 -                   -                   -                   -                     
2477 Bearpark Primary Maintained 105 113 8 522,000 553,000 552,000 551,000 547,000 31,000 30,000 29,000 25,000
2481 Neville's Cross Primary Maintained 285 277 -8 1,023,000 998,000 997,000 996,000 996,000 -25,000 -26,000 -27,000 -27,000
2488 Newton Hall Inf. Primary Maintained 172 218 46 652,000 604,000 606,000 606,000 610,000 -47,000 -46,000 -45,000 -42,000
2497 Esh Winning Primary Maintained 208 228 20 909,000 982,000 980,000 980,000 978,000 73,000 71,000 70,000 69,000
2498 Cheveley Park Primary Maintained 197 200 3 767,000 776,000 775,000 774,000 775,000 10,000 8,000 7,000 8,000
2499 Laurel Avenue Primary Maintained 88 96 8 495,000 523,000 521,000 521,000 521,000 28,000 27,000 26,000 26,000
2509 Hesleden Primary Maintained 109 107 -2 502,000 489,000 490,000 490,000 490,000 -12,000 -12,000 -12,000 -11,000
2516 Deaf Hill Primary Maintained 130 123 -7 620,000 594,000 594,000 595,000 594,000 -27,000 -26,000 -25,000 -26,000
2523 Thornley Primary Maintained 178 182 4 794,000 810,000 809,000 809,000 808,000 15,000 15,000 15,000 14,000
2526 Wheatley Hill Primary Maintained 177 183 6 836,000 861,000 860,000 854,000 849,000 24,000 24,000 18,000 13,000
2528 Wingate Jun. Primary Maintained 196 197 1 797,000 801,000 801,000 801,000 796,000 4,000 4,000 4,000 -1,000
2531 Wingate Inf. Primary Maintained 172 209 37 719,000 640,000 642,000 643,000 641,000 -79,000 -77,000 -76,000 -77,000
2532 Horden Cotsford Jun. Primary Maintained 114 109 -5 611,000 583,000 584,000 584,000 589,000 -28,000 -27,000 -26,000 -22,000
2534 Horden Cotsford Inf. Primary Maintained 72 88 16 432,000 393,000 395,000 396,000 399,000 -39,000 -37,000 -36,000 -34,000
2536 Shotton Primary Maintained 317 298 -19 1,300,000 1,231,000 1,232,000 1,232,000 1,232,000 -69,000 -68,000 -68,000 -68,000
2540 Acre Rigg Inf. Primary Maintained 203 262 59 902,000 856,000 857,000 859,000 866,000 -46,000 -45,000 -43,000 -36,000
2563 Sedgefield Primary Maintained 192 196 4 721,000 724,000 724,000 724,000 730,000 4,000 3,000 3,000 10,000
2593 Hardwick Primary Maintained 213 212 -1 786,000 773,000 775,000 776,000 779,000 -13,000 -11,000 -10,000 -6,000
2704 Copeland Road Primary Maintained 150 144 -6 678,000 656,000 657,000 657,000 657,000 -22,000 -21,000 -21,000 -22,000
2705 St. Andrew's Primary Maintained 100 122 22 532,000 623,000 619,000 618,000 616,000 91,000 87,000 86,000 84,000
2706 Byerley Park Primary Maintained 212 211 -1 835,000 821,000 823,000 825,000 831,000 -14,000 -12,000 -10,000 -4,000
2708 Horndale Inf. Primary Maintained 98 122 24 506,000 469,000 471,000 472,000 476,000 -37,000 -35,000 -33,000 -29,000
2729 Langley Park Primary Maintained 161 155 -6 683,000 662,000 663,000 663,000 663,000 -21,000 -20,000 -20,000 -20,000
2733 Yohden Primary Maintained 168 161 -7 791,000 764,000 764,000 764,000 763,000 -28,000 -27,000 -27,000 -29,000
2734 Howletch Lane Primary Maintained 376 373 -3 1,492,000 1,482,000 1,482,000 1,482,000 1,477,000 -10,000 -10,000 -10,000 -15,000
2737 Blackhall Primary Maintained 226 215 -11 961,000 921,000 922,000 922,000 923,000 -40,000 -39,000 -39,000 -38,000
2742 Vane Road Primary Maintained 384 387 3 1,424,000 1,435,000 1,435,000 1,435,000 1,434,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000

Cabinet 180914 Appendix 2.xlsx
09/10/18 4 of 8

P
age 40



Cabinet, 17 October 2018, 
Mainstream Primary and Secondary Formula Funding 2019-20 and Transfer to High Needs Block

Appendix 2 - Comparison of Formula Funding Options with 2018-19 Funding

 Option 1 NFF 
 Option 2 

Transitional 
Formula 

 Option 3 
Transitional - 
slower rate 

 Option 4 
Updated 1819 

Formula 
 Option 1 NFF 

 Option 2 
Transitional 

Formula 

 Option 3 
Transitional - 
slower rate 

 Option 4 
Updated 1819 

Formula 

 Totals          63,634 64,403    769         298,317,000 300,612,000 300,130,000 299,971,000 300,523,000  2,295,000      1,813,000      1,654,000      2,206,000        

 Change in net formula funding from 1819  2019-20 net formula funding with maximum transfer to HNB 
 Comparison of net formula funding after de-delegation  - 2019-20 
options to 2018-19 actual (£ - rounded) 

 Pupil 
Numbers 

used in 2018-
19 Formula 

 Change in 
pupil 

numbers 

 Pupil 
Numbers 
used for 
2019-20 
Formula 

 Net formula 
funding in 
2018-19 

2743 Sugar Hill Primary Maintained 396 401 5 1,493,000 1,511,000 1,511,000 1,511,000 1,509,000 18,000 17,000 17,000 15,000
2744 Pelton Roseberry Primary Maintained 176 196 20 752,000 824,000 822,000 822,000 818,000 72,000 70,000 69,000 66,000
2745 Bullion Lane Primary Maintained 260 247 -13 1,177,000 1,125,000 1,126,000 1,126,000 1,126,000 -52,000 -51,000 -51,000 -52,000
2746 Easington Colliery Primary Maintained 523 504 -19 2,096,000 2,026,000 2,027,000 2,027,000 2,027,000 -69,000 -69,000 -69,000 -69,000
2747 Gilesgate Primary Maintained 183 174 -9 839,000 804,000 805,000 805,000 806,000 -35,000 -34,000 -34,000 -33,000
2748 Finchale Primary Maintained 215 208 -7 804,000 774,000 777,000 778,000 782,000 -30,000 -27,000 -26,000 -22,000
2749 Benfieldside Primary Maintained 236 221 -15 966,000 915,000 916,000 916,000 917,000 -51,000 -50,000 -50,000 -49,000
2750 King Street Primary Maintained 214 208 -6 906,000 884,000 884,000 885,000 883,000 -22,000 -21,000 -21,000 -22,000
2751 Framwellgate Moor Primary Maintained 220 236 16 833,000 885,000 883,000 883,000 882,000 52,000 51,000 50,000 49,000
2943 Newker Primary Maintained 402 403 1 1,464,000 1,468,000 1,468,000 1,468,000 1,467,000 4,000 4,000 3,000 3,000
3031 Chester-le-Street CE Primary Maintained 326 316 -10 1,241,000 1,207,000 1,208,000 1,208,000 1,208,000 -34,000 -33,000 -33,000 -33,000
3063 Ebchester CE Primary Maintained 81 83 2 410,000 413,000 413,000 413,000 416,000 3,000 3,000 3,000 5,000
3085 St. Stephen's CE Primary Maintained 201 201 -           880,000 880,000 880,000 880,000 880,000 -                   -                   -                   -                     
3087 Stanhope Barrington CE Primary Maintained 125 132 7 528,000 545,000 544,000 544,000 548,000 16,000 16,000 16,000 19,000
3121 Green Lane CE Primary Maintained 226 223 -3 835,000 825,000 823,000 822,000 823,000 -10,000 -12,000 -12,000 -12,000
3123 St. Anne's CE Primary Maintained 214 216 2 850,000 857,000 857,000 856,000 854,000 7,000 7,000 7,000 4,000
3130 Evenwood CE Primary Maintained 83 83 -           450,000 445,000 445,000 445,000 446,000 -5,000 -5,000 -4,000 -3,000
3131 Gainford CE Primary Maintained 74 73 -1 382,000 376,000 376,000 376,000 379,000 -7,000 -6,000 -6,000 -3,000
3134 Ingleton CE Primary Maintained 66 64 -2 353,000 343,000 343,000 344,000 346,000 -10,000 -9,000 -9,000 -7,000
3141 Staindrop CE Primary Maintained 175 173 -2 681,000 668,000 670,000 671,000 673,000 -14,000 -11,000 -11,000 -8,000
3161 Belmont CE Primary Maintained 267 272 5 985,000 998,000 998,000 998,000 1,000,000 12,000 12,000 12,000 14,000
3165 St. Oswald's CE Primary Maintained 118 120 2 507,000 507,000 507,000 507,000 512,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 5,000
3167 Shincliffe CE Primary Maintained 209 204 -5 783,000 758,000 758,000 760,000 766,000 -25,000 -25,000 -23,000 -17,000
3168 St. Margaret's CE Primary Maintained 422 425 3 1,409,000 1,504,000 1,462,000 1,419,000 1,419,000 95,000 53,000 10,000 10,000
3182 Easington CE Primary Maintained 113 128 15 504,000 548,000 546,000 545,000 549,000 44,000 42,000 42,000 46,000
3183 Hutton Henry CE Primary Maintained 68 69 1 379,000 379,000 379,000 379,000 379,000 -                   -                   -                   -                     
3213 Lanchester EP Primary Maintained 329 340 11 1,212,000 1,248,000 1,248,000 1,248,000 1,243,000 37,000 36,000 36,000 31,000
3300 St. Cuthbert's RC, New Seaham Primary Maintained 204 198 -6 800,000 775,000 776,000 776,000 779,000 -25,000 -24,000 -23,000 -21,000
3301 St. Mary Magdalen RC Primary Maintained 285 294 9 1,065,000 1,082,000 1,086,000 1,087,000 1,091,000 17,000 21,000 22,000 26,000
3303 Bowes Hutchinson CE Primary Maintained 45 49 4 290,000 302,000 301,000 301,000 300,000 11,000 11,000 10,000 10,000
3343 St. Cuthbert's RC, Ch-le-St Primary Maintained 211 202 -9 787,000 749,000 750,000 752,000 757,000 -38,000 -37,000 -35,000 -31,000
3344 St. Bede's RC, Sacriston Primary Maintained 94 93 -1 441,000 433,000 433,000 433,000 438,000 -8,000 -8,000 -8,000 -3,000
3346 St. Benet's RC Primary Maintained 209 212 3 776,000 776,000 776,000 776,000 780,000 -1,000 -1,000 -1,000 4,000

Cabinet 180914 Appendix 2.xlsx
09/10/18 5 of 8

P
age 41



Cabinet, 17 October 2018, 
Mainstream Primary and Secondary Formula Funding 2019-20 and Transfer to High Needs Block

Appendix 2 - Comparison of Formula Funding Options with 2018-19 Funding

 Option 1 NFF 
 Option 2 

Transitional 
Formula 

 Option 3 
Transitional - 
slower rate 

 Option 4 
Updated 1819 

Formula 
 Option 1 NFF 

 Option 2 
Transitional 

Formula 

 Option 3 
Transitional - 
slower rate 

 Option 4 
Updated 1819 

Formula 

 Totals          63,634 64,403    769         298,317,000 300,612,000 300,130,000 299,971,000 300,523,000  2,295,000      1,813,000      1,654,000      2,206,000        

 Change in net formula funding from 1819  2019-20 net formula funding with maximum transfer to HNB 
 Comparison of net formula funding after de-delegation  - 2019-20 
options to 2018-19 actual (£ - rounded) 

 Pupil 
Numbers 

used in 2018-
19 Formula 

 Change in 
pupil 

numbers 

 Pupil 
Numbers 
used for 
2019-20 
Formula 

 Net formula 
funding in 
2018-19 

3381 St. Joseph's RC, Stanley Primary Maintained 209 208 -1 859,000 856,000 856,000 856,000 853,000 -3,000 -3,000 -3,000 -7,000
3382 St. Patrick's RC, Dipton Primary Maintained 167 164 -3 720,000 700,000 703,000 705,000 709,000 -20,000 -17,000 -16,000 -11,000
3384 St. Mary's RC, South Moor Primary Maintained 136 130 -6 653,000 621,000 626,000 627,000 631,000 -32,000 -27,000 -26,000 -22,000
3401 St. Mary's RC , Blackhill Primary Maintained 207 209 2 803,000 809,000 809,000 809,000 809,000 7,000 7,000 7,000 6,000
3403 St. Pius X RC Primary Maintained 100 97 -3 477,000 461,000 462,000 462,000 467,000 -16,000 -16,000 -15,000 -10,000
3404 St. Patrick's RC, Consett Primary Maintained 386 390 4 1,338,000 1,367,000 1,351,000 1,351,000 1,347,000 29,000 13,000 13,000 8,000
3406 Esh CE Primary Maintained 90 93 3 424,000 429,000 429,000 429,000 429,000 6,000 5,000 5,000 5,000
3407 St. Michael's RC, Esh Laude Primary Maintained 184 179 -5 721,000 703,000 703,000 703,000 704,000 -18,000 -19,000 -19,000 -17,000
3409 Our Lady & St. Joseph's RC Primary Maintained 117 118 1 543,000 540,000 543,000 545,000 546,000 -3,000 -                   2,000 3,000
3411 Bishop Ian Ramsey CE Primary Maintained 204 205 1 777,000 781,000 781,000 779,000 778,000 3,000 3,000 2,000 -                     
3413 All Saints' RC Primary Maintained 178 171 -7 702,000 679,000 678,000 678,000 679,000 -23,000 -24,000 -24,000 -22,000
3421 St. Cuthbert's RC, Crook Primary Maintained 190 188 -2 809,000 802,000 802,000 802,000 801,000 -7,000 -7,000 -7,000 -9,000
3425 Our Lady & St. Thomas RC Primary Maintained 114 119 5 521,000 533,000 533,000 532,000 537,000 12,000 11,000 11,000 15,000
3441 St. Michael's CE Primary Maintained 114 124 10 492,000 520,000 518,000 518,000 523,000 27,000 26,000 26,000 30,000
3442 St. Williams RC Primary Maintained 120 122 2 529,000 529,000 529,000 529,000 534,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 6,000
3444 St. Charles' RC, Tudhoe Primary Maintained 208 209 1 842,000 841,000 841,000 842,000 844,000 -1,000 -                   -                   2,000
3461 St. Mary's RC, Barnard Castle Primary Maintained 98 100 2 440,000 442,000 442,000 442,000 442,000 2,000 2,000 2,000 2,000
3462 St. Wilfrid's RC Primary Maintained 199 203 4 897,000 908,000 908,000 908,000 910,000 12,000 12,000 12,000 14,000
3465 St. Chad's RC Primary Maintained 94 90 -4 452,000 432,000 433,000 434,000 436,000 -19,000 -18,000 -18,000 -16,000
3469 St. Joseph's RC, Coundon Primary Maintained 106 115 9 531,000 560,000 558,000 558,000 562,000 29,000 28,000 27,000 31,000
3470 St. Mary's RC, N/A Primary Maintained 200 199 -1 808,000 805,000 805,000 805,000 804,000 -3,000 -3,000 -3,000 -4,000
3472 St. Francis CE Jun. Primary Maintained 132 124 -8 615,000 583,000 583,000 583,000 585,000 -31,000 -31,000 -31,000 -30,000
3481 St. Patrick's RC, Langley Moor Primary Maintained 96 91 -5 442,000 420,000 421,000 421,000 423,000 -22,000 -21,000 -20,000 -18,000
3483 Our Lady Queen of Martyrs' RC Primary Maintained 93 87 -6 446,000 420,000 422,000 423,000 426,000 -26,000 -24,000 -23,000 -20,000
3485 St. Hild's College CE Primary Maintained 178 172 -6 787,000 762,000 762,000 762,000 764,000 -24,000 -24,000 -24,000 -22,000
3486 St. Godric's RC, Durham Primary Maintained 215 212 -3 776,000 757,000 758,000 758,000 764,000 -19,000 -19,000 -18,000 -12,000
3488 St. Joseph's RC, Ushaw Moor Primary Maintained 99 99 -           483,000 478,000 478,000 478,000 483,000 -6,000 -5,000 -5,000 -                     
3489 St. Joseph's RC, Durham Primary Maintained 137 133 -4 621,000 599,000 601,000 603,000 607,000 -22,000 -19,000 -18,000 -14,000
3491 Blue Coat CE Jun. Primary Maintained 246 245 -1 866,000 858,000 855,000 856,000 859,000 -9,000 -11,000 -10,000 -8,000
3492 St. Thomas More RC Primary Maintained 94 95 1 424,000 423,000 423,000 423,000 423,000 -1,000 -1,000 -1,000 -1,000
3501 St. Joseph's RC, Murton Primary Maintained 145 151 6 616,000 629,000 629,000 629,000 635,000 13,000 13,000 12,000 19,000
3502 St. Godric's RC, Thornley Primary Maintained 103 94 -9 508,000 468,000 470,000 470,000 471,000 -40,000 -38,000 -38,000 -37,000
3504 Our Lady of Lourdes RC Primary Maintained 157 168 11 664,000 703,000 702,000 701,000 700,000 39,000 38,000 37,000 35,000

Cabinet 180914 Appendix 2.xlsx
09/10/18 6 of 8

P
age 42



Cabinet, 17 October 2018, 
Mainstream Primary and Secondary Formula Funding 2019-20 and Transfer to High Needs Block

Appendix 2 - Comparison of Formula Funding Options with 2018-19 Funding

 Option 1 NFF 
 Option 2 

Transitional 
Formula 

 Option 3 
Transitional - 
slower rate 

 Option 4 
Updated 1819 

Formula 
 Option 1 NFF 

 Option 2 
Transitional 

Formula 

 Option 3 
Transitional - 
slower rate 

 Option 4 
Updated 1819 

Formula 

 Totals          63,634 64,403    769         298,317,000 300,612,000 300,130,000 299,971,000 300,523,000  2,295,000      1,813,000      1,654,000      2,206,000        

 Change in net formula funding from 1819  2019-20 net formula funding with maximum transfer to HNB 
 Comparison of net formula funding after de-delegation  - 2019-20 
options to 2018-19 actual (£ - rounded) 

 Pupil 
Numbers 

used in 2018-
19 Formula 

 Change in 
pupil 

numbers 

 Pupil 
Numbers 
used for 
2019-20 
Formula 

 Net formula 
funding in 
2018-19 

3505 St. Mary's RC, Wingate Primary Maintained 51 56 5 327,000 344,000 343,000 342,000 342,000 18,000 16,000 16,000 15,000
3506 St. Joseph's RC, Blackhall Primary Maintained 72 81 9 387,000 417,000 415,000 414,000 413,000 30,000 28,000 27,000 26,000
3507 Our Lady Star of the Sea RC Primary Maintained 111 108 -3 567,000 548,000 549,000 549,000 552,000 -19,000 -18,000 -18,000 -14,000
3510 Our Lady of the Rosary RC Primary Maintained 279 275 -4 1,154,000 1,139,000 1,140,000 1,140,000 1,136,000 -15,000 -15,000 -15,000 -18,000
3511 Blessed John Duckett RC Primary Maintained 65 57 -8 384,000 347,000 349,000 350,000 351,000 -37,000 -35,000 -34,000 -32,000
3513 St. John's CE Shildon Primary Maintained 205 208 3 961,000 960,000 960,000 963,000 972,000 -                   -                   2,000 11,000
3516 Prince Bishops Primary Maintained 185 180 -5 909,000 877,000 878,000 878,000 886,000 -31,000 -31,000 -31,000 -22,000
3517 Ribbon Primary Academy 490 511 21 1,878,000 1,954,000 1,953,000 1,953,000 1,946,000 75,000 75,000 75,000 68,000
3518 Woodham Burn Primary Maintained 236 228 -8 999,000 970,000 971,000 971,000 971,000 -29,000 -29,000 -28,000 -28,000
3519 Silver Tree Primary Maintained 178 175 -3 803,000 792,000 792,000 791,000 791,000 -11,000 -10,000 -11,000 -11,000
3520 Seaview Primary Maintained 286 296 10 1,324,000 1,348,000 1,347,000 1,347,000 1,350,000 24,000 23,000 23,000 26,000
3522 Tanfield Lea Primary Maintained 297 295 -2 1,159,000 1,153,000 1,153,000 1,153,000 1,153,000 -7,000 -6,000 -6,000 -6,000
3523 Woodhouse Primary Maintained 200 202 2 1,001,000 997,000 997,000 997,000 997,000 -4,000 -4,000 -4,000 -4,000
3524 Seaham Trinity Primary Maintained 388 387 -1 1,574,000 1,572,000 1,572,000 1,572,000 1,567,000 -2,000 -2,000 -2,000 -7,000
3525 Brandon Primary Maintained 262 266 4 1,072,000 1,087,000 1,087,000 1,087,000 1,086,000 15,000 15,000 15,000 14,000
3526 Greenland Primary Academy 335 346 11 1,401,000 1,443,000 1,443,000 1,442,000 1,441,000 42,000 42,000 42,000 40,000
3527 Shotton Hall  Primary Maintained 349 347 -2 1,440,000 1,434,000 1,434,000 1,434,000 1,434,000 -6,000 -6,000 -6,000 -6,000
4000 North Durham Secondary Academy 875 859 -16 5,120,000 4,958,000 4,959,000 4,959,000 4,982,000 -162,000 -161,000 -161,000 -138,000
4001 Consett Secondary Academy 1,146 1,277 131 5,788,000 6,432,000 6,359,000 6,335,000 6,334,000 644,000 571,000 547,000 546,000
4006 UTC South Durham Secondary Academy 233 144 -89 1,531,000 988,000 996,000 999,000 1,007,000 -543,000 -535,000 -532,000 -524,000
4007 Teesdale Secondary Academy 493 500 7 2,382,000 2,416,000 2,404,000 2,397,000 2,390,000 34,000 21,000 15,000 8,000
4008 Staindrop  Secondary Academy 513 465 -48 2,738,000 2,461,000 2,478,000 2,488,000 2,498,000 -277,000 -259,000 -250,000 -239,000
4019 Seaham High Secondary Maintained 959 1,050 91 5,390,000 5,793,000 5,791,000 5,790,000 5,789,000 402,000 400,000 400,000 399,000
4047 Park View  Secondary Academy 1,130 1,162 32 5,756,000 5,829,000 5,829,000 5,828,000 5,839,000 73,000 73,000 73,000 83,000
4052 Fyndoune College Secondary Maintained 327 285 -42 1,960,000 1,705,000 1,708,000 1,709,000 1,711,000 -254,000 -251,000 -250,000 -248,000
4054 The Hermitage Secondary Academy 988 1,021 33 4,960,000 5,047,000 5,047,000 5,046,000 5,060,000 87,000 86,000 86,000 100,000
4099 Tanfield Secondary Maintained 609 694 85 3,354,000 3,744,000 3,741,000 3,740,000 3,748,000 389,000 387,000 386,000 393,000
4128 Parkside Secondary Academy 774 820 46 4,353,000 4,537,000 4,536,000 4,536,000 4,571,000 184,000 183,000 183,000 218,000
4139 Wolsingham Secondary Maintained 496 531 35 2,692,000 2,826,000 2,825,000 2,824,000 2,824,000 134,000 133,000 132,000 132,000
4150 Ferryhill Secondary Academy 657 709 52 3,700,000 3,882,000 3,881,000 3,880,000 3,900,000 183,000 181,000 181,000 201,000
4154 Whitworth Park Secondary Academy 827 802 -25 4,407,000 4,207,000 4,209,000 4,217,000 4,241,000 -200,000 -197,000 -190,000 -166,000
4162 Bishop Barrington Secondary Maintained 730 801 71 4,131,000 4,451,000 4,450,000 4,449,000 4,464,000 320,000 318,000 318,000 332,000
4175 Woodham Secondary Academy 701 738 37 3,644,000 3,786,000 3,792,000 3,795,000 3,807,000 142,000 148,000 151,000 163,000

Cabinet 180914 Appendix 2.xlsx
09/10/18 7 of 8

P
age 43



Cabinet, 17 October 2018, 
Mainstream Primary and Secondary Formula Funding 2019-20 and Transfer to High Needs Block

Appendix 2 - Comparison of Formula Funding Options with 2018-19 Funding

 Option 1 NFF 
 Option 2 

Transitional 
Formula 

 Option 3 
Transitional - 
slower rate 

 Option 4 
Updated 1819 

Formula 
 Option 1 NFF 

 Option 2 
Transitional 

Formula 

 Option 3 
Transitional - 
slower rate 

 Option 4 
Updated 1819 

Formula 

 Totals          63,634 64,403    769         298,317,000 300,612,000 300,130,000 299,971,000 300,523,000  2,295,000      1,813,000      1,654,000      2,206,000        

 Change in net formula funding from 1819  2019-20 net formula funding with maximum transfer to HNB 
 Comparison of net formula funding after de-delegation  - 2019-20 
options to 2018-19 actual (£ - rounded) 

 Pupil 
Numbers 

used in 2018-
19 Formula 

 Change in 
pupil 

numbers 

 Pupil 
Numbers 
used for 
2019-20 
Formula 

 Net formula 
funding in 
2018-19 

4176 Greenfield Secondary Maintained 916 969 53 5,218,000 5,431,000 5,430,000 5,430,000 5,478,000 214,000 213,000 212,000 260,000
4178 King James 1 Secondary Academy 651 746 95 3,859,000 4,338,000 4,335,000 4,335,000 4,347,000 479,000 476,000 475,000 488,000
4185 Belmont Secondary Maintained 739 771 32 3,993,000 4,099,000 4,099,000 4,099,000 4,102,000 107,000 106,000 106,000 109,000
4190 Framwellgate Secondary Academy 886 982 96 4,239,000 4,737,000 4,639,000 4,629,000 4,626,000 498,000 400,000 391,000 388,000
4192 DCBC Secondary Maintained 322 303 -19 1,956,000 1,828,000 1,829,000 1,830,000 1,841,000 -128,000 -127,000 -126,000 -115,000
4200 Johnston Secondary Maintained 1,273 1,306 33 6,245,000 6,573,000 6,443,000 6,345,000 6,347,000 328,000 197,000 100,000 101,000
4214 Dene Secondary Maintained 628 632 4 3,901,000 3,870,000 3,870,000 3,870,000 3,880,000 -31,000 -31,000 -31,000 -21,000
4215 Shotton Hall Secondary Academy 1,226 1,244 18 7,120,000 7,118,000 7,118,000 7,118,000 7,185,000 -3,000 -3,000 -3,000 64,000
4218 Wellfield Secondary Maintained 653 732 79 3,705,000 4,073,000 4,065,000 4,063,000 4,066,000 368,000 360,000 358,000 361,000
4231 Sedgefield Secondary Maintained 977 996 19 5,723,000 5,779,000 5,777,000 5,776,000 5,786,000 56,000 53,000 53,000 62,000
4280 Easington Secondary Academy 745 745 -           4,054,000 3,995,000 3,996,000 3,996,000 4,002,000 -58,000 -58,000 -58,000 -52,000
4681  St John's RC Secondary Academy 1,159 1,179 20 5,836,000 5,848,000 5,848,000 5,848,000 5,876,000 12,000 12,000 12,000 40,000
4691 St. Leonard's RC Secondary Academy 1,149 1,163 14 5,473,000 5,609,000 5,493,000 5,479,000 5,473,000 137,000 20,000 6,000 1,000
4693 St. Bede's RC, Peterlee Secondary Maintained 494 489 -5 2,743,000 2,679,000 2,679,000 2,679,000 2,704,000 -64,000 -64,000 -63,000 -38,000
4694  St Bede's RC, Lanchester Secondary Academy 1,171 1,200 29 5,775,000 5,876,000 5,840,000 5,829,000 5,828,000 101,000 65,000 54,000 53,000

Primary All 39,187 39,088 -99 166,571,000 165,697,000 165,665,000 165,652,000 165,819,000 -874,000 -907,000 -920,000 -753,000
Secondary All 24,447 25,315 868 131,745,000 134,915,000 134,465,000 134,319,000 134,704,000 3,169,000 2,719,000 2,574,000 2,959,000
Total All 63,634 64,403 769 298,317,000 300,612,000 300,130,000 299,971,000 300,523,000 2,295,000 1,813,000 1,654,000 2,206,000

Totals

Cabinet 180914 Appendix 2.xlsx
09/10/18 8 of 8

P
age 44



Cabinet, 17 October 2018, 
Mainstream Primary and Secondary Formula Funding 2019-20 and Transfer to High Needs Block

Appendix 3 - Impact of Transfer to High Needs Block

 Option 1 NFF 
 Option 2 

Transitional 
Formula 

 Option 3 
Transitional - 
slower rate 

 Option 4 
Updated 1819 

Formula 
 Option 1 NFF 

 Option 2 
Transitional 

Formula 

 Option 3 
Transitional - 
slower rate 

 Option 4 
Updated 1819 

Formula 

 Option 1 
NFF 

 Option 2 
Transitional 

Formula 

 Option 3 
Transitional - 
slower rate 

 Option 4 
Updated 

1819 
Formula 

 Totals 300,612,000   300,130,000   299,971,000   300,523,000   304,591,000   304,591,000   304,591,000   304,591,000   -3,979,000   -4,462,000   -4,620,000   -4,068,000   

2000 Ropery Walk Primary Maintained 1,075,000 1,075,136 1,075,275 1,075,351 1,106,740 1,098,346 1,095,555 1,089,757 -31,740 -23,210 -20,280 -14,406
2001 Middlestone Moor Primary Maintained 1,015,000 1,015,000 1,016,000 1,016,000 1,048,000 1,041,000 1,037,000 1,029,000 -33,000 -26,000 -22,000 -13,000
2002 Chilton Primary Academy 1,048,000 1,048,000 1,048,000 1,046,000 1,082,000 1,072,000 1,068,000 1,061,000 -35,000 -24,000 -20,000 -14,000
2003 North Park Primary Maintained 865,000 865,000 865,000 865,000 892,000 893,000 888,000 878,000 -27,000 -28,000 -23,000 -12,000
2004 Seascape Primary Maintained 1,170,000 1,175,000 1,179,000 1,187,000 1,176,000 1,192,000 1,197,000 1,207,000 -5,000 -17,000 -18,000 -20,000
2005 Pelton Primary Maintained 1,153,000 1,154,000 1,154,000 1,154,000 1,191,000 1,192,000 1,185,000 1,169,000 -37,000 -38,000 -32,000 -16,000
2008 Acre Rigg Primary Academy 1,071,000 1,071,000 1,071,000 1,069,000 1,095,000 1,089,000 1,087,000 1,083,000 -24,000 -18,000 -17,000 -15,000
2009 Victoria Lane Primary Academy 771,000 770,000 770,000 768,000 795,000 786,000 783,000 778,000 -24,000 -16,000 -14,000 -10,000
2010 Stephenson Way Primary Academy 1,294,000 1,294,000 1,294,000 1,295,000 1,338,000 1,340,000 1,337,000 1,321,000 -44,000 -45,000 -43,000 -26,000
2015 Browney Primary Academy 572,000 569,000 568,000 568,000 572,000 570,000 572,000 575,000 -               -1,000 -4,000 -7,000
2016 Rosa Street Primary Academy 756,000 757,000 758,000 759,000 780,000 782,000 781,000 769,000 -24,000 -24,000 -23,000 -10,000
2017 Shield Row Primary Academy 751,000 752,000 752,000 751,000 775,000 776,000 773,000 761,000 -24,000 -24,000 -21,000 -10,000
2018 Dene House Primary Academy 1,175,000 1,181,000 1,184,000 1,191,000 1,189,000 1,199,000 1,202,000 1,208,000 -15,000 -18,000 -19,000 -17,000
2019 South Hetton Primary Academy 854,000 854,000 854,000 855,000 881,000 874,000 871,000 866,000 -28,000 -20,000 -17,000 -11,000
2020 St. Joseph's RC, N/A Primary Academy 587,000 586,000 586,000 593,000 587,000 590,000 594,000 600,000 -               -4,000 -8,000 -8,000
2021 Sacriston Primary Academy 838,000 839,000 839,000 840,000 865,000 867,000 865,000 858,000 -27,000 -28,000 -25,000 -18,000
2023 New Seaham Primary Academy 980,000 980,000 980,000 982,000 994,000 995,000 995,000 995,000 -14,000 -15,000 -15,000 -13,000
2043 Westlea Primary Maintained 983,000 984,000 984,000 984,000 1,015,000 1,017,000 1,012,000 999,000 -32,000 -33,000 -28,000 -14,000
2105 Edmondsley Primary Maintained 676,000 677,000 677,000 679,000 685,000 686,000 687,000 688,000 -9,000 -9,000 -10,000 -8,000
2107 Lumley Jun. Primary Maintained 640,000 640,000 639,000 639,000 651,000 649,000 648,000 647,000 -11,000 -9,000 -9,000 -8,000
2108 Lumley Inf. Primary Maintained 594,000 593,000 592,000 593,000 601,000 601,000 600,000 600,000 -8,000 -8,000 -8,000 -7,000
2114 West Pelton Primary Maintained 346,000 349,000 350,000 355,000 346,000 350,000 353,000 358,000 -               -1,000 -3,000 -3,000
2116 Nettlesworth Primary Maintained 430,000 431,000 432,000 434,000 435,000 437,000 437,000 438,000 -5,000 -5,000 -5,000 -5,000
2125 Red Rose Primary Maintained 1,017,000 1,015,000 1,016,000 1,021,000 1,025,000 1,030,000 1,032,000 1,035,000 -7,000 -15,000 -15,000 -14,000
2126 Woodlea Primary Maintained 814,000 815,000 815,000 815,000 840,000 837,000 833,000 826,000 -26,000 -22,000 -19,000 -11,000
2133 Cestria Primary Maintained 1,473,000 1,473,000 1,472,000 1,469,000 1,506,000 1,498,000 1,496,000 1,490,000 -33,000 -25,000 -24,000 -21,000
2136 Ouston Primary Academy 917,000 920,000 921,000 925,000 930,000 934,000 935,000 937,000 -13,000 -14,000 -14,000 -12,000
2146 Bournmoor Primary Maintained 511,000 512,000 512,000 511,000 526,000 522,000 520,000 517,000 -15,000 -10,000 -8,000 -6,000
2185 Cotherstone Primary Maintained 285,000 286,000 287,000 288,000 285,000 286,000 287,000 290,000 -               -               -               -2,000
2205 Beamish Primary Maintained 387,000 389,000 390,000 393,000 390,000 394,000 395,000 397,000 -3,000 -5,000 -5,000 -4,000
2208 Collierley Primary Maintained 636,000 636,000 636,000 634,000 656,000 656,000 651,000 642,000 -19,000 -19,000 -15,000 -8,000
2210 Catchgate Primary Maintained 1,060,000 1,060,000 1,060,000 1,058,000 1,095,000 1,090,000 1,084,000 1,071,000 -34,000 -29,000 -23,000 -14,000
2212 Annfield Plain Jun. Primary Maintained 607,000 607,000 607,000 607,000 625,000 625,000 624,000 622,000 -18,000 -18,000 -17,000 -15,000

 Maximum Transfer  No transfer 

 Comparison of net formula funding after de-delegation - 2019-
20 with maximum transfer to HNB and with no transfer to HNB 

 Reduction in Funding Through Transfer 

Cabinet 180914 Appendix 3.xlsx
09/10/18 1 of 8

P
age 45



Cabinet, 17 October 2018, 
Mainstream Primary and Secondary Formula Funding 2019-20 and Transfer to High Needs Block

Appendix 3 - Impact of Transfer to High Needs Block

 Option 1 NFF 
 Option 2 

Transitional 
Formula 

 Option 3 
Transitional - 
slower rate 

 Option 4 
Updated 1819 

Formula 
 Option 1 NFF 

 Option 2 
Transitional 

Formula 

 Option 3 
Transitional - 
slower rate 

 Option 4 
Updated 1819 

Formula 

 Option 1 
NFF 

 Option 2 
Transitional 

Formula 

 Option 3 
Transitional - 
slower rate 

 Option 4 
Updated 

1819 
Formula 

 Totals 300,612,000   300,130,000   299,971,000   300,523,000   304,591,000   304,591,000   304,591,000   304,591,000   -3,979,000   -4,462,000   -4,620,000   -4,068,000   

 Maximum Transfer  No transfer 

 Comparison of net formula funding after de-delegation - 2019-
20 with maximum transfer to HNB and with no transfer to HNB 

 Reduction in Funding Through Transfer 

2213 Annfield Plain Inf. Primary Maintained 578,000 578,000 577,000 576,000 595,000 592,000 589,000 583,000 -17,000 -14,000 -11,000 -7,000
2217 East Stanley Primary Maintained 941,000 942,000 942,000 940,000 972,000 971,000 965,000 953,000 -31,000 -29,000 -23,000 -12,000
2225 South Stanley Inf. Primary Academy 600,000 600,000 600,000 600,000 611,000 609,000 608,000 607,000 -12,000 -9,000 -8,000 -7,000
2226 South Stanley Jun. Primary Academy 848,000 847,000 847,000 846,000 875,000 873,000 868,000 857,000 -27,000 -26,000 -21,000 -11,000
2232 Burnside Primary Maintained 915,000 915,000 915,000 913,000 945,000 941,000 936,000 925,000 -30,000 -26,000 -21,000 -12,000
2233 Bloemfontein Primary Academy 729,000 729,000 729,000 727,000 752,000 750,000 745,000 736,000 -23,000 -21,000 -17,000 -9,000
2234 Burnopfield Primary Maintained 1,293,000 1,293,000 1,293,000 1,293,000 1,337,000 1,338,000 1,336,000 1,332,000 -43,000 -45,000 -43,000 -39,000
2257 Shotley Bridge Primary Maintained 1,434,000 1,402,000 1,402,000 1,401,000 1,450,000 1,450,000 1,443,000 1,427,000 -16,000 -48,000 -41,000 -26,000
2259 Leadgate Primary Maintained 832,000 832,000 832,000 832,000 859,000 859,000 858,000 855,000 -26,000 -27,000 -25,000 -23,000
2261 Burnhope Primary Maintained 415,000 415,000 415,000 414,000 426,000 425,000 423,000 418,000 -11,000 -11,000 -9,000 -4,000
2266 Castleside Primary Maintained 567,000 567,000 567,000 571,000 568,000 573,000 574,000 578,000 -               -6,000 -7,000 -7,000
2269 The Grove Primary Maintained 697,000 698,000 698,000 698,000 719,000 720,000 716,000 706,000 -21,000 -22,000 -18,000 -9,000
2272 Delves Lane Primary Maintained 1,144,000 1,145,000 1,146,000 1,146,000 1,182,000 1,184,000 1,182,000 1,161,000 -38,000 -39,000 -37,000 -16,000
2276 Moorside Primary Maintained 527,000 526,000 526,000 527,000 533,000 533,000 533,000 533,000 -6,000 -7,000 -7,000 -6,000
2277 Consett Jun. Primary Maintained 817,000 816,000 816,000 815,000 843,000 837,000 833,000 826,000 -26,000 -21,000 -18,000 -11,000
2278 Consett Inf. Primary Maintained 677,000 674,000 674,000 674,000 686,000 684,000 683,000 682,000 -9,000 -9,000 -9,000 -8,000
2301 Hamsterley Primary Maintained 271,000 271,000 272,000 274,000 271,000 271,000 274,000 278,000 -               -               -2,000 -4,000
2302 Hunwick Primary Maintained 642,000 644,000 644,000 647,000 651,000 653,000 653,000 655,000 -8,000 -9,000 -9,000 -8,000
2307 Tow Law Primary Maintained 502,000 500,000 499,000 503,000 502,000 502,000 504,000 508,000 -               -2,000 -4,000 -5,000
2308 Crook Primary Maintained 1,505,000 1,504,000 1,504,000 1,504,000 1,556,000 1,557,000 1,553,000 1,538,000 -51,000 -53,000 -48,000 -34,000
2310 Hartside Primary Academy 879,000 879,000 879,000 877,000 908,000 898,000 895,000 889,000 -28,000 -19,000 -16,000 -12,000
2311 Peases West Primary Maintained 467,000 468,000 468,000 467,000 480,000 478,000 476,000 472,000 -13,000 -10,000 -8,000 -5,000
2313 Stanley (Crook) Primary Maintained 613,000 613,000 613,000 611,000 626,000 622,000 621,000 619,000 -13,000 -10,000 -8,000 -7,000
2316 Sunnybrow Primary Maintained 487,000 486,000 486,000 488,000 487,000 486,000 486,000 494,000 -               -               -               -5,000
2318 Howden-le-Wear Primary Maintained 588,000 587,000 587,000 584,000 605,000 598,000 595,000 591,000 -17,000 -11,000 -9,000 -7,000
2319 Frosterley Primary Maintained 267,000 267,000 267,000 268,000 267,000 267,000 268,000 270,000 -               -               -1,000 -2,000
2321 Rookhope Primary Maintained 183,000 186,000 187,000 189,000 183,000 186,000 187,000 189,000 -               -               -               -               
2322 St. John's Chapel Primary Maintained 191,000 194,000 195,000 197,000 191,000 194,000 195,000 197,000 -               -               -               -               
2324 Wearhead Primary Maintained 208,000 211,000 212,000 215,000 208,000 211,000 212,000 217,000 -               -               -               -1,000
2326 Willington Primary Maintained 930,000 935,000 937,000 938,000 943,000 949,000 951,000 955,000 -13,000 -14,000 -14,000 -16,000
2328 Witton-le-Wear Primary Maintained 429,000 428,000 428,000 428,000 429,000 428,000 428,000 430,000 -               -               -               -2,000
2329 Wolsingham Primary Maintained 731,000 732,000 734,000 739,000 736,000 742,000 745,000 749,000 -5,000 -10,000 -10,000 -9,000
2330 Oakley Cross Primary Maintained 686,000 686,000 686,000 684,000 707,000 707,000 704,000 692,000 -21,000 -21,000 -18,000 -8,000

Cabinet 180914 Appendix 3.xlsx
09/10/18 2 of 8

P
age 46



Cabinet, 17 October 2018, 
Mainstream Primary and Secondary Formula Funding 2019-20 and Transfer to High Needs Block

Appendix 3 - Impact of Transfer to High Needs Block

 Option 1 NFF 
 Option 2 

Transitional 
Formula 

 Option 3 
Transitional - 
slower rate 

 Option 4 
Updated 1819 

Formula 
 Option 1 NFF 

 Option 2 
Transitional 

Formula 

 Option 3 
Transitional - 
slower rate 

 Option 4 
Updated 1819 

Formula 

 Option 1 
NFF 

 Option 2 
Transitional 

Formula 

 Option 3 
Transitional - 
slower rate 

 Option 4 
Updated 

1819 
Formula 

 Totals 300,612,000   300,130,000   299,971,000   300,523,000   304,591,000   304,591,000   304,591,000   304,591,000   -3,979,000   -4,462,000   -4,620,000   -4,068,000   

 Maximum Transfer  No transfer 

 Comparison of net formula funding after de-delegation - 2019-
20 with maximum transfer to HNB and with no transfer to HNB 

 Reduction in Funding Through Transfer 

2351 Byers Green Primary Maintained 429,000 432,000 433,000 437,000 433,000 437,000 439,000 442,000 -3,000 -5,000 -5,000 -4,000
2357 Bluebell Meadow Primary Maintained 1,277,000 1,277,000 1,276,000 1,273,000 1,320,000 1,321,000 1,313,000 1,290,000 -43,000 -44,000 -37,000 -17,000
2361 Kirk Merrington Primary Maintained 574,000 573,000 573,000 578,000 574,000 576,000 579,000 585,000 -               -3,000 -6,000 -7,000
2362 Cassop Primary Maintained 642,000 641,000 640,000 640,000 653,000 650,000 649,000 647,000 -11,000 -9,000 -9,000 -8,000
2368 Ferryhill Station Primary Maintained 432,000 433,000 433,000 433,000 444,000 444,000 444,000 438,000 -12,000 -12,000 -11,000 -5,000
2370 West Cornforth Primary Maintained 792,000 794,000 794,000 801,000 792,000 798,000 802,000 811,000 -               -4,000 -8,000 -10,000
2372 Coxhoe Primary Maintained 1,162,000 1,161,000 1,160,000 1,155,000 1,192,000 1,181,000 1,178,000 1,170,000 -30,000 -21,000 -18,000 -16,000
2374 Kelloe Primary Maintained 509,000 507,000 506,000 503,000 523,000 520,000 517,000 509,000 -14,000 -14,000 -11,000 -5,000
2379 Tudhoe Colliery Primary Academy 828,000 828,000 828,000 828,000 855,000 852,000 850,000 845,000 -27,000 -24,000 -22,000 -17,000
2385 Dean Bank Primary Maintained 808,000 807,000 806,000 807,000 819,000 818,000 818,000 818,000 -11,000 -12,000 -12,000 -10,000
2388 Bowburn Jun. Primary Maintained 835,000 833,000 832,000 830,000 862,000 858,000 852,000 841,000 -27,000 -25,000 -20,000 -11,000
2389 Bowburn Inf. Primary Maintained 572,000 574,000 574,000 574,000 582,000 581,000 581,000 581,000 -10,000 -8,000 -8,000 -7,000
2394 Ox Close Primary Maintained 1,109,000 1,109,000 1,108,000 1,105,000 1,134,000 1,127,000 1,125,000 1,120,000 -25,000 -18,000 -17,000 -15,000
2397 Cleves Cross Primary Academy 853,000 853,000 853,000 851,000 881,000 881,000 878,000 862,000 -28,000 -28,000 -25,000 -11,000
2399 Fishburn Primary Maintained 641,000 640,000 640,000 641,000 649,000 649,000 649,000 648,000 -8,000 -9,000 -9,000 -8,000
2400 Broom Cottages Primary Maintained 1,132,000 1,132,000 1,132,000 1,132,000 1,169,000 1,170,000 1,168,000 1,147,000 -37,000 -38,000 -36,000 -15,000
2401 Etherley Lane Primary Maintained 1,187,000 1,187,000 1,187,000 1,184,000 1,226,000 1,228,000 1,226,000 1,201,000 -40,000 -41,000 -39,000 -16,000
2409 Ramshaw Primary Maintained 369,000 370,000 371,000 375,000 369,000 370,000 371,000 378,000 -               -               -               -4,000
2410 Forest-of-Teesdale Primary Maintained 183,000 184,000 185,000 185,000 183,000 184,000 185,000 185,000 -               -               -               -               
2411 Aycliffe Village Primary Maintained 642,000 644,000 644,000 647,000 651,000 653,000 653,000 655,000 -8,000 -9,000 -9,000 -8,000
2413 Butterknowle Primary Maintained 286,000 283,000 282,000 280,000 286,000 283,000 282,000 280,000 -               -               -               -               
2417 Escomb Primary Maintained 841,000 841,000 841,000 838,000 861,000 855,000 853,000 849,000 -20,000 -14,000 -12,000 -11,000
2419 St. Helens Auckland Primary Maintained 766,000 765,000 765,000 756,000 790,000 790,000 787,000 766,000 -24,000 -24,000 -22,000 -9,000
2423 Thornhill Primary Maintained 890,000 890,000 892,000 898,000 896,000 903,000 905,000 910,000 -7,000 -13,000 -13,000 -12,000
2426 Toft Hill Primary Maintained 785,000 784,000 783,000 781,000 802,000 797,000 795,000 791,000 -17,000 -13,000 -12,000 -10,000
2428 Woodland Primary Maintained 257,000 258,000 259,000 260,000 257,000 258,000 259,000 262,000 -               -               -               -2,000
2430 Middleton-in -Teesdale Primary Maintained 501,000 502,000 503,000 508,000 501,000 507,000 509,000 513,000 -               -5,000 -6,000 -6,000
2433 Cockton Hill Jun. Primary Maintained 909,000 909,000 909,000 909,000 939,000 939,000 935,000 923,000 -29,000 -30,000 -26,000 -14,000
2434 Cockton Hill Inf. Primary Maintained 745,000 744,000 744,000 741,000 768,000 760,000 757,000 750,000 -23,000 -15,000 -12,000 -9,000
2438 Timothy Hackworth Primary Maintained 1,553,000 1,553,000 1,554,000 1,554,000 1,606,000 1,608,000 1,605,000 1,601,000 -53,000 -54,000 -52,000 -47,000
2440 Cockfield Primary Maintained 487,000 489,000 489,000 490,000 501,000 501,000 499,000 496,000 -14,000 -12,000 -10,000 -5,000
2442 Montalbo Primary Maintained 596,000 596,000 596,000 600,000 598,000 603,000 604,000 607,000 -1,000 -7,000 -8,000 -7,000
2453 New Brancepeth Primary Maintained 487,000 485,000 484,000 484,000 487,000 488,000 488,000 489,000 -               -3,000 -4,000 -5,000

Cabinet 180914 Appendix 3.xlsx
09/10/18 3 of 8

P
age 47



Cabinet, 17 October 2018, 
Mainstream Primary and Secondary Formula Funding 2019-20 and Transfer to High Needs Block

Appendix 3 - Impact of Transfer to High Needs Block

 Option 1 NFF 
 Option 2 

Transitional 
Formula 

 Option 3 
Transitional - 
slower rate 

 Option 4 
Updated 1819 

Formula 
 Option 1 NFF 

 Option 2 
Transitional 

Formula 

 Option 3 
Transitional - 
slower rate 

 Option 4 
Updated 1819 

Formula 

 Option 1 
NFF 

 Option 2 
Transitional 

Formula 

 Option 3 
Transitional - 
slower rate 

 Option 4 
Updated 

1819 
Formula 

 Totals 300,612,000   300,130,000   299,971,000   300,523,000   304,591,000   304,591,000   304,591,000   304,591,000   -3,979,000   -4,462,000   -4,620,000   -4,068,000   

 Maximum Transfer  No transfer 

 Comparison of net formula funding after de-delegation - 2019-
20 with maximum transfer to HNB and with no transfer to HNB 

 Reduction in Funding Through Transfer 

2455 Langley Moor Primary Maintained 753,000 755,000 756,000 759,000 763,000 766,000 767,000 769,000 -10,000 -11,000 -11,000 -10,000
2462 Witton Gilbert Primary Maintained 817,000 816,000 815,000 815,000 843,000 834,000 832,000 826,000 -26,000 -19,000 -16,000 -11,000
2470 Pittington Primary Maintained 731,000 730,000 729,000 728,000 744,000 741,000 739,000 737,000 -13,000 -10,000 -10,000 -9,000
2472 Ludworth Primary Maintained 412,000 413,000 413,000 410,000 423,000 419,000 417,000 414,000 -11,000 -6,000 -5,000 -4,000
2473 Sherburn Primary Maintained 708,000 709,000 709,000 709,000 730,000 731,000 730,000 718,000 -22,000 -22,000 -21,000 -9,000
2475 West Rainton Primary Maintained 595,000 595,000 595,000 595,000 611,000 606,000 605,000 602,000 -16,000 -11,000 -10,000 -7,000
2477 Bearpark Primary Maintained 553,000 552,000 551,000 547,000 569,000 568,000 563,000 554,000 -16,000 -16,000 -12,000 -6,000
2481 Neville's Cross Primary Maintained 998,000 997,000 996,000 996,000 1,014,000 1,012,000 1,011,000 1,010,000 -16,000 -15,000 -15,000 -13,000
2488 Newton Hall Inf. Primary Maintained 604,000 606,000 606,000 610,000 604,000 608,000 611,000 617,000 -               -3,000 -5,000 -7,000
2497 Esh Winning Primary Maintained 982,000 980,000 980,000 978,000 1,012,000 1,011,000 1,009,000 991,000 -30,000 -31,000 -29,000 -12,000
2498 Cheveley Park Primary Maintained 776,000 775,000 774,000 775,000 787,000 786,000 785,000 785,000 -10,000 -11,000 -11,000 -10,000
2499 Laurel Avenue Primary Maintained 523,000 521,000 521,000 521,000 523,000 521,000 522,000 527,000 -               -               -1,000 -6,000
2509 Hesleden Primary Maintained 489,000 490,000 490,000 490,000 489,000 490,000 490,000 490,000 -               -               -               -               
2516 Deaf Hill Primary Maintained 594,000 594,000 595,000 594,000 611,000 608,000 605,000 601,000 -18,000 -13,000 -11,000 -7,000
2523 Thornley Primary Maintained 810,000 809,000 809,000 808,000 835,000 827,000 824,000 818,000 -25,000 -17,000 -15,000 -10,000
2526 Wheatley Hill Primary Maintained 861,000 860,000 854,000 849,000 888,000 875,000 867,000 850,000 -27,000 -15,000 -13,000 -               
2528 Wingate Jun. Primary Maintained 801,000 801,000 801,000 796,000 827,000 827,000 826,000 806,000 -25,000 -26,000 -25,000 -10,000
2531 Wingate Inf. Primary Maintained 640,000 642,000 643,000 641,000 659,000 661,000 659,000 649,000 -19,000 -20,000 -16,000 -8,000
2532 Horden Cotsford Jun. Primary Maintained 583,000 584,000 584,000 589,000 585,000 590,000 592,000 596,000 -2,000 -6,000 -8,000 -7,000
2534 Horden Cotsford Inf. Primary Maintained 393,000 395,000 396,000 399,000 393,000 395,000 396,000 402,000 -               -               -               -4,000
2536 Shotton Primary Maintained 1,231,000 1,232,000 1,232,000 1,232,000 1,271,000 1,274,000 1,272,000 1,249,000 -41,000 -42,000 -40,000 -17,000
2540 Acre Rigg Inf. Primary Maintained 856,000 857,000 859,000 866,000 859,000 868,000 872,000 877,000 -3,000 -12,000 -13,000 -11,000
2563 Sedgefield Primary Maintained 724,000 724,000 724,000 730,000 724,000 730,000 733,000 740,000 -               -5,000 -9,000 -9,000
2593 Hardwick Primary Maintained 773,000 775,000 776,000 779,000 783,000 786,000 787,000 789,000 -10,000 -11,000 -11,000 -10,000
2704 Copeland Road Primary Maintained 656,000 657,000 657,000 657,000 676,000 677,000 674,000 665,000 -20,000 -20,000 -17,000 -8,000
2705 St. Andrew's Primary Maintained 623,000 619,000 618,000 616,000 634,000 629,000 627,000 624,000 -11,000 -10,000 -9,000 -9,000
2706 Byerley Park Primary Maintained 821,000 823,000 825,000 831,000 828,000 835,000 837,000 841,000 -7,000 -12,000 -12,000 -11,000
2708 Horndale Inf. Primary Maintained 469,000 471,000 472,000 476,000 472,000 477,000 478,000 482,000 -3,000 -6,000 -6,000 -5,000
2729 Langley Park Primary Maintained 662,000 663,000 663,000 663,000 682,000 679,000 677,000 671,000 -20,000 -17,000 -14,000 -8,000
2733 Yohden Primary Maintained 764,000 764,000 764,000 763,000 780,000 776,000 775,000 772,000 -16,000 -12,000 -11,000 -10,000
2734 Howletch Lane Primary Maintained 1,482,000 1,482,000 1,482,000 1,477,000 1,521,000 1,509,000 1,505,000 1,498,000 -38,000 -27,000 -23,000 -21,000
2737 Blackhall Primary Maintained 921,000 922,000 922,000 923,000 947,000 941,000 939,000 936,000 -25,000 -19,000 -17,000 -13,000
2742 Vane Road Primary Maintained 1,435,000 1,435,000 1,435,000 1,434,000 1,484,000 1,480,000 1,472,000 1,454,000 -49,000 -46,000 -37,000 -20,000

Cabinet 180914 Appendix 3.xlsx
09/10/18 4 of 8

P
age 48



Cabinet, 17 October 2018, 
Mainstream Primary and Secondary Formula Funding 2019-20 and Transfer to High Needs Block

Appendix 3 - Impact of Transfer to High Needs Block

 Option 1 NFF 
 Option 2 

Transitional 
Formula 

 Option 3 
Transitional - 
slower rate 

 Option 4 
Updated 1819 

Formula 
 Option 1 NFF 

 Option 2 
Transitional 

Formula 

 Option 3 
Transitional - 
slower rate 

 Option 4 
Updated 1819 

Formula 

 Option 1 
NFF 

 Option 2 
Transitional 

Formula 

 Option 3 
Transitional - 
slower rate 

 Option 4 
Updated 

1819 
Formula 

 Totals 300,612,000   300,130,000   299,971,000   300,523,000   304,591,000   304,591,000   304,591,000   304,591,000   -3,979,000   -4,462,000   -4,620,000   -4,068,000   

 Maximum Transfer  No transfer 

 Comparison of net formula funding after de-delegation - 2019-
20 with maximum transfer to HNB and with no transfer to HNB 

 Reduction in Funding Through Transfer 

2743 Sugar Hill Primary Maintained 1,511,000 1,511,000 1,511,000 1,509,000 1,562,000 1,564,000 1,555,000 1,530,000 -51,000 -53,000 -44,000 -21,000
2744 Pelton Roseberry Primary Maintained 824,000 822,000 822,000 818,000 850,000 842,000 837,000 828,000 -26,000 -20,000 -16,000 -10,000
2745 Bullion Lane Primary Maintained 1,125,000 1,126,000 1,126,000 1,126,000 1,149,000 1,145,000 1,144,000 1,141,000 -23,000 -19,000 -17,000 -15,000
2746 Easington Colliery Primary Maintained 2,026,000 2,027,000 2,027,000 2,027,000 2,096,000 2,099,000 2,096,000 2,057,000 -70,000 -72,000 -69,000 -29,000
2747 Gilesgate Primary Maintained 804,000 805,000 805,000 806,000 823,000 820,000 819,000 818,000 -19,000 -15,000 -14,000 -12,000
2748 Finchale Primary Maintained 774,000 777,000 778,000 782,000 784,000 788,000 790,000 792,000 -10,000 -11,000 -11,000 -10,000
2749 Benfieldside Primary Maintained 915,000 916,000 916,000 917,000 944,000 945,000 944,000 935,000 -29,000 -29,000 -28,000 -18,000
2750 King Street Primary Maintained 884,000 884,000 885,000 883,000 912,000 906,000 903,000 895,000 -28,000 -22,000 -18,000 -12,000
2751 Framwellgate Moor Primary Maintained 885,000 883,000 883,000 882,000 911,000 902,000 899,000 893,000 -26,000 -19,000 -16,000 -11,000
2943 Newker Primary Maintained 1,468,000 1,468,000 1,468,000 1,467,000 1,497,000 1,493,000 1,491,000 1,487,000 -29,000 -24,000 -23,000 -20,000
3031 Chester-le-Street CE Primary Maintained 1,207,000 1,208,000 1,208,000 1,208,000 1,247,000 1,249,000 1,247,000 1,228,000 -40,000 -41,000 -39,000 -20,000
3063 Ebchester CE Primary Maintained 413,000 413,000 413,000 416,000 413,000 415,000 417,000 420,000 -               -2,000 -4,000 -4,000
3085 St. Stephen's CE Primary Maintained 880,000 880,000 880,000 880,000 894,000 895,000 895,000 896,000 -14,000 -15,000 -15,000 -16,000
3087 Stanhope Barrington CE Primary Maintained 545,000 544,000 544,000 548,000 545,000 549,000 550,000 554,000 -               -4,000 -7,000 -6,000
3121 Green Lane CE Primary Maintained 825,000 823,000 822,000 823,000 836,000 835,000 834,000 833,000 -11,000 -12,000 -12,000 -11,000
3123 St. Anne's CE Primary Maintained 857,000 857,000 856,000 854,000 878,000 871,000 869,000 865,000 -21,000 -15,000 -13,000 -11,000
3130 Evenwood CE Primary Maintained 445,000 445,000 445,000 446,000 445,000 445,000 445,000 451,000 -               -               -               -5,000
3131 Gainford CE Primary Maintained 376,000 376,000 376,000 379,000 376,000 378,000 380,000 383,000 -               -2,000 -4,000 -4,000
3134 Ingleton CE Primary Maintained 343,000 343,000 344,000 346,000 343,000 345,000 346,000 349,000 -               -1,000 -3,000 -3,000
3141 Staindrop CE Primary Maintained 668,000 670,000 671,000 673,000 676,000 679,000 680,000 682,000 -9,000 -9,000 -9,000 -8,000
3161 Belmont CE Primary Maintained 998,000 998,000 998,000 1,000,000 1,012,000 1,012,000 1,013,000 1,013,000 -14,000 -15,000 -15,000 -13,000
3165 St. Oswald's CE Primary Maintained 507,000 507,000 507,000 512,000 507,000 509,000 512,000 518,000 -               -2,000 -5,000 -6,000
3167 Shincliffe CE Primary Maintained 758,000 758,000 760,000 766,000 762,000 769,000 771,000 776,000 -4,000 -11,000 -11,000 -10,000
3168 St. Margaret's CE Primary Maintained 1,504,000 1,462,000 1,419,000 1,419,000 1,504,000 1,462,000 1,419,000 1,419,000 -               -               -               -               
3182 Easington CE Primary Maintained 548,000 546,000 545,000 549,000 548,000 546,000 548,000 555,000 -               -               -3,000 -6,000
3183 Hutton Henry CE Primary Maintained 379,000 379,000 379,000 379,000 379,000 379,000 379,000 379,000 -               -               -               -               
3213 Lanchester EP Primary Maintained 1,248,000 1,248,000 1,248,000 1,243,000 1,290,000 1,282,000 1,275,000 1,260,000 -42,000 -34,000 -27,000 -17,000
3300 St. Cuthbert's RC, New Seaham Primary Maintained 775,000 776,000 776,000 779,000 786,000 787,000 788,000 789,000 -11,000 -11,000 -11,000 -10,000
3301 St. Mary Magdalen RC Primary Maintained 1,082,000 1,086,000 1,087,000 1,091,000 1,098,000 1,102,000 1,104,000 1,106,000 -16,000 -17,000 -17,000 -15,000
3303 Bowes Hutchinson CE Primary Maintained 302,000 301,000 301,000 300,000 302,000 301,000 301,000 300,000 -               -               -               -               
3343 St. Cuthbert's RC, Ch-le-St Primary Maintained 749,000 750,000 752,000 757,000 756,000 761,000 763,000 766,000 -7,000 -11,000 -11,000 -10,000
3344 St. Bede's RC, Sacriston Primary Maintained 433,000 433,000 433,000 438,000 433,000 434,000 437,000 444,000 -               -1,000 -4,000 -6,000
3346 St. Benet's RC Primary Maintained 776,000 776,000 776,000 780,000 776,000 783,000 785,000 791,000 -               -7,000 -10,000 -10,000

Cabinet 180914 Appendix 3.xlsx
09/10/18 5 of 8

P
age 49



Cabinet, 17 October 2018, 
Mainstream Primary and Secondary Formula Funding 2019-20 and Transfer to High Needs Block

Appendix 3 - Impact of Transfer to High Needs Block

 Option 1 NFF 
 Option 2 

Transitional 
Formula 

 Option 3 
Transitional - 
slower rate 

 Option 4 
Updated 1819 

Formula 
 Option 1 NFF 

 Option 2 
Transitional 

Formula 

 Option 3 
Transitional - 
slower rate 

 Option 4 
Updated 1819 

Formula 

 Option 1 
NFF 

 Option 2 
Transitional 

Formula 

 Option 3 
Transitional - 
slower rate 

 Option 4 
Updated 

1819 
Formula 

 Totals 300,612,000   300,130,000   299,971,000   300,523,000   304,591,000   304,591,000   304,591,000   304,591,000   -3,979,000   -4,462,000   -4,620,000   -4,068,000   

 Maximum Transfer  No transfer 

 Comparison of net formula funding after de-delegation - 2019-
20 with maximum transfer to HNB and with no transfer to HNB 

 Reduction in Funding Through Transfer 

3381 St. Joseph's RC, Stanley Primary Maintained 856,000 856,000 856,000 853,000 883,000 877,000 873,000 864,000 -28,000 -22,000 -17,000 -11,000
3382 St. Patrick's RC, Dipton Primary Maintained 700,000 703,000 705,000 709,000 708,000 713,000 715,000 718,000 -8,000 -10,000 -10,000 -9,000
3384 St. Mary's RC, South Moor Primary Maintained 621,000 626,000 627,000 631,000 629,000 634,000 636,000 640,000 -8,000 -9,000 -9,000 -9,000
3401 St. Mary's RC , Blackhill Primary Maintained 809,000 809,000 809,000 809,000 835,000 828,000 825,000 819,000 -26,000 -19,000 -16,000 -10,000
3403 St. Pius X RC Primary Maintained 461,000 462,000 462,000 467,000 461,000 466,000 468,000 472,000 -               -5,000 -6,000 -5,000
3404 St. Patrick's RC, Consett Primary Maintained 1,367,000 1,351,000 1,351,000 1,347,000 1,397,000 1,389,000 1,381,000 1,365,000 -30,000 -38,000 -30,000 -19,000
3406 Esh CE Primary Maintained 429,000 429,000 429,000 429,000 429,000 429,000 429,000 431,000 -               -               -               -3,000
3407 St. Michael's RC, Esh Laude Primary Maintained 703,000 703,000 703,000 704,000 713,000 713,000 713,000 713,000 -9,000 -10,000 -10,000 -9,000
3409 Our Lady & St. Joseph's RC Primary Maintained 540,000 543,000 545,000 546,000 547,000 551,000 552,000 555,000 -7,000 -7,000 -7,000 -8,000
3411 Bishop Ian Ramsey CE Primary Maintained 781,000 781,000 779,000 778,000 796,000 792,000 791,000 788,000 -16,000 -11,000 -11,000 -10,000
3413 All Saints' RC Primary Maintained 679,000 678,000 678,000 679,000 688,000 688,000 688,000 688,000 -9,000 -10,000 -10,000 -8,000
3421 St. Cuthbert's RC, Crook Primary Maintained 802,000 802,000 802,000 801,000 828,000 819,000 817,000 811,000 -25,000 -17,000 -14,000 -10,000
3425 Our Lady & St. Thomas RC Primary Maintained 533,000 533,000 532,000 537,000 533,000 536,000 538,000 543,000 -               -3,000 -6,000 -6,000
3441 St. Michael's CE Primary Maintained 520,000 518,000 518,000 523,000 520,000 520,000 523,000 529,000 -               -2,000 -5,000 -6,000
3442 St. Williams RC Primary Maintained 529,000 529,000 529,000 534,000 529,000 529,000 533,000 541,000 -               -               -4,000 -6,000
3444 St. Charles' RC, Tudhoe Primary Maintained 841,000 841,000 842,000 844,000 852,000 854,000 854,000 855,000 -12,000 -12,000 -13,000 -11,000
3461 St. Mary's RC, Barnard Castle Primary Maintained 442,000 442,000 442,000 442,000 442,000 442,000 442,000 445,000 -               -               -               -3,000
3462 St. Wilfrid's RC Primary Maintained 908,000 908,000 908,000 910,000 921,000 922,000 922,000 922,000 -13,000 -14,000 -14,000 -12,000
3465 St. Chad's RC Primary Maintained 432,000 433,000 434,000 436,000 432,000 435,000 437,000 441,000 -               -2,000 -3,000 -5,000
3469 St. Joseph's RC, Coundon Primary Maintained 560,000 558,000 558,000 562,000 560,000 564,000 566,000 569,000 -               -6,000 -8,000 -7,000
3470 St. Mary's RC, N/A Primary Maintained 805,000 805,000 805,000 804,000 831,000 824,000 821,000 815,000 -26,000 -19,000 -16,000 -10,000
3472 St. Francis CE Jun. Primary Maintained 583,000 583,000 583,000 585,000 591,000 591,000 591,000 592,000 -8,000 -8,000 -8,000 -7,000
3481 St. Patrick's RC, Langley Moor Primary Maintained 420,000 421,000 421,000 423,000 420,000 421,000 421,000 428,000 -               -               -               -4,000
3483 Our Lady Queen of Martyrs' RC Primary Maintained 420,000 422,000 423,000 426,000 423,000 427,000 428,000 431,000 -3,000 -5,000 -5,000 -4,000
3485 St. Hild's College CE Primary Maintained 762,000 762,000 762,000 764,000 773,000 773,000 774,000 774,000 -10,000 -11,000 -11,000 -10,000
3486 St. Godric's RC, Durham Primary Maintained 757,000 758,000 758,000 764,000 760,000 767,000 769,000 774,000 -3,000 -9,000 -11,000 -10,000
3488 St. Joseph's RC, Ushaw Moor Primary Maintained 478,000 478,000 478,000 483,000 478,000 478,000 480,000 488,000 -               -               -2,000 -5,000
3489 St. Joseph's RC, Durham Primary Maintained 599,000 601,000 603,000 607,000 605,000 610,000 611,000 614,000 -7,000 -8,000 -8,000 -7,000
3491 Blue Coat CE Jun. Primary Maintained 858,000 855,000 856,000 859,000 866,000 868,000 869,000 870,000 -8,000 -13,000 -13,000 -11,000
3492 St. Thomas More RC Primary Maintained 423,000 423,000 423,000 423,000 423,000 423,000 423,000 426,000 -               -               -               -3,000
3501 St. Joseph's RC, Murton Primary Maintained 629,000 629,000 629,000 635,000 629,000 632,000 636,000 643,000 -               -3,000 -7,000 -8,000
3502 St. Godric's RC, Thornley Primary Maintained 468,000 470,000 470,000 471,000 468,000 471,000 473,000 476,000 -               -2,000 -3,000 -5,000
3504 Our Lady of Lourdes RC Primary Maintained 703,000 702,000 701,000 700,000 720,000 714,000 712,000 708,000 -17,000 -12,000 -11,000 -9,000

Cabinet 180914 Appendix 3.xlsx
09/10/18 6 of 8

P
age 50



Cabinet, 17 October 2018, 
Mainstream Primary and Secondary Formula Funding 2019-20 and Transfer to High Needs Block

Appendix 3 - Impact of Transfer to High Needs Block

 Option 1 NFF 
 Option 2 

Transitional 
Formula 

 Option 3 
Transitional - 
slower rate 

 Option 4 
Updated 1819 

Formula 
 Option 1 NFF 

 Option 2 
Transitional 

Formula 

 Option 3 
Transitional - 
slower rate 

 Option 4 
Updated 1819 

Formula 

 Option 1 
NFF 

 Option 2 
Transitional 

Formula 

 Option 3 
Transitional - 
slower rate 

 Option 4 
Updated 

1819 
Formula 

 Totals 300,612,000   300,130,000   299,971,000   300,523,000   304,591,000   304,591,000   304,591,000   304,591,000   -3,979,000   -4,462,000   -4,620,000   -4,068,000   

 Maximum Transfer  No transfer 

 Comparison of net formula funding after de-delegation - 2019-
20 with maximum transfer to HNB and with no transfer to HNB 

 Reduction in Funding Through Transfer 

3505 St. Mary's RC, Wingate Primary Maintained 344,000 343,000 342,000 342,000 344,000 343,000 342,000 342,000 -               -               -               -               
3506 St. Joseph's RC, Blackhall Primary Maintained 417,000 415,000 414,000 413,000 417,000 415,000 414,000 415,000 -               -               -               -2,000
3507 Our Lady Star of the Sea RC Primary Maintained 548,000 549,000 549,000 552,000 548,000 549,000 551,000 559,000 -               -               -2,000 -6,000
3510 Our Lady of the Rosary RC Primary Maintained 1,139,000 1,140,000 1,140,000 1,136,000 1,169,000 1,160,000 1,157,000 1,152,000 -29,000 -21,000 -18,000 -16,000
3511 Blessed John Duckett RC Primary Maintained 347,000 349,000 350,000 351,000 347,000 349,000 350,000 351,000 -               -               -               -               
3513 St. John's CE Shildon Primary Maintained 960,000 960,000 963,000 972,000 961,000 973,000 977,000 985,000 -               -13,000 -15,000 -13,000
3516 Prince Bishops Primary Maintained 877,000 878,000 878,000 886,000 877,000 879,000 886,000 898,000 -               -1,000 -7,000 -11,000
3517 Ribbon Primary Academy 1,954,000 1,953,000 1,953,000 1,946,000 2,021,000 1,998,000 1,990,000 1,975,000 -67,000 -45,000 -37,000 -28,000
3518 Woodham Burn Primary Maintained 970,000 971,000 971,000 971,000 1,001,000 997,000 993,000 986,000 -31,000 -26,000 -22,000 -15,000
3519 Silver Tree Primary Maintained 792,000 792,000 791,000 791,000 805,000 803,000 803,000 801,000 -14,000 -11,000 -11,000 -10,000
3520 Seaview Primary Maintained 1,348,000 1,347,000 1,347,000 1,350,000 1,365,000 1,367,000 1,368,000 1,369,000 -17,000 -20,000 -21,000 -19,000
3522 Tanfield Lea Primary Maintained 1,153,000 1,153,000 1,153,000 1,153,000 1,191,000 1,192,000 1,190,000 1,169,000 -38,000 -39,000 -37,000 -16,000
3523 Woodhouse Primary Maintained 997,000 997,000 997,000 997,000 1,000,000 1,002,000 1,003,000 1,005,000 -3,000 -5,000 -6,000 -8,000
3524 Seaham Trinity Primary Maintained 1,572,000 1,572,000 1,572,000 1,567,000 1,614,000 1,602,000 1,598,000 1,589,000 -43,000 -30,000 -26,000 -22,000
3525 Brandon Primary Maintained 1,087,000 1,087,000 1,087,000 1,086,000 1,122,000 1,120,000 1,114,000 1,100,000 -34,000 -33,000 -27,000 -14,000
3526 Greenland Primary Academy 1,443,000 1,443,000 1,442,000 1,441,000 1,493,000 1,492,000 1,482,000 1,461,000 -49,000 -50,000 -40,000 -20,000
3527 Shotton Hall  Primary Maintained 1,434,000 1,434,000 1,434,000 1,434,000 1,482,000 1,473,000 1,469,000 1,462,000 -48,000 -39,000 -35,000 -28,000
4000 North Durham Second. Academy 4,958,000 4,959,000 4,959,000 4,982,000 4,958,000 4,984,000 5,009,000 5,057,000 -               -24,000 -50,000 -75,000
4001 Consett Second. Academy 6,432,000 6,359,000 6,335,000 6,334,000 6,538,000 6,467,000 6,443,000 6,393,000 -105,000 -108,000 -107,000 -59,000
4006 UTC South Durham Second. Academy 988,000 996,000 999,000 1,007,000 988,000 996,000 999,000 1,020,000 -               -               -               -13,000
4007 Teesdale Second. Academy 2,416,000 2,404,000 2,397,000 2,390,000 2,459,000 2,443,000 2,437,000 2,425,000 -43,000 -39,000 -40,000 -35,000
4008 Staindrop  Second. Academy 2,461,000 2,478,000 2,488,000 2,498,000 2,488,000 2,519,000 2,529,000 2,548,000 -27,000 -40,000 -41,000 -49,000
4019 Seaham High Second. Maintained 5,793,000 5,791,000 5,790,000 5,789,000 5,793,000 5,791,000 5,790,000 5,844,000 -               -               -               -55,000
4047 Park View  Second. Academy 5,829,000 5,829,000 5,828,000 5,839,000 5,892,000 5,912,000 5,918,000 5,927,000 -63,000 -83,000 -89,000 -88,000
4052 Fyndoune College Second. Maintained 1,705,000 1,708,000 1,709,000 1,711,000 1,705,000 1,708,000 1,709,000 1,718,000 -               -               -               -7,000
4054 The Hermitage Second. Academy 5,047,000 5,047,000 5,046,000 5,060,000 5,054,000 5,098,000 5,112,000 5,137,000 -7,000 -51,000 -65,000 -77,000
4099 Tanfield Second. Maintained 3,744,000 3,741,000 3,740,000 3,748,000 3,789,000 3,798,000 3,800,000 3,804,000 -45,000 -56,000 -60,000 -56,000
4128 Parkside Second. Academy 4,537,000 4,536,000 4,536,000 4,571,000 4,537,000 4,541,000 4,575,000 4,640,000 -               -5,000 -39,000 -69,000
4139 Wolsingham Second. Maintained 2,826,000 2,825,000 2,824,000 2,824,000 2,826,000 2,828,000 2,829,000 2,830,000 -               -3,000 -4,000 -6,000
4150 Ferryhill Second. Academy 3,882,000 3,881,000 3,880,000 3,900,000 3,882,000 3,915,000 3,930,000 3,959,000 -               -34,000 -50,000 -59,000
4154 Whitworth Park Second. Academy 4,207,000 4,209,000 4,217,000 4,241,000 4,253,000 4,281,000 4,289,000 4,305,000 -46,000 -71,000 -72,000 -64,000
4162 Bishop Barrington Second. Maintained 4,451,000 4,450,000 4,449,000 4,464,000 4,451,000 4,451,000 4,478,000 4,531,000 -               -1,000 -29,000 -67,000
4175 Woodham Second. Academy 3,786,000 3,792,000 3,795,000 3,807,000 3,845,000 3,856,000 3,860,000 3,865,000 -58,000 -64,000 -65,000 -57,000

Cabinet 180914 Appendix 3.xlsx
09/10/18 7 of 8

P
age 51



Cabinet, 17 October 2018, 
Mainstream Primary and Secondary Formula Funding 2019-20 and Transfer to High Needs Block

Appendix 3 - Impact of Transfer to High Needs Block

 Option 1 NFF 
 Option 2 

Transitional 
Formula 

 Option 3 
Transitional - 
slower rate 

 Option 4 
Updated 1819 

Formula 
 Option 1 NFF 

 Option 2 
Transitional 

Formula 

 Option 3 
Transitional - 
slower rate 

 Option 4 
Updated 1819 

Formula 

 Option 1 
NFF 

 Option 2 
Transitional 

Formula 

 Option 3 
Transitional - 
slower rate 

 Option 4 
Updated 

1819 
Formula 

 Totals 300,612,000   300,130,000   299,971,000   300,523,000   304,591,000   304,591,000   304,591,000   304,591,000   -3,979,000   -4,462,000   -4,620,000   -4,068,000   

 Maximum Transfer  No transfer 

 Comparison of net formula funding after de-delegation - 2019-
20 with maximum transfer to HNB and with no transfer to HNB 

 Reduction in Funding Through Transfer 

4176 Greenfield Second. Maintained 5,431,000 5,430,000 5,430,000 5,478,000 5,431,000 5,448,000 5,486,000 5,559,000 -               -18,000 -56,000 -82,000
4178 King James 1 Second. Academy 4,338,000 4,335,000 4,335,000 4,347,000 4,338,000 4,335,000 4,335,000 4,412,000 -               -               -1,000 -66,000
4185 Belmont Second. Maintained 4,099,000 4,099,000 4,099,000 4,102,000 4,099,000 4,123,000 4,137,000 4,163,000 -               -24,000 -38,000 -62,000
4190 Framwellgate Second. Academy 4,737,000 4,639,000 4,629,000 4,626,000 4,737,000 4,714,000 4,709,000 4,696,000 -               -75,000 -79,000 -70,000
4192 DCBC Second. Maintained 1,828,000 1,829,000 1,830,000 1,841,000 1,828,000 1,846,000 1,853,000 1,867,000 -               -16,000 -23,000 -26,000
4200 Johnston Second. Maintained 6,573,000 6,443,000 6,345,000 6,347,000 6,573,000 6,454,000 6,450,000 6,440,000 -               -12,000 -105,000 -93,000
4214 Dene Second. Maintained 3,870,000 3,870,000 3,870,000 3,880,000 3,870,000 3,870,000 3,870,000 3,938,000 -               -               -               -58,000
4215 Shotton Hall Second. Academy 7,118,000 7,118,000 7,118,000 7,185,000 7,118,000 7,196,000 7,226,000 7,285,000 -               -78,000 -109,000 -100,000
4218 Wellfield Second. Maintained 4,073,000 4,065,000 4,063,000 4,066,000 4,134,000 4,131,000 4,130,000 4,125,000 -61,000 -66,000 -67,000 -60,000
4231 Sedgefield Second. Maintained 5,779,000 5,777,000 5,776,000 5,786,000 5,855,000 5,859,000 5,860,000 5,860,000 -76,000 -83,000 -84,000 -75,000
4280 Easington Second. Academy 3,995,000 3,996,000 3,996,000 4,002,000 3,995,000 4,010,000 4,028,000 4,062,000 -               -15,000 -33,000 -60,000
4681  St John's RC Second. Academy 5,848,000 5,848,000 5,848,000 5,876,000 5,872,000 5,922,000 5,937,000 5,966,000 -24,000 -73,000 -89,000 -90,000
4691 St. Leonard's RC Second. Academy 5,609,000 5,493,000 5,479,000 5,473,000 5,609,000 5,580,000 5,573,000 5,557,000 -               -87,000 -94,000 -84,000
4693 St. Bede's RC, Peterlee Second. Maintained 2,679,000 2,679,000 2,679,000 2,704,000 2,679,000 2,686,000 2,706,000 2,744,000 -               -6,000 -26,000 -40,000
4694  St Bede's RC, Lanchester Second. Academy 5,876,000 5,840,000 5,829,000 5,828,000 5,967,000 5,939,000 5,929,000 5,908,000 -92,000 -99,000 -101,000 -80,000

Primary All 165,697,000 165,665,000 165,652,000 165,819,000 169,029,000 168,892,000 168,654,000 168,006,000 -3,332,000 -3,228,000 -3,003,000 -2,187,000
Second. All 134,915,000 134,465,000 134,319,000 134,704,000 135,562,000 135,699,000 135,937,000 136,585,000 -648,000 -1,234,000 -1,618,000 -1,881,000
Total All 300,612,000 300,130,000 299,971,000 300,523,000 304,591,000 304,591,000 304,591,000 304,591,000 -3,979,000 -4,462,000 -4,620,000 -4,068,000

Totals

Cabinet 180914 Appendix 3.xlsx
09/10/18 8 of 8

P
age 52



Cabinet, 17 October 2018, 
Mainstream Primary and Secondary Formula Funding 2019-20 and Transfer to High Needs Block

Appendix 4 - Formula Values and Allocations

 2019-20 options are with the maximum 
transfer to the HNB 

 2018-19 
formula 

 Option 1 NFF 
 Option 2 

Transitional 
Formula 

 Option 3 
Transitional - 
slower rate 

 Option 4 
Updated 1819 

Formula 
 2018-19 formula  Option 1 NFF 

 Option 2 
Transitional 

Formula 

 Option 3 
Transitional - 
slower rate 

 Option 4 
Updated 1819 

Formula 

 Pupil-led factors  £/pupil  £/pupil  £/pupil  £/pupil  £/pupil 
Basic amount per pupil (Primary) 2,786.85           2,777.51           2,761.71           2,756.64           2,752.50           36.53% 36.05% 35.90% 35.85% 35.73%
Basic amount per pupil (KS3) 3,726.61           3,905.56           3,787.49           3,748.94           3,680.67           18.99% 20.40% 19.81% 19.62% 19.23%
Basic amount per pupil (KS4) 4,806.59           4,434.53           4,587.55           4,637.86           4,747.34           14.82% 14.11% 14.62% 14.79% 15.11%
Deprivation - FSM (Primary) 147.61              444.89              293.25              243.58              145.79              0.39% 1.17% 0.77% 0.64% 0.38%
Deprivation - FSM (Secondary) 2,199.53           444.89              1,317.28           1,603.18           2,172.42           2.97% 0.62% 1.84% 2.24% 3.03%
Deprivation - FSM6 (Primary) 181.16              546.00              359.90              298.94              178.93              0.75% 2.23% 1.47% 1.22% 0.73%
Deprivation - FSM6 (Secondary) 263.35              793.72              523.19              434.57              260.11              0.72% 2.25% 1.48% 1.23% 0.74%
IDACI Band F (Primary) 359.20              581.39              466.22              428.51              354.78              0.62% 1.00% 0.80% 0.74% 0.61%
IDACI Band E (Primary) 437.54              819.00              622.59              558.26              432.14              0.83% 1.53% 1.17% 1.05% 0.81%
IDACI Band D (Primary) 542.71              424.67              480.45              498.74              536.02              0.81% 0.63% 0.71% 0.74% 0.79%
IDACI Band C (Primary) 617.68              606.67              607.70              608.06              610.07              0.64% 0.62% 0.62% 0.62% 0.63%
IDACI Band B (Primary) 725.12              394.33              556.51              609.67              716.18              0.75% 0.40% 0.57% 0.63% 0.73%
IDACI Band A (Primary) 1,166.59           566.22              861.67              958.51              1,152.21           0.85% 0.41% 0.62% 0.69% 0.82%
IDACI Band F (Secondary) 350.01              364.00              354.34              351.18              345.69              0.36% 0.38% 0.37% 0.37% 0.36%
IDACI Band E (Secondary) 439.72              520.72              476.46              461.97              434.30              0.51% 0.63% 0.58% 0.56% 0.52%
IDACI Band D (Secondary) 537.81              242.67              388.17              435.86              531.18              0.49% 0.23% 0.36% 0.41% 0.50%
IDACI Band C (Secondary) 609.07              394.33              498.59              532.77              601.56              0.37% 0.25% 0.31% 0.33% 0.37%
IDACI Band B (Secondary) 706.73              202.22              452.51              534.54              698.01              0.43% 0.13% 0.28% 0.33% 0.43%
IDACI Band A (Secondary) 1,114.13           293.22              700.75              834.30              1,100.40           0.46% 0.13% 0.30% 0.36% 0.47%
EAL (Primary) 172.77              520.72              343.24              285.10              170.64              0.04% 0.13% 0.08% 0.07% 0.04%
EAL (Secondary) 464.64              1,400.39           923.08              766.72              458.92              0.01% 0.04% 0.03% 0.02% 0.01%
Low Attainment (Primary) 692.72              700.42              691.42              688.50              684.18              2.33% 2.78% 2.75% 2.74% 2.72%
Low Attainment (Secondary) 757.12              1,567.22           1,151.39           1,015.18           747.79              1.16% 2.45% 1.80% 1.59% 1.17%
Minimum per-pupil funding (primary) 3,300.00           3,500.00           3,400.00           3,300.00           3,300.00           0.01% 0.05% 0.03% 0.01% 0.01%
Minimum per-pupil funding (secondary) 4,600.00           4,800.00           4,700.00           4,600.00           4,600.00           -     0.13% 0.03% -     -     

School-led factors £/school £/school £/school £/school £/school
Lump Sum - Primary 143,333.33      110,000            126,667            132,222            143,333            10.31% 7.85% 9.06% 9.46% 10.23%
Lump Sum - Secondary 153,333.33      110,000.00      131,666.67      138,888.89      153,333.33      1.59% 1.13% 1.36% 1.43% 1.58%
Sparsity - Primary 8,333.33           25,000.00        16,666.67        13,888.89        8,333.33           0.03% 0.10% 0.06% 0.05% 0.03%
Sparsity - Secondary 21,666.67        65,000.00        43,333.33        36,111.11        21,666.67        0.01% 0.02% 0.01% 0.01% 0.01%

Premises-related factors
 Total 

allocated (£) 
 Total 

allocated (£) 
 Total 

allocated (£) 
 Total 

allocated (£) 
 Total 

allocated (£) 
Rates - Primary 2,634,488.92   2,625,212.13   2,625,212.13   2,625,212.13   2,625,212.13   0.88% 0.87% 0.87% 0.87% 0.87%
Rates - Secondary 2,118,625.11   2,079,534.84   2,079,534.84   2,079,534.84   2,079,534.84   0.71% 0.69% 0.69% 0.69% 0.69%
Split-site - Primary 205,109.50      154,230.80      154,230.80      154,230.80      154,230.80      0.07% 0.05% 0.05% 0.05% 0.05%
Split-site - Secondary 186,210.20      186,524.70      186,524.70      186,524.70      186,524.70      0.06% 0.06% 0.06% 0.06% 0.06%
PFI - Primary 75,692.07        82,416.85        82,416.85        82,416.85        82,416.85        0.03% 0.03% 0.03% 0.03% 0.03%
PFI - Secondary 1,337,129.36   1,381,575.98   1,381,575.98   1,381,575.98   1,381,575.98   0.45% 0.46% 0.46% 0.46% 0.46%
Joint-use Leisure 60,000.00        60,000.00        60,000.00        60,000.00        60,000.00        0.02% 0.02% 0.02% 0.02% 0.02%

IDACI = Income Deprivation Affecting Children Index: a subset of the Index of Multiple Deprviation.   Band A is the highest deprivation.
EAL = English as an Additional Language

 Factor values  % allocated through formula 

Cabinet 180914 Appendix 4.xlsx
09/10/18 1 of 1

P
age 53



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Cabinet 
 
17 October 2018 
 
Durham History Centre update 
 

 

 
 

Report of Corporate Management Team 

Lorraine O’Donnell, Director of Transformation and Partnerships, 
Councillor Ossie Johnson, Cabinet Portfolio Holder for Culture 
Councillor Joy Allen, Cabinet Portfolio Holder for Transformation 

 
Purpose of the Report 

1 To update Cabinet on progress with the Durham History Centre project 
proposal. 

Executive summary 

2 The Durham History Centre project has progressed significantly since the 
proposal was considered by Cabinet in January 2018. 

3 Bringing together separate heritage collections and refurbishing Mount 
Oswald Manor to create a joined-up and integrated service operating from a 
fit-for-purpose, attractive and historic building has generated a lot of 
excitement locally and within the region. 

4 The public and stakeholders were consulted on the proposal and their 
comments helped to shape a funding application to the Heritage Lottery Fund 
(HLF) for grant support. Over 600 individual responses to the consultation 
were received, with overwhelming support for the project proposal.  
Respondents were keen on exhibitions, multi-media access, interactive 
engagement and especially the inclusion of the DLI/military collection in the 
new centre.  This was supported by 96% of respondents and was therefore 
highlighted as a key element of the project proposal submitted to the HLF for 
funding consideration. 

5 The funding round was heavily over-subscribed and the whilst the application 
was not successful on that occasion, we received very positive feedback from 
the Heritage Lottery Fund grant committee and were encouraged to re-submit 
the proposal without significant change to the next round of funding.  A 
second application was consequently submitted in August 2018, the outcome 
of which is expected before Christmas. 

6 Discussions have been held with the owners of other complementary 
collections and initial heads of terms for the acquisition of the property and 
site have been drafted with the landowner.  

7 If the application for funding is successful, the council will need to develop and 
submit a detailed application for funding, which will require a detailed design 

Page 55

Agenda Item 5



specification, digital strategy and activity plan for the service and site.   We will 
also apply to other funders for targeted elements of the proposal. 

8 In anticipation of securing the necessary funding for the project, a project 
board has been established to support and oversee this exciting development. 

9 The Durham History Centre project would bring together five archive and 
collection services, alongside Durham Register Office, in a Grade II listed 
building, creating a flagship facility where ‘stories begin’ and people can 
discover and explore national and internationally-significant collections. 

10 Cabinet is recommended to note the contents of this report and the progress 
being made on the History Centre project proposal. 

Background 

11 The County Archive is an unbroken record of the historic county of Durham, 
stretching back almost 900 years.  Its written and photographic records 
provide a unique insight into the history and heritage of the county, its people 
and local communities. 

12 As it stands, the archive accounts for a significant amount of the floor space in 
County Hall and contains over five miles of storage.  It is fast out-growing its 
current accommodation and additional storage capacity needs to be provided 
to enable the service to collect, preserve and store future historic documents 
and continue the unbroken record of the history of the county. 

13 On 17 January 2018, Cabinet agreed to progress development of a new 
‘Durham History Centre’ to accommodate the archive and other collections of 
historic records and documents, as part of a wider cultural and service 
development for the county.  Mount Oswald Manor on the outskirts of Durham 
City was identified as the preferred location. 

14 Cabinet agreed to consult with stakeholders and interested parties and to 
continue negotiations with the relevant landowners.  Subject to the outcome of 
the consultation and negotiations, Cabinet also agreed to the submission of a 
funding application to the Heritage Lottery Fund. 

The Archive 

15 The council has a statutory requirement to preserve public records and the 
County Archive and Record Office is a hugely popular and highly valued 
council service.  It provides a comprehensive record of the industrial and 
social history of the local area going back almost 900 years.  Each year, the 
service is accessed over one million times as people search for records and 
historical information online, over the telephone or in person by visiting the 
Record Office. 

16 The service is provided by highly skilled and professional staff, who work with 
volunteers to preserve, document and interpret records and promote public 
access through research projects and outreach programmes with local 
community groups and schools. 

Page 56



17 The archive has been based in County Hall since the building opened in 1963.  
Over time, as the building has aged and the archive has grown, the 
accommodation has become outdated and unsuitable, and there is insufficient 
future storage space for this important heritage asset. 

18 The archival storage rooms are almost full and there is a need to modernise 
the accommodation and service offer.   Archive Strongroom 1 which is located 
below the canteen, has recently been flooded which highlights the need for fit 
for purpose accommodation.  

19 In July 2018, a flood occurred in the restaurant kitchen, caused by a mains 
leak from the tap and water ‘rained’ into the strongroom, affecting 
approximately one quarter of the room. 

20 360 linear metres of shelving were affected by the flood.  No archives have 
been lost, but the drying and recovery process will continue for some time to 
come.  Boxed archives received some protection from their boxes, but 
volumes were affected more as they are not boxed.  We have replaced 200 
boxes to avoid any increased risk of a mould outbreak. 

21 Most affected archives have been treated by archives staff, but it was 
essential to send the largest and most damaged volumes to disaster recovery 
specialists for freeze drying and conservation.  Some volumes and papers 
have been subject to mould growth as a result of the flood, and require 
cleaning. 

22 Ongoing monitoring of the collection will be necessary for several months to 
ensure mould does not spread and at this stage, the cost of replacement 
boxes, conservation materials, and specialist disaster recovery work totals 
almost £20,000. 

Mount Oswald 

23 A countywide search for suitable sites for the relocation of the archive and 
records office was undertaken. 

24 A longlist of 40 potential sites was considered and this was further refined by 
assessing the sites against the public requirements for linked facilities, good 
accessibility and transport links, HLF advice on the importance of accessible 
public transport, and lessons learned from other successful bids for funding 
for similar projects across the country. 

25 A shortlist of eight sites was considered further with the potential sites 
assessed in terms of location, tenure, flood risk, contamination risk, public 
accessibility and potential match against the strategic objectives for the 
project  

26 Following the exercise, Mount Oswald Manor on the outskirts of Durham City 
was identified as the preferred location, a decision endorsed by Cabinet in 
January 2018. 

27 Mount Oswald Manor is a Grade II listed building.  It was built in 1800 and 
was owned by Thomas Wilkinson, a former mayor of Durham City.  The 

Page 57



building and estate were acquired by Durham City Golf Club in 1928 and as 
well as being the club house, the manor also became an established 
conference and functions venue in the city, specialising in civil wedding 
ceremonies, proms, society dinners and large functions and events. 

28 The building has sufficient space for the archive’s current and future 
requirements as well as the co-location of other collections and services and 
is in an accessible location, on a principal bus route and adjacent to the 
Howlands Park and Ride site on the southern approach to Durham City. 

29 The site is also very close to the Durham University’s Botanic Garden and 
Oriental Museum (both heritage assets) and the new colleges and 
conference/events venue the University is building as part of the wider Mount 
Oswald estate re-development.   

30 A key aspect of the history centre proposal is the restoration of this heritage 
asset, bringing the redundant building back to life to provide fitting and 
attractive accommodation for history or records related services. 

31 The Archive and Record Office would be co-located with other cultural and 
service assets at Mount Oswald Manor to create a much more attractive 
service offer and public destination/venue.   

32 Experience elsewhere has shown that co-locating and massing cultural and 
heritage assets and services has increased service usage, attracted more 
external funding and created more sustainable service provision. 

33 All of the council’s written and photographic history records, would be brought 
together alongside the Durham City Register Office and other heritage and 
military collections with shared values and functions, into an integrated 
service, which would provide improved public access to important resources. 

34 Enhanced education facilities would be provided to improve the popular 
service offer to schools across the region, alongside exhibition space, 
research facilities and space for volunteers. 

35 This option would meet the current and future needs of the Archive and would 
provide The National Archives Inspector with assurance that the council is 
able to provide fit-for-purpose storage and accommodation for its current and 
future archival records.  It would enable us to maintain existing service 
provision and the co-location with complementary collections and services 
including DLI records, offers the prospect of appealing to a broader range of 
audiences and attracting more service users. 

36 Mount Oswald Manor would also become the new home for the Durham 
Register Office which would offer significantly enhanced facilities for weddings 
and civil ceremonies in a historic setting.  This would include the relocation to 
the new site of the existing Durham Register Office from Aykley Heads House 
along with all the registration records and ceremony rooms from the Bishop 
Auckland Register Office. 

Page 58



37 The initial capital cost estimates for this project range from £14.8 million to 
£17.7 million, with the upper end of the range including a substantial worse 
case contingency, given that detailed costings have yet to be undertaken. 

38 Subject to securing Heritage Lottery funding, we would be aiming to open the 
new Durham History Centre by the end of 2022. 

Consultation 

39 Consultation in 2015 shaped the initial thinking for the project.  In line with 
Cabinet’s consideration of the project proposal and the Mount Oswald site, 
further consultation via a county-wide survey was undertaken in January 2018 
to prepare for a Heritage Lottery Fund application. Appendix 2 summaries the 
main findings from the consultation. 

40 Over 600 individual responses were received from a broad range of people.  
83% of respondents supported the proposal and the co-location the 
collections in the same site.  Respondents were keen on exhibitions, multi-
media access to collections, adult talks and behind the scenes tours. 

41 Of particular note, was the very strong support for the inclusion of the 
DLI/military collection in the new centre, with 96% of respondents supporting 
its inclusion.  This was therefore highlighted as a key aspiration of the project 
proposal submitted to the HLF for funding consideration. 

42 Two non-user focus groups were also held with parents of children under 11 
years and adults aged over 55 years.  The participants had never heard of the 
archive, thought that County Hall was an purely administrative centre and 
could not believe that such fascinating collections were on their doorstep.  
The focus groups demonstrated that an administrative location such as 
County Hall was a barrier to building awareness of the archive amongst  
service non-users and that people were far more likely to access a multi-use 
venue like Mount Oswald Manor, with the right programming. 

43 We also held facilitated group discussions with people with learning and 
physical disabilities and a youth forum. 

44 In addition to consultation with the public, we consulted with 18 key partners 
including the DLI Trustees, Durham Cathedral, Durham University, The 
Friends of Durham Record Office, Beamish Museum, Bowes Museum, The 
Auckland Project and the Durham Miners’ Association. 

45 We also consulted all 14 area action partnerships (AAPs).  All AAPs 
expressed excitement, enthusiasm and recorded their unanimous support.  
The Mount Oswald location was viewed by all as the best way to ensure good 
access to archival and heritage assets right across the county.  East Durham 
AAP wrote “we were especially pleased to hear about the location and 
building identified, as it is well-known and an accessible spot near to one of 
the park and ride schemes.”  A number of AAPs also suggested that the 
history centre activity plan could include collection tours and temporary 
exhibitions in local communities across the county. 

Page 59



Current position 

46 The Director for Transformation and Partnerships is the Project Sponsor and 
a project team, chaired by the Head of Strategy, has been established.  The 
team incorporates all the skills and disciplines needed to manage, develop 
and deliver the project proposal and progress to date is outlined below. 

Heritage Lottery Funding 

47 In January 2018, Cabinet agreed to the submission of a Heritage Lottery Fund 
(HLF) application for grant funding up to £4 million. 

48 The HLF is a non-departmental public body accountable to Parliament via the 
Department for Digital, Culture, Media and Sport (DCMS).  The HLF 
distributes the heritage share of National Lottery funding, supporting a wide 
variety of projects across the UK and decisions about individual applications 
and policies are entirely independent of the government.  The projects HLF 
fund vary from restoring natural landscapes to rescuing neglected buildings, 
from recording diverse community histories to providing life-changing training. 

49 Other funders do not provide the scale of funding required by this scale of 
project and as a local authority, many other sources of funding are closed to 
us.  A round one HLF bid was therefore submitted in March 2018. 

50 In June 2018, we were advised that the bid was positively received and highly 
recommended to the national board.  There was strong regional support for 
the project, however it was unsuccessful due to the funding available for 
allocation at that meeting being significantly over-subscribed.  We were 
consequently advised to re-apply with only minor changes to the project 
proposal required.  

51 We re-submitted the application on 16 August 2018, for a decision in 
December 2018.  Timescales for the project remain unchanged and we still 
aim to open the new building in 2022, subject to HLF funding.  While we have 
been encouraged to re-submit the proposal, it should be noted that we will 
continue to face strong competition for funding from other heritage project 
proposals.  

Additional funding options 

52 If we are successful in securing HLF Round 1 funding approval, we will 
pursue other sources of funding for specific aspects of the project.  We will 
apply for capital funding to fit out the exhibition area and learning space, and 
to integrate art into the project design.  We will pursue revenue funding to 
support the activity plan and for outreach and learning as part of our long-term 
plan to support the project legacy.  

Negotiations with landowners 

53 A heads of terms agreement has been developed with Banks Group to 
acquire the manor house and surrounding greenspace.  Subject to securing 
funding approval, this will be developed further. 

Page 60



National Accreditation 

54 The council’s Record Office, has recently been awarded Archive Service 
Accreditation.  Only five per cent of the 2,500 archives in the UK hold the 
accreditation.  This prestigious national honour was received in September 
2018 in recognition of Durham County Record Office’s excellent practice and 
services. 

55 Accreditation is the UK quality standard for archives, recognising good 
performance in all areas including management, the care of unique collections 
and what the service offers to its entire range of users. 

56 Liz Rees, former Chief Archivist of Tyne and Wear Archives Service and 
member of the accreditation panel said: “Accredited Archive Services ensure 
the long-term collection, preservation and accessibility of our archive heritage.  
The award is a national benchmark, recognising high standards in archive 
practices.  Durham County Record Office were in a very strong position, and 
this award is a tribute to everyone involved. Many congratulations.” 

57 Between 2017 and 2018, outside visitors engaged with the archive 900,000 
times in person, via the website and through enquiry services.  The panel 
noted the Record Office’s excellent relationship with volunteers, including 
those who have worked on the Durham at War project which engaged over 
250 volunteers to create an interactive mapping website. 

58 Whilst acknowledging the limitations of the current accommodation in County 
Hall on the service, the assessors commented positively on the History Centre 
proposal and complimented the council and its partners on their vision for the 
scheme and the impact it would have on local heritage services. 

Next steps 

59 The decision for HLF Round 1 is expected in December 2018.  In anticipation 
of receiving a successful outcome, we are currently planning for the 
‘development phase’ which entails providing more detail on the project 
proposals including a detailed business plan and conservation plan.  Our 
intention would be to submit a HLF Round 2 application by August 2019.   

Project board 

60 A project board to develop the project concept has been established on a 
provisional basis in anticipation of securing funding for the project.  Relevant 
Cabinet Members, Corporate Directors and Heads of Service are involved, 
along with our partners Darlington Borough Council, Durham University and 
Durham Cathedral.  If HLF approval is received, delegated authority will be 
sought for the board to oversee and direct the project, with day-to-day project 
management decisions further delegated to a project director, leading the 
project team. 

Activity plan 

61 An activity plan will be developed, covering interpretation, community 
engagement, formal and informal learning, volunteering and training, in line 
with the HLF’s Activity Planning Guidelines (October 2012).  

Page 61



62 Consultants will be appointed to begin developing the activity plan in advance 
of the HLF decision. There will be a break clause in the commissioning 
agreement with the consultants, with the development work only continuing 
beyond December 2018 if HLF funding is received. 

Design brief 

63 As part of the project, the Grade II listed Mount Oswald Manor will be restored 
and a new build extension added to provide the optimum conditions for the 
records.  The capital works will deliver enhanced educational facilities, 
exhibition space, research facilities and space for volunteers.  

64 We are currently developing the specification for the proposed ground floor 
exhibition.  Once agreed, we will seek to procure exhibition designers to 
develop Royal Institute of British Architects (RIBA) 3 proposals for this space. 

65 The overall project has already been taken to RIBA 3 by Ryder Architecture.   
Their design and cost plan will form the basis of the HLF submission.  Once 
we have heard from HLF in December, we will need to procure further 
development of the design proposal to a more detailed level. 

Digital strategy brief 

66 The History Centre proposal has digital culture and digital thinking embedded 
across its service offer.  There would be a focus on learning and activity 
programmes including: digitisation projects including a new website; online 
resources for schools and leisure users; digitisation of collections and events 
such as a ‘hackathon’; family and community activities and projects; formal 
learning activities; events and tours; and training and volunteering activities. 

67 A Digital Consultant will be appointed before the end of 2018 to work with the 
project team to create a Digital Strategy in time for a Round 2 HLF application 
in August 2019.  The contract will include a break clause in December 2018 in 
case our Round 1 HLF application is unsuccessful. 

Conclusion 

68 Transforming access to and preserving the county’s written heritage, the 
Durham History Centre project would  bring together five archive and 
collection services in a Grade II listed building, creating a flagship facility 
where ‘stories begin’ and people can discover and explore national and 
internationally-significant collections. 

69 Mount Oswald would be at the heart of a new audience-focused service 
reaching out across County Durham through activities, digital programmes 
and partnerships, reconnecting people with their heritage, taking an active 
part in discovering and making history. 

70 The project would be a catalyst for change, with five services working together 
in one building, defining a new type of archive and using the diversity of 
collections in surprising and innovative ways to engage new audiences and 
create new encounters with heritage. 

Page 62



Recommendations 

71 Cabinet is recommended to note the contents of this report and the progress 
being made on the Durham History Centre project proposal. 

 
Background papers 
 
Cabinet, 13 July 2016, Update on the Office Accommodation Programme and 
Outline Business Case for a New Headquarters - Joint Report of Ian Thompson, 
Corporate Director Regeneration and Economic Development Lorraine O’Donnell, 
Assistant Chief Executive 
 
Cabinet, 17 January 2017, Aykley Heads Strategic Employment Site, DCC 
Headquarters Full Business Case and Future options for the County Archive – Joint 
Report of Lorraine O’Donnell, Director of Transformation and Partnerships, Ian 
Thompson, Corporate Director of Regeneration and Local Services, John Hewitt, 
Corporate Director of Resources 
 
 

Contact:  Jenny Haworth  Tel: 03000 268071  

Page 63



 

Appendix 1:  Implications 

 
Finance – At this stage there has been a small revenue spend to support 
consultation, project development including architectural design work and the 
application to the Heritage Lottery Fund (HLF).  Should HLF funding be 
awarded, then the cost is estimated at £10.8 million - £13.7 million (with the 
higher figure including significant worse case contingency allowance at this 
early stage). 
 
Staffing – The number of staff required to provide a revised customer offer is 
dependent on the outcome of further detailed service design work, but would 
take advantage of opportunities to improve efficiency through the co-location of 
services. 
 
Risk – A detailed risk assessment is being undertaken as part of this project.  
Any risks arising during the project will be managed and mitigated by the project 
group. 
 
Equality and Diversity / Public Sector Equality Duty – The impact of any 
new building on people with protected characteristics would be considered as 
part of further detailed service design work. 
 
Accommodation – This project would provide long term, dedicated 
accommodation for the County Archive and County Record Office, for Historic 
Registration, Historic Environment Record, Local Studies, the Durham 
Registrar’s Office, and potentially other heritage collections.  
 
Crime and Disorder – none. 
 
Human Rights – none. 
 
Consultation – Consultation has been undertaken in 2015 and 2018.  Further 
consultation with stakeholders and interested parties will be undertaken in the 
development phase for HLF Round 2 submission. 
 
Procurement – The appointment of specialist professional services to progress 
the proposal is managed in line with the council’s procurement process. 

 
Disability Issues – See equality and diversity. 
 

Legal Implications – The archives service is subject to national archives and 
records management legislative requirements, including requirements associated 
with the custodianship of the records of other agencies and bodies. 

Page 64



 

Appendix 2:  Durham History Centre consultation responses 

 

Summary 

A consultation seeking views on the proposed Durham History Centre took place 
January – February 2018. The survey received 607 responses.  

 83% of respondents were in favour of the proposals, whilst just 11% 
disagreed with the proposals 

 73% of respondents believed that we should offer all seven functions at 
the new centre: 

o Copies of birth death or marriage certificates 

o Durham County Record Office and archives 

o Historic archaeological and environmental records 

o Local history books and photographs 

o Military/DLI collection 

o Registration of births, deaths and marriages 

o Venue for weddings and ceremonies 

 The most popular activities and learning opportunities all received over 
80%: 

o Exhibitions about County Durham and North East life 

o View visiting exhibitions 

o Multi-media access to historic records 

o Adult talks about history and heritage 

 Respondents highlighted the following as important facilities for the centre 
all received over 80%: 

o Disabled access 

o Easy access via public transport  

o Parking 

o Seating area for taking a break/refreshments 

o Exhibition space 

Page 65



 21% of other comments on the proposed project were positive comments 
towards the DLI collection being located together. 

 The main comments from focus groups, AAPs, letters of support, 
organisation responses etc. which were not counted as part of the survey 
can be grouped into four groups: positive, things to take into consideration, 
ideas and other. 

Positive 

 General support  

 Support for the proposed 
service model  

 Bringing the DLI collection 
together 

 Expertise of current staff   

 Restoring a listed building  

 Use of storage facilities / 
opportunity to collect new and 
vulnerable records  

 Education  

 Volunteering opportunities 

 Sustainability 

Other 

 Unsuitability of current 
DCRO facilities  

 Timescales / 
coordination with HQ 
relocation  

 Accessibility to Mount 
Oswald (mix of positive, 
negative and neutral 
comments) 

 Location (mix of 
positive, negative and 
neutral comments) 

 Bishop Auckland 
register office 

Things to take into consideration 

 Café / refreshment facilities 

 Disabled access / facilities 

 Importance of marketing  

 Name of facility – not ‘office’ 

 Outreach activities 

 Need to make the facility 
welcoming with knowledgeable 
staff/volunteers  

 Importance of grounds / use of 
outdoor space 

 Partnership working  

 Volunteer facilities 

Ideas 

 Miner’s historical 
records 

 Archaeology museum 

 Durham History 
Museum 

 Art exhibitions / art 
gallery 

 Changing exhibitions 
e.g. then and now 
photographic 
exhibitions, DLI , mining 
and railways 

 Dementia café, benefits 
of collections on people 
with dementia 

Page 66



 Work experience opportunities  

 Non-users are Interested in 
history relevant to them e.g. 
family, history of village or 
house  

 Packaging and bar coding 
boxes ahead of move  

 Digitisation 

 Parking 

 Funding 

 Cost 

 Space to showcase 
personal research  

 Music events  

 Catering facilities for 
wakes / Christenings 
etc.   

 Meeting/conference/trai
ning facilities 

 Activity plan – changing 
activities, hands on 
activities, training 
sessions. Interactive, 
informative and fun 
activities 

 

Page 67



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

Cabinet 

17 October 2018 

County Durham Partnership Update  

 
 

Report of Corporate Management Team  

Lorraine O’Donnell, Director of Transformation and Partnerships 

Councillor Simon Henig, Leader of the Council 

Councillor Brian Stephens, Cabinet Portfolio Holder for Neighbourhoods 
and Local Partnerships 

Purpose of the Report 

1 To update Cabinet on issues being addressed by the County Durham Partnership 
(CDP) including the board, the five thematic partnerships, safeguarding boards and 
all area action partnerships (AAPs).  The report also includes updates on other key 
initiatives being carried out in partnership across the county.   

Summary   

2 The County Durham Partnership (CDP) continues to lead on and address key 
strategic issues.  A new vision for the County Durham Partnership is being 
developed which focuses on a key set of priorities.  A three stage approach which is 
both top down and bottom up is being used.   

3 The AAP priority survey has been launched which will seek the views of all 
residents (including children and young people) within County Durham on what 
priority themes and issues they consider the AAPs and their partners should be 
tackling in 2019/20 and 2020/21.  The survey will also provide a ‘snapshot’ of 
residents views at the end of September to enable a report to be provided for the 
CDP’s visioning exercise. 

4 In December 2017, the County Durham Partnership committed to end mental health 
discrimination in County Durham.  Various events are taking place to raise 
awareness and encourage people to talk about mental health and suicide.  This 
includes the prevention work focusing on mental health at scale in County Durham, 
the County Durham Partnership Event which took place on 10th October 2018 and 
celebrated World Mental Health day, the first voluntary and community service 
(VCS) led forum which started with the topic of mental health, Stamp it Out 
campaign for young people and Time to Talk Time to Walk initiatives for 
workplaces. 

5 Following the Wood Review and the Children and Social Work Bill in 2016, new 
safeguarding arrangements were passed into law through the Children and Social 
Work Act 2017. The new local safeguarding arrangements will be led by three 
Safeguarding Partners: Local Authorities; Chief Officers of Police and Clinical 
Commissioning Groups.   

6 The Local Safeguarding Adults Board (LSAB) Business Unit has led on the 
development of the slavery and human trafficking statement. 

Page 69

Agenda Item 6



 

 

7 A draft Children and Young People’s Strategy is being developed, on the back of 
significant changes in the context for children’s services delivery nationally and in 
Durham. In addition, the statutory Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy and the Safe 
Durham Partnership Plan will be reviewed as well as the non-statutory Council Plan 
by the end of March 2019. 

8 Community groups and voluntary organisations across County Durham have 
benefited from almost £40 million in grants during the past nine years and the Area 
Action Partnerships have celebrated their 5,000th grant award since the last report.  
The grant has been awarded through the Durham AAP to King's Church Durham - 
Achor Community.  The group, which aims to reduce social isolation and build 
community cohesion in the Sherburn Road area of Durham City, has received 
£10,450 from Durham AAP. 

9 Partnership working with Faith Communities is integral to social cohesion and 
connectedness. This was highlighted in a breakfast seminar focusing on social 
isolation introduced by the Director of Public Health and bringing together elected 
members, officers, partners and faith communities in a roundtable conversation. 
The seminar acknowledged the role of faith groups as being embedded within 
communities, well able to recognise local need and offer important services, 
particularly for marginalised and isolated groups.  

10 A Defence Employer Recognition Scheme Gold Award is to be presented to the 
Council in recognition of the positive attitudes and policies adopted by the council 
towards serving personnel and veterans of the Armed Forces.  

11 A programme of events and activities are taking place across the County in 
commemoration of the end point in the First World War.  AAPs have been involved 
with a number of commemorative events and a Durham City annual remembrance 
parade to raise awareness with local communities as well as a Festival of 
Remembrance Concert on 10 November is being held to focus on the centenary. 

12 To support reducing child poverty a number of AAPs have developed holiday 
activity programmes to assist and encourage residents who may find themselves 
under increased financial pressures during the school holidays, as well as providing 
opportunities for families to socialise. 

Key Partnership Activity and Developments 

13 The County Durham Partnership Board has met three times since the last update 
report.  March’s meeting had two main items: Balance North East and Business 
Durham.  Balance North East provided information on the measures used to tackle 
alcohol harm reduction in County Durham including affordability and availability.  
The Board will continue to request updates on this development as it progresses, 
which includes work that is ongoing with Balance in relation to raising the support 
for a Minimum Unit Price (MUP) and a national fund available to support an alcohol 
free childhood to the sum of around £6m.  The Chair of the County Durham 
Partnership wrote to local MPs and Ministers to request support for Minimum Unit 
pricing in England.  This follows commitment through a motion to Council in relation 
to supporting MUP and the endorsement and signing of a Local Government 
Declaration on Alcohol.  Business Durham highlighted in their presentation that 
there is a skills shortage in the County and the need to match skills to employment 
opportunities.  

14 The April Board discussed Drug and Alcohol treatment services which included an 
overview of the new provider and new model of provision for Drug and Alcohol 
Treatment services in County Durham which focusses around the needs of the 

Page 70



 

 

individual and their families.  There is also a bespoke children and young people’s 
team and a focus on Looked after Children.  The Board also discussed the work 
with the Armed Forces and veterans and it was highlighted how important it is that 
the CDP celebrates the work undertaken with the armed forces as part of the 
Covenant signed by the County Durham Partnership in 2012.   

15 The September board discussed the options for a new County Vision, the 
Partnership event held on 10th October and the establishment of a Health and 
Social Care Plan for Durham. 

16 The County Durham Partnership event provided an opportunity to inform delegates 
about the work that is taking place on the review of the County Durham Vision.  
This included feedback on the first stage, which looked at the development of 
insight of what the public and performance evidence is telling us. It also included 
the timeline of initial consultation with the public, sharing the emerging findings, 
testing with partners and broader public consultation. 

17 As part of Stage 2 of the consultation, during November the Area Action 
Partnerships (AAPs) will focus on providing qualitative feedback and gaining 
feedback from members of the public in relation to the County Durham Vision.  In 
particular, sense checking the findings of the Insight work and hoping to frame the 
potential contribution of local communities towards its implementation as well as 
what success would look like.  Stage 3 will be to consult on a draft vision document 
in early 2019. 

18 The CDP Forum in June focused on two main items, the County Durham Plan and 
championing the environment.  The County Durham Plan focused on the preferred 
options and initial feedback felt that transport, having sustainable and vibrant town 
centres and service infrastructure, for example GP surgeries needed to be 
considered; that housing should be of the right type to meet all needs including 
older persons and the Plan should consider health impacts. 

19 The Chair of the Environment Partnership presented the “Plan on a Page” for 
comment.  Most partners agreed with the areas of focus for the Environment 
Partnership.  Good suggestions were made in relation to contributions AAPs, 
organisations and communities could make which will be taken forward by the 
Environment Partnership when developing the accompanying action plan.  Further 
details can be found later in this report on the Environment Partnership. 

20 Partnership working with the Voluntary and Community Sector (VCS) continues 
to develop. The strategic VCS Working Group held its last meeting at the end of 
March, and the council and partners have now moved to a new way of working and 
collaborating with the sector by making use of the Better Together VCS Forum.  In 
addition to this, other networks such as Advice in County Durham, the Volunteer 
Coordinators Network and the Share & Learn Network are used as access points 
for managers, commissioners and elected members to share information, consult 
and have dialogue with a wider cohort of stakeholders. The Better Together Forum 
is VCS led and brings together lead officers from larger and specialist VCS 
organisations operating countywide. It is chaired by Jo Laverick, Executive Director 
of Durham Community Action and the VCS Representative on the County Durham 
Partnership Board, and meets bi-monthly. 

21 The first in a series of six-monthly VCS led forums, which are themed on specific 
policy areas which affect our communities, was held in July with a focus on Mental 
Health. The forum was convened to look at how the public sector and the VCS are 
responding to mental health needs in the County, particularly through partnership 
approaches, how support is commissioned and what potential there is for services 

Page 71



 

 

to be more aligned and responsive. The event highlighted some key messages for 
both public sector commissioners and the VCS, in particular the need to understand 
each other’s constraints and the need for more collaborative working both within the 
VCS and between the VCS and commissioners.  

22 The Council was one of the sponsors of the County Durham Volunteering 
Celebration organised by Durham Community Action and which took place in 
Durham Cathedral to mark volunteers’ week. Over 200 volunteers received 
certificates at a formal ceremony to say thank you for their valuable contribution to 
our community. 

23 The important contribution that Faith Communities play in addressing health and 
wellbeing concerns continues to be explored through engagement events with the 
AAPs. In July, Durham AAP heard about a considerable number of initiatives 
taking place in churches and faith groups which are responding to the needs of all 
age groups as well as highlighting the opportunities for future collaboration between 
faith groups and the AAP, especially around social isolation. 

24 East Durham and Spennymoor AAPs hosted Faith and Wellbeing events to bring 
together the faith community and investigate ways of working together to address 
issues such as mental health, wellbeing and dementia.  

25 The Council has gained national recognition from the Ministry of Defence for its 
support of the Armed Forces community. A Defence Employer Recognition 
Scheme Gold Award is to be presented in recognition of the positive attitudes and 
policies adopted by the council towards serving personnel and veterans of the 
Armed Forces. Most recently this includes the creation of an Armed Forces 
Outreach Service in partnership with other local authorities in the region and the 
introduction of a guaranteed interview scheme for veterans to help those who meet 
essential criteria overcome barriers to recruitment opportunities.  

26 A number of AAPs have been involved in a range of commemorative events 
throughout 2018 in recognition of the World War 1 Centenary. In Bishop Auckland 
and Shildon (BASH) AAP a memorial garden has been created to honour all of the 
Witton Park residents who lost their lives during military service. The Fighting 
Bradfords were a family of four brothers and one sister, most born in Witton Park. 
All four brothers were decorated for their service during the First World War but only 
one brother survived. Uniquely, two of the brothers George and Roland Bradford 
were awarded the Victoria Cross (VC), the only known instance of brothers being 
awarded this medal. 

27 The Garden has received much press coverage and was featured on BBC and 
Look North as part of the VC Commemorations. In addition the Garden was 
nominated for a Durham County Council Environment award under the Places and 
Spaces category in November 2017 and was highly commended.   

28 In East Durham AAP an event to install a John Scott Youll (JSY) Victoria Cross 
commemoration stone and interpretation board in the grounds of the new build 
Village Centre in Thornley, which was constructed on the site of Thornley Pit.  This 
is in recognition that JSY worked in Thornley Pit as an electrician before going off to 
war, and returning as a local hero.  

29 BASH AAP has continued to facilitate visits from the F and P Scotto Charitable 
Trust and has introduced the trust to a number of worthy causes not only in the 
BASH AAP area but also across the County.   This is an excellent and unique 
opportunity for the AAP to provide additional support and funding to groups in the 
area. F and P Scotto Charitable Trust has invested over £750,000 into the area 

Page 72



 

 

over the last four years with a total of 91 projects receiving funding.  With further 
visits planned and decisions outstanding, it is forecast that this figure will increase 
further by the end of the year.  Primarily the funding has gone to groups in the 
BASH AAP area however support has also gone into other AAP areas.    

Prevention at Scale 

30 The Prevention Steering Group has progressed its work significantly since the last 
report to Cabinet.  An action plan has been developed and is being implemented 
across the four main workstreams of:  

a. Building Best Practice;  

b. Maximising External Funding;  

c. Reducing the Demand for Services  

d. Mental Health at Scale work.   

31 County Durham was successful in its bid to become one of 15 pilot areas for the 
national Prevention at Scale offer which involves the Local Government Association 
(LGA) providing up to 20 days of support and advice to deliver at scale a 
preventative approach that will significantly change health outcomes for local 
people.  

32 The focus of the Mental Health at scale work in County Durham is on: 

a. men aged 40-49 at risk of taking their own life;  

b. children and young people at risk of self-harm  

c. addressing the stigma and discrimination of mental health within the 
wider community 

33 Through the programme, further external support has been secured through the 
LGA from the Design Council (government advisor on design) and Social Engine 
(behaviour change experts).  A multi-agency team of officers have attended a 
series of workshops with the Design Council culminating in a session for Senior 
Leaders where analytical and practical tools will be taught and utilised to address 
the areas of focus as well as any future work. 

Altogether wealthier 

34 The County Durham Economic Partnership met in July with a specific focus on 
the County Durham Plan. The consultation on the preferred options ran from 22 
June – 3rd August 2018. This included consultation across thematic partnerships, 
AAPs, CDP forum, Community Groups and a broad range of business and VCS 
partnerships.  

35 The Economic Partnership Board as part of the consultation focused on 
understanding four key strategic challenges that link with the Regeneration 
statement and would provide a platform for future discussions with partners. The 
key areas included how the plan can support: 

a. our economic ambition for the County,  

b. our infrastructure,  

c. delivery of the right homes in the right places,  

d. rural employment issues.  

Page 73



 

 

36 Partners discussed these challenges with the Durham County Council Spatial 
Policy team who are now looking to ensure these challenges are addressed in the 
pre-submission plan. 

37 Following the consultation period the representations received together with any 
updated evidence will be used to inform the Pre-Submission Draft Plan which will 
be the final stage of consultation prior to Examination-In-Public.  In accordance with 
the Local Development Scheme the Pre-submission Draft will be published in 
Winter 2018/19 for consultation before being considered by Full Council and 
submitted for Examination-in-Public Spring/Summer 2019. A County Sustainable 
Environment Plan has also been produced as part of the Local Plan to ensure 
environment priorities are intrinsic to future sympatric developments envisaged 
through the local plan.   

38 Working in partnership across the thematic partnerships is really important for 
Altogether Wealthier and the environment is an element of this cross cutting 
approach. Areas include: 

a. A thriving attractive natural environment creates a place where people want 
to invest 

b. Job opportunities in the field of green industries and ecotourism 

c. Improvement to quality and sustainability of our lives 

d. Healthy environment supports healthy communities and increases 
productivity  

39 Recent activities by the County Durham Economic Partnership which support these 
objectives include celebrating recent success in the Visitor Economy. In recent 
years Visit Durham has directly supported growth in the visitor economy. This has 
included new branding like the Place of Light campaign, new product development 
with events like Kynren and a continued support for the County’s tourism 
businesses.  

40 Newly published research in July 2018 measuring the volume and value of tourism 
has revealed that the county’s ambitious tourism targets have been exceeded three 
years ahead of schedule. Commissioned by Visit County Durham, the STEAM 
economic impact model – which assesses data from attractions, accommodation, 
events, transport and visitor expenditure – shows that tourism was worth £867m to 
the county’s economy in 2017. The record growth reflects a 15% increase from the 
£752m benchmark set in 2014, exceeding the 2020 projected target of £863m as 
stated in the Durham Tourism Management Plan 2016-2020. An increase in tourism 
that is well managed and sustainable ensures that job opportunities in the field of 
eco-tourism continues to be at the fore of a growing County. 

41 Slitt Wood is valuable tourism asset in Weardale and additional enhancement 
works were undertaken in order to ‘future-proof’ the pathway against future potential 
damage in subsequent stormy weather.  Weardale AAP worked with partners to 
repair a footpath in Slitt wood which had been storm damaged. Due to the success 
of this project the Weardale AAP and Visit County Durham are now working with a 
local walking group to obtain recognition for Wolsingham and Weardale in general 
as a ‘Walkers Are Welcome’ accredited destination. 

42 As part of the BRASS festival in July, Chester le Street AAP supported a local 
BRASS performance by delivering a ‘street ceilidh’ in the Town Centre to support 
local tourism. 

Page 74



 

 

43 Working with the Environment Partnership the Economic Partnership has fostered 
closer working through low carbon activities. A recent example of this is the County 
Durham Business Energy & Efficiency Programme (BEEP). The Business Energy 
Efficiency Project (BEEP) has been designed to help County Durham Small and 
Medium Sized Enterprises (SMEs) make financial savings through energy 
efficiency. Energy audits and direct support are free to any participating SME. A 
grant fund is also available that can financially support the installation of energy 
efficient equipment. 

44 BEEP is in partnership with Durham County Council, Business Durham, The North 
East Chamber of Commerce, The Federation of Small Business, The North East 
Local Enterprise Partnership, and Northern Powergrid has been supported by the 
European Regional Development Fund (ERDF) Programme 2014-2020. 

45 To support this, East Durham AAP has replaced the old two boilers at the Robin 
Todd Centre with a more energy efficient system which will reduce running costs as 
well as the carbon footprint making the building more energy efficient.  

46 AAPs continue to work with people within their communities to mitigate against the 
impacts of welfare reform and other financial issues that people may face.  In 
December 2017 Universal Credit moved to full service for residents in the 3 Towns 
AAP. Citizens Advice are delivering a Universal Credit Assistance to ensure that 
they know how and when to claim and helping claimants be compliant with the 
requirements of Universal Credit. From January to the end of June 2018 residents 
have been supported with 164 Advice sessions and 71 Digital Support sessions. 

47 Working with Colleagues at Bishop Auckland College, Teesdale Area Partnership 
(TAP) AAP will see the launch of three funds to support job seekers in Teesdale.  
The three project strands/funds are: 

a. 'Employability Skills Fund' – To respond to specific training needs for 
unemployed clients.   

b. ‘Discretionary Fund' - To remove barriers preventing clients from accessing 
training/work, i.e. childcare/travel/equipment/occupational licences  

c. 'Upskilling/Diversification Fund' – To support clients employed in lower 
skilled/low paid occupations, to provide the opportunity to gain the required 
qualifications/skills to progress to the next level, change direction or work in 
dual roles in line with labour market demands/sector gaps.   

Altogether better for children and young people 

48 The Children and Families Partnership supports children, young people and 
families to achieve the best possible outcomes. The Partnership has a focussed set 
of priorities to maximise its impact:   

a. Reducing Child Poverty 

b. Building Resilience 

c. Best Start in Life 

49 To support reducing child poverty a number of AAPs have developed holiday 
activity programmes. 3 Towns AAP has invested £24,785 funding 3 local 
organisations to deliver holiday activities with nutritional food and snacks from the 
summer and all holidays for the next year in Crook, Willington and Tow Law.  A 
wide range of activities and experiences are being offered to children and families 
from themed arts and crafts, days, storytelling, fun science, nature reserve activities 
to a wide range of offsite trips with all activities include nutritious food.  In addition, 

Page 75



 

 

eight organisations were successful in receiving grants for a range of holiday 
activities including Dance and Drama workshops themed on the musical Hairspray; 
A cultural trip to London to the imperial War museum to research for a play; Family 
cooking sessions; Wildlife experience days; 2 Summer Football camps; A range of 
sporting activities 5 days a week and Mischief Makers activities in two Local 
Libraries. Many of these activities also include food as part of the programme. 

50 AAPs in the East funded holiday activities with East Durham AAP awarding 
funding of £25,002 to 14 organisations with a total value of £58,094.50 and East 
Durham Rural Corridor AAP funding of £16,867 to seven organisations, leaving 
£18,133 remaining for a second round of funding to be launched in time for either 
the October holidays or Easter 2019.. 

51 Partnership working facilitates the promotion of environmental education, which can 
help children and young people to connect with open spaces and the environment. 
The Environment Partnership encourages the development of neighbourhoods as a 
place for children and young people to meet friends and socialise.  

52 As part of the Children’s Commissioner’s Takeover Challenge, young people took 
key people from DCC’s Clean and Green Team, Civic Pride Officers, wardens, 
school representatives, and County Councillors on a ‘walkabout’ in Kelloe to identify 
issues in their local area for action. The actions included litter and fly tipping to be 
removed, dog foul bins to be replaced, involvement in the Big Spring Clean and a 
Public Space Protection Order poster to be included in the school newsletter. 

53 In 4 Together AAP, two Primary Schools in Ferryhill, Dean Bank Primary School 
and Broom Cottages Primary School were visited as part of Spruce Up and were 
given an educational assembly on the work being carried out in the area and the 
importance of looking after the environment. Both Schools took part in a poster 
competition with the winning poster being displayed around Ferryhill via posters and 
bin stickers.  In addition to the work done in the local Primary Schools, the Civic 
Pride Team also worked with a local community group, Positive Horizons, to carry 
out a litter pick of Dean Bank Park where a total of 12 bags of rubbish were 
collected. 

54 County Durham Skill Mill provides environmental work in communities across the 
county for young people who have offended, who are paid national minimum wage 
for four days work and attend college one day per week. The initiative gives the 
young people important skills and qualifications to help them get into full time work 
whilst improving the local environment. The type of tasks they undertake include 
clearing rivers and streams, culverts/drains, removing rubbish, maintaining gardens, 
flood prevention, planting and general land management and habitat maintenance. 

55 Work undertaken so far has included clearing a right of way and park path for 
Middridge Parish Council, clearing allotments in West Cornforth, Langley Moor, 
Stanley and Oakenshaw, renovating park benches in Sherburn, and installing a 
fence and gate in Meadowfield. Various further projects are planned with town and 
parish councils and the Skill Mill are working with partners to develop links to further 
suitable commissioned work and pathways to employment.  

56 Children and Young people who are in contact with the youth justice system (YJS) 
are generally a socially excluded population, with significant complex health needs 
linked to underlying factors such as low educational attainment, unidentified 
speech, language and communication needs (SLCN), mental health issues and 
increased risk taking behaviour relating to smoking, drug and alcohol use and risky 
sexual activity.  

Page 76



 

 

57 A refreshed Children and Young People’s Mental Health, Emotional Wellbeing and 
Resilience Local Transformation Plan (CYP LTP) for 2018/19 will be submitted to 
NHS England this month. Comprehensive engagement has taken place with 
stakeholders, partners and schools on the CYP LTP which reflects the vision and 
principles of the national ‘Future in Mind’ strategy and the 5 year forward view for 
mental health. The CYP LTP has a real ambition to develop the workforce so that 
everyone working with children, young people and families is ambitious for them to 
achieve appropriate goals. Successes to date include a flexible and responsive 
service 24/7, 365 days a year for children and young people experiencing a health 
crisis, bereavement support service provision and enhanced community eating 
disorder services for children and young people.  

58 Twelve clear ambitions are to be realised by 2020 to achieve the LTP vision for 
County Durham: 

‘We want Children, Young People and their Families in County Durham to be 
supported to achieve their optimum mental health and wellbeing.  Every child 
and young person will have access to early help in supporting their emotional 
and mental health needs. We want to develop children and young people’s 
resilience and coping strategies.  We will transform the quality and availability of 
our services from early help through to specialist provision. Local services will 
be locally delivered within communities, closer to home, targeted to the most 
vulnerable ensuring fewer children and young people require specialist mental 
health services.’ 

59 This year, for the first time, young people who are looked after by Durham County 
Council, have helped to write the 2017-18 Corporate Parenting Panel Annual 
Report. The young people from the County Durham Children in Care Council 
(CICC) have influenced the content, writing style and design of the annual report, to 
ensure it is easy to read and understand. The report has been adopted by the 
Corporate Parenting Panel as their annual report and hosted on the DCC website.  

60 The Corporate Parenting Panel has recently appointed a young person from the 
CICC as a co-opted member of the Corporate Parenting Panel to ensure the voice 
of the child is reflected in discussions and decision making.  

61 Work is taking place to ensure elected members, officers of DCC and young people 
are aware of the Corporate Parenting Panel, and that elected members and young 
people who are looked after understand the role of a corporate parent.  

62 A Children and Young People’s Strategy is being written in response to significant 
changes in context for children’s services delivery nationally and in Durham. The 
revised high level strategy framework will focus on the wider determinants of health 
and addressing the improvements required in services for children and young 
people.   

63 A vision statement has been developed along with four key aims, underpinned by 
fundamental principles for delivery. Consultation on the draft strategy is well 
underway, including engagement with children and young people, and the new 
Strategy will be presented to the Integrated Care Board for agreement in November 
2018. 

64 The Great Aycliffe and Midridge (GAMP) AAP Board has adopted the Young 
Carers Charter which outlines their support for young carers  

65 BASH AAP supported a variety of youth activities, including, holiday activities at 
Auckland Youth and Community Centre, Bereavement Support for young people at 

Page 77



 

 

Butterwick hospice, Young Carer support with Family Action and an activity space 
for the 2nd Bishop Auckland Scouts. 

Altogether healthier 

66 The Health and Wellbeing Board supports people to achieve their optimum health 
and wellbeing by helping people to be able to help themselves and others. The 
vision of the Board is to ‘improve the health and wellbeing of the population of 
County Durham and reduce health inequalities’.  

67 Partners work together to reduce health inequalities by addressing social 
determinants of health, including housing, fuel poverty and planning.  Links 
between health and the environment stimulate work to increase active opportunities 
within communities and promote access to the ‘green gym’ of the outdoors.  

68 The Active Durham Partnership engages organisations in promoting and 
supporting physical activity for people of all ages, backgrounds and abilities. The 
partnership looks at policy, physical environment, organisations, social environment 
and individuals to understand the needs and barriers for specific groups such as 
older people, women and girls and place based. The Beat the Street pilot in 
Ferryhill and Chester le Street involved over 8,000 participants walking, jogging, 
running and cycling nearly 67,000 miles to clock up points at various locations 
around their local area. 

69 A number of AAPs have projects in their areas relating to increasing physical 
activity.  Chester le Street AAP developed a project to tackle obesity in men, 
building on a national model ‘Man v Fat Football leagues’.  Players are put into 
teams and league points are awarded based not only on the football results but on 
collective weight loss of the Team. Support and peer mentors form part of the 
project. This will be piloted in County Durham for the first time within the AAP area. 
DCC Sport and Leisure are the lead delivery partner. 

70 ‘Active Valley’ will build on the programme above in Mid Durham AAP and look at 
what else along the Valley people can take part in from volunteering with Ushaw 
and Fruitful Durham out in the fresh air, to being part of the new primary 
school.Active 30 project which is getting primary schools to pledge to do more 
physical activity during school hours.  The project seeks to work with more than 14 
community venues and groups across the valley as well as over 20 volunteers and 
inspire more than 400 residents into sustaining regular physical activity. The project 
is managed by Durham County Council’s Culture and Sport with an AAP grant of 
£10,000 which will be used to develop networks, provide marketing and information, 
equipment and incentives where necessary to get residents more active.  The 
project run alongside ‘Active Shildon’ to provide possible urban and rural models 
that Active Durham can use and roll out across the county.  

71 Derwent Valley AAP has a programme of cycle rides, walks, bikeability courses 
and training courses targeted at families and retired people. The programme also 
identifies and promotes six walking, cycling and running routes for a range of 
abilities and distances. The aim is to support the reduction of environmental 
impacts in the Derwent Valley by promoting and improving opportunities for 
sustainable travel through the identification and implementation of schemes that 
promote walking, cycling and the use of public transport.  

72 Stanley AAP has endorsed Greening the Gap 2, a programme of guided learning, 
tutoring, expert and peer support for participants to gain new skills and social 
confidence by participating in an innovative, tailored, specific skills programme over 
the summer. Participants included a blend of local residents experiencing/have 

Page 78



 

 

experienced multiple mental health issues and challenges, and older people at risk 
of isolation.  The programme was delivered by Muddy Boots in partnership with 
Mental Health North East. 

73 Durham County Council Culture and Sport service has taken on additional 
responsibilities for wellbeing. This includes providing a range of local groups in 
libraries, gyms and the countryside as well as arts, music and exercise working 
closely with the new Wellbeing for Life service. 

74 East Durham Rural Corridor AAP funded project a to pay for transport and other 
associated costs, to provide opportunities for people aged 60+ and disadvantaged 
people to take part in painting/drawing excursions to sites/ locations, including 
those of historic or natural interest and exhibitions throughout the County. This 
funding has led to the weekly art sessions being transferred to a much larger room 
within Bowburn Community Centre to accommodate the increased numbers of 
members. 

75 The target of 50 people being given access to new cultural, sporting and 
recreational opportunities has been exceeded and the outcome of older and 
disabled people living in rural areas enjoying increased access to activities has 
been achieved. 

76 The Health and Wellbeing Board has agreed the Dementia Strategy, including the 
rollout of dementia friendly communities which has continued at a pace. Dementia 
friendly work has been developed and implemented in Beamish museum, which is 
seen by many museums as an example of good practice. Work with Dalton Park 
and Durham City Centre has commenced to make sure their shops, food outlets 
and cinemas are dementia friendly. Three Housing Associations have linked with 
four of the Area Action Partnerships to put in place a two year Coordinator post to 
support local areas to implement Dementia Friendly Communities.  

77 The Dementia Friendly Communities (DFC) Coordinator (managed by the 
Alzheimer’s Society) for Mid Durham, Chester le Street, Stanley and Derwent 
Valley AAP’s alongside Housing colleagues Karbon, Durham County Housing 
Group and North Star came into place in May. In Mid Durham AAP work has 
already started to develop Lanchester and Brandon into DFC’s. 

78 The Health and Wellbeing Board initiated work with the Alzheimer’s Society and the 
Council’s Spatial Policy and Assets Teams to consider the effectiveness of 
emerging planning policies. Planning policies are being strengthened to ensure that 
the needs of people living with dementia are considered through the decisions 
about planning applications, helping to ensure that our neighbourhoods are for life, 
and extend the active participation of older people with dementia in their local 
communities. 

79 TAP AAP is working on an intergenerational project with the YMCA (Teesdale). 
The ‘Intergen Project’ will see  young people from the YMCA youth club in Barnard 
Castle attend the Manor House Care home to deliver an activity with the residents. 
The activities that are carried out involve arts and crafts which are stimulating for 
those with dementia. The young people help the residents of Manor House 
complete the activities. 

80 Health and Social Care Integration in County Durham is well underway. A new role 
of Director of Integrated Community Services manages this work, replacing the 
previous Director of Integration post. A new integrated model for NHS Community 
will be managed alongside adult social care services. Governance arrangements 
are in place to include children and young people’s services in the integration 

Page 79



 

 

agenda. Teams Around Patients are now operational across the county, designed 
to promote prevention and independence and deliver care in the community in line 
with local need.  

81 A Health and Social Care plan for County Durham is being developed as a clear 
strategy for County Durham which will allow us to feed into the regional arena from 
a position of strength.   

82 In line with the statutory responsibilities of the Health and Wellbeing Board, the 
recommendations of the Pharmaceutical Needs Assessment have been agreed 
which concluded that there are no current gaps in service delivery. As a key Health 
and Wellbeing Board partner, Healthwatch collected feedback from the public about 
how they access pharmaceutical services and their overall views of the services 
they receive.  An action plan has been implemented which reflects the Health and 
Wellbeing Board’s ambition to develop locally commissioned services to further 
support targets in the Joint Strategic Needs Assessment. These services will focus 
on the growing older population, incorporating pharmacy services into Teams 
Around Patients, the further expansion of pharmacy based public health services 
and promotion of self-care. 

Altogether safer 

83 The Safe Durham Partnership Board works collaboratively to improve community 
safety across County Durham.  The vision of the Board is for a county ‘where every 
adult and child will be, and will feel, safe’. 

84 How we use public space can play a vital role in reducing criminal or anti-social 
behaviour and environment enhancement schemes can deter crime and help 
people to feel safe.  

85 Multi Agency Problem Solving Groups (MAPS), based in the East, North and South 
of the county, are responsible for identifying crime and disorder issues in local 
areas requiring multi-agency intervention, identifying the causes of problems and 
agreeing interventions. These interventions often involve street clean ups, and 
environmental improvement schemes which can contribute to improved community 
cohesion.  

86 For example, a Time Limited Project in Grange Villa was instigated by MAPS after 
identifying a decline in community cohesion in the village; with fly tipping, rubbish in 
rear yards, a lack of property maintenance and tensions with residents feeling 
abandoned by landlords and services. The project set about improving social 
inclusion and reducing crime and disorder to improve the lives of local residents 
and businesses. A public meeting was held to engage local residents. Problem 
locations, households and individuals were targeted for intervention, public spaces 
were improved, landlords have begun improvements to their properties which has 
encouraged residents to do the same. There has been a reduction in demand on 
services, particularly in relation to primary fires, and work continues to engage more 
residents to help sustain improvements.  

87 The 3 towns AAP project engaged young people on the cusp of anti-social 
behaviour and helped to connect them to the wider community. It taught young 
people joinery skills, resulting in a level one certificate as well as producing furniture 
for local community benefit. 19 people have been engaged in voluntary work and 44 
young people will have improved employability skills and be better equipped to 
move into employment 

88 East Durham Rural Corridor AAP continued to work in partnership with various 
partners including the Police, Town and Parish Councils, Team around the 

Page 80



 

 

Community (DCC), Neighbourhood Protection (DCC), and Sedgefield Community 
College, via a Multi-Agency Partnership meeting set up and led by the Police in 
response to around 200 youths from across the County hanging around in the 
Sedgefield settlement on a Friday night. This work has managed to disperse the 
young people back to their own areas, therefore making it more manageable to 
service providers. Interventions took place to ensure the safety of the young people 
with regards to alcohol and Child Sexual Exploitation, and community cohesion for 
all members of the community whatever their age or background.  

89 Partners are working together to address the significant increase in deliberate fires 
in the east of the county over the last four years. The increase has been across 
primary and secondary fires involving buildings, motor vehicles, machinery, rubbish, 
grass and derelict properties. These fires have a significant impact on the local 
community, environment and partner resources.  Safer and Stronger Communities 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee held a focussed session to understand the 
issues and response better and identified areas for further development.  

90 A Deliberate Fire Reduction Plan has been implemented, focussed on securing 
properties, education and developing relationships with the community. 
Firestoppers provides an anonymous facility for local people to provide intelligence 
on deliberate firesetters and arsonists and a campaign titled Enough is Enough has 
been launched to give communities the confidence to address the issue.  

91 Education programmes are being actioned including further development of the 
Young Fire Fighters scheme and development of the community safety areas within 
Peterlee Fire Station as a safety centre specifically focussed on education, 
specialising in anti-social behaviour, firesetter and prevention education. By far the 
most common type of fire involves cars and other road vehicles and police on 
patrols in the most affected areas have begun seizing abandoned cars to prevent 
arson.  

92 A Water Safety Conference, hosted by the Durham City Safety Group, was held at 
Durham Town Hall on 26th March 2018, attended by representatives from York, 
Bath, Manchester and the Royal Society for the Prevention of Accidents (RoSPA). 
The conference showcased best practice, provided assurance, identified areas for 
improvement and established a national network for future learning opportunities. 

93 The event is reflective of the positive work that has taken place since the Open 
Water Safety Group and Durham City Safety Group were established in 2015, 
leading to a decrease in water related incidents and zero fatalities across the 
county in the 2017 calendar year. Risk assessments continue to be carried out for 
priority locations across the county and times of the year and a number of initiatives 
are in place to address the risks, such as review and monitoring of infrastructure, 
work with private landowners, educational events, and awareness campaigns.  

94 Mid Durham AAP multi partnered Community Safety events have taken place in 
Brandon, Ushaw Moor, Langley Park and Esh Winning.  The events are managed 
by the Community Cohesion Service with input from the Office of the Police, Crime 
and Victims’ Commissioners and a variety of relevant partners.   The aim of the 
events is to raise the profile of the local community safety services under the 
banner of come and meet your local super heroes.   

Altogether greener 

95 The Environment Partnership met in June. The main agenda item for the board 
was to agree the draft Environment Plan on a Page and the proposed consultation 

Page 81



 

 

forward plan. The Plan on the Page outlines the vision and approach which in turn 
is supported by four themes: 

a. Deliver a cleaner, more attractive and sustainable environment 

b. Promote the value, diversity and benefits of Durham’s natural environment 

c. Reduce Green House gases and adapt to the impact of climate change 

d. Promote sustainable, sympathetic development and enhance Durham’s 
heritage events 

96 Under each of the four themes the partnership has outlined priorities to shape 
delivery. The priorities presented reflect that whilst some challenges remain the 
same for County Durham there are new opportunities for innovation, jobs, growth 
and better allowing our communities to access the environment. The priorities have 
further been produced through an integrated approach where it is informed by, but 
does not duplicate, priorities and actions from other strategies in key areas of 
environment, economy, health and children and young people. 

97 Underpinning these priorities will be an action plan, which will provide the detailed 
actions for delivering our priorities. These are currently being developed and 
managed through the working groups of the County Durham Environment 
Partnership. 

98 Altogether Greener is an important element and project development remains at the 
heart of strategic thinking, with recognition through the Environment Awards. 
Rewarding great design, environmental guardianship and community spirit in 
County Durham. The County Durham Environment Awards is an annual event 
rewarding projects that demonstrate great design, environmental guardianship and 
community spirit across the county. 

99 Hosted by the County Durham Environment Partnership, with the aim of 
recognising the efforts of a range of organisations and individuals. The Environment 
Awards have been running in County Durham for 29 years and over that time 
projects involving thousands of people throughout the county and beyond have 
been awarded or commended for their contribution to the environment. 

100 A number of AAPs have been involved in “Operation Spruce Up” which takes one 
settlement at a time, and combines the Durham County Council activities of 
Highways, Street Cleaning, Regeneration, Grounds Maintenance and others for a 
deep clean. Alongside this, they engage with AAPs, Parish Councils, Schools, 
Businesses and Community Groups, encouraging everyone to play their part in 
demonstrating pride in their area. 

101 In 4 Together AAP, twelve areas across the county have now benefited from a 
‘spruce up’ involving jet washing; painting; gully cleaning; shrub planting; highways 
re-marking and much more. Ferryhill was identified as it is the most prominent and 
well used location within the AAP area and the work carried out could make a high 
impact to the local environment. A large amount of street furniture was painted as 
well as litter, leaves and detritus removed from the paths and roadsides. Drains 
were cleansed as they had a build-up of debris accumulated over the winter months 
- this action prevents flooding and build-up of litter and leaves within the drains 
throughout the area. In addition maintenance work was carried out along the A167 
which runs close to the Town Centre. This is a very prominent a well-used road 
within County Durham and the maintenance of the steep road sides here would be 
very noticeable by residents and visitors.  

Page 82



 

 

102 Durham AAP helped identify Gilesgate as the area chosen for “Operation spruce 
up” during a walkabout which highlighted areas needing attention.  The AAP was 
also involved in the launch of the event. 

103 The Its Your Town project in 3 Towns AAP focuses on making the 3 Towns area a 
nicer area to live and work. Each primary school within the area was offered the 
opportunity to receive an anti-litter assembly and a design a poster competition. 
Assemblies were delivered to 1997 pupils across 12 primary schools with Tidy Ted 
the council's anti-litter mascot and as a result, the children have embraced the anti-
litter message and produced some amazing designs. In the majority of schools, all 
year groups took part in the competitions and winners have ranged from reception 
age children to the oldest in the schools from year 6. When Tidy Ted returned to 
schools to present prizes to the winners, the children's understanding of the litter 
message was excellent. 

104 The winning posters have been made into posters and bin stickers and distributed 
around the local town or village, reminding all members of the community of the 
very important litter messages, in the children's own words and designs. 

105 Refuse Community café are a charity that focuses on tackling food waste. They 
have recently opened a café in Chester-le-Street AAP area that receives surplus 
food from local supermarkets to cook meals that are available on a ‘pay as you feel’ 
basis. Their project moto is “feed bellies not bins”. This project targets groups of 
people on low incomes and people impacted by welfare reform changes. They also 
work with people who are out of work to train them in basic catering qualifications, 
for example, food hygiene. The project aims to engage 150 people into voluntary 
work and ensure 10 people gained accredited qualifications that leads to 
employment opportunities. To date over 1000 different people have accessed 
services at the café. 

106 Working with Durham wildlife Trust, TAP AAP is helping to develop a natural 
woodland site within Barnard Castle. Deepdale Wood is an ancient natural 
woodland, which has been continuously wooded for over 400 years. The site is 
valuable natural habitat for local wildlife. In order to encourage local wildlife and 
maintain the woodland, as a community resource, TAP funding has been used to 
improve access to the site and provide funding towards a programme that will 
recruit and train local people in woodland management skills. In addition, TAP 
funding has also been provided to install interpretation boards and construct a new 
footbridge. 

Local Safeguarding Children Board  

107 Following the Wood Review and the Children and Social Work Bill in 2016, new 
safeguarding arrangements were passed into law through the Children and Social 
Work Act 2017.  

108 Provisions within the Children and Social Work Act 2017 will replace Local 
Safeguarding Children Boards (LSCBs) with new local safeguarding arrangements, 
led by three Safeguarding Partners and supported by relevant agencies. It also 
places a duty on new Child Death Review partners to review the deaths of children 
normally resident in the local area.  

109 Safeguarding Partners are identified as: 

a. Local Authorities 

b. Chief Officers of Police 

c. Clinical Commissioning Groups   

Page 83



 

 

110 Child Death Review Partners are identified as:  

a. Local Authorities  

b. Clinical Commissioning Groups 

111 Safeguarding Partners will have the authority to create a local safeguarding 
framework and safeguarding arrangements that works for that local area rather than 
a central prescriptive model. Safeguarding Partners will also identify and consult 
with the local relevant agencies in developing structures and to gain their support 
for local safeguarding arrangements. 

112 In June 2018, Working Together to Safeguard Children 2018’ was launched.  
Following this, Safeguarding Partners will have up to 12 months to agree their 
safeguarding framework and arrangements. From the date of publication, 
Safeguarding Partners have three months to implement their safeguarding 
arrangements. These arrangements must be subject to independent scrutiny.   

113 A project Board has been set up and the expected timeline of transition is as 
follows: 

a. April 2018 - New LSCB Chair appointed to lead partners through transitional 
arrangements  

b. 21 June 2018 – Durham LSCB Development Session to begin the process 
of formulating a new local safeguarding framework and safeguarding 
arrangements. 

c. End of June 2018 – DfE released the revised ‘Working Together to 
Safeguard Children 2018’.  This triggers the 12-month period Safeguarding 
Partners have to formulate and publish their proposed safeguarding 
arrangements. 

d. Summer 2019 – latest date for Safeguarding Partners have to formulate and 
publish their proposed safeguarding arrangements. 

e. End of September 2019 – latest date for implementation of new 
safeguarding arrangements. 

114 Durham LSCB will continue to carry out all of their statutory functions, until the point      
at which safeguarding partner arrangements begin to operate. 

Local Safeguarding Adults Board  

115 The Local Safeguarding Adults Board (LSAB) Business Unit has led on the 
development of the slavery and human trafficking statement to meet the 
requirements placed upon the Council in line with the Modern Slavery Act 2015. 

116 The requirement for a statement to be in place applies to larger organisations or 
employers with a turnover of £36 million and covers a financial year. It should 
include steps the organisation has taken during that period to ensure that slavery 
and human trafficking is not taking place in any of its supply chains and in any parts 
of its own business. If organisations have not taken such steps, this should be 
included in any statement. 

117 Section 54 (5) of the Act includes suggested areas that may be included in any 
slavery and human trafficking statements:  

a. the organisation’s structure, its business and its supply chains; 

b. its policies in relation to slavery and human trafficking; 

c. its due diligence processes in relation to slavery and human trafficking 

Page 84



 

 

d. in its business and supply chains;the parts of its business and supply chains 
where there is a risk of slavery and human trafficking taking place, and the 
steps it has taken to assess and manage that risk; 

e. its effectiveness in ensuring that slavery and human trafficking is not taking 
place in its business or supply chains, measured against such performance 
indicators as it considers appropriate; 

f. the training about slavery and human trafficking available to its staff. 

118 Some councils across England are supporting the Co-operative Party message that 
modern slavery has no place in council supply chains by means of a Charter. A 
bespoke modern slavery charter is being developed for Durham County Council. 
This is in addition to the existing law and guidance that applies to councils in 
respect of modern day slavery. 

119 The Charter outlines ten standards, echoed within the Durham County Council 
statement. The Charter promotes that councils should pro-actively vet their own 
supply chains and ensure modern slavery is not taking place.  

Recommendations and reasons 

120 It is recommended that Cabinet note the report. 

 

Contact:  Gordon Elliott, Head of Partnerships and Community Engagement  

Tel: 03000 263605 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 85



 

 

Appendix 1:  Implications 

 

Finance - Area and Neighbourhood budgets are utilised and delivered through the 14 
AAPs and ensure the Council (and AAPs) receive improved information on the outputs 
achieved through use of locality budgets. 

Staffing - None 

Risk - None 

Equality and Diversity / Public Sector Equality Duty - The actions set out in this 
report aim to ensure equality and diversity issues are embedded within the working 
practice of AAPs. 

Accommodation - None 

Crime and Disorder - Altogether safer is the responsibility of the Safe Durham 
Partnership. 

Human Rights - None 

Consultation - The County Durham Partnership framework is a key community 
engagement and consultation function of the Council and its partners. The 
recommendations in the report are based on extensive consultation with AAP partners.  

Procurement - None 

Disability Issues - None 

Legal Implications – None 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 86



 
Cabinet 
 
17 October 2018 
 
Council Activity Update 
 

 

 
 

Report of Corporate Management Team 

Lorraine O’Donnell, Director of Transformation and Partnerships 

Councillor Simon Henig, Leader of the Council 

 
Purpose of the Report 

1 To provide an update on work to support some of the council’s key priorities. 

Background 

2 The council undertakes an enormous amount of work to realise the vision for 
the county. 

3 The following provides an update on progress towards delivering some of the 
council’s key priorities and summarises a number of other newsworthy 
aspects of the council’s work: 

(a) Welfare support 

(b) Smoking cessation 

(c) Fair funding 

(d) Mental health 

(e) Jobs and growth 

(f) Visitor economy 

(g) New recruits join the council 

(h) Bin crews launch respect campaign 

(i) Archive receives national accreditation 

(j) Approval for phase one of Aykley Heads development 

(k) Northumbria in Bloom success. 

 

 

Page 87

Agenda Item 7



Welfare support 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

4 Since 2012, the council has been working closely with its partners to ease the 
burden of spending cuts on the county’s residents and also mitigate against 
the significant impact on the public of changes to the welfare system. 

5 Research released last month by Greater Manchester Poverty Action shows 
that there has been a collapse in crisis support in some parts of the country 
and that local authorities across England are struggling to maintain well-
funded effective welfare assistance schemes since government funding for 
such support ceased at the end of 2014/15.  However, for the past five years, 
Durham County Council has built £1 million into its annual budget to allow for 
the continuation of its scheme. More than 9,000 grants have been awarded to 
date, including more than 6,000 to help with daily living allowances. 

6 Support for individual families was also provided during the summer when 
76,800 healthy snacks were given out to children and young people using our 
leisure centres and libraries – an initiative which was developed in response 
to recommendations by the portfolio holders for social inclusion and children 
and young people’s services and which also offered the opportunity to 
promote physical and social activities.  Work is now underway to look at how 
we can help similar existing schemes during the October half term and 
Christmas holidays. 

7 The authority has an established record of supporting holiday activity projects 
through its 14 Area Action Partnerships (AAPs), which provide funding for 
community-based organisations. Since 2013, AAPs have also been 
supporting wider initiatives aimed at combatting the impact of welfare reform, 
with each receiving £10,000 from the council’s Welfare Assistance Scheme  

Page 88



Fund to invest in local initiatives. Almost £208,000 has been donated in 
match-funding as a result of this investment. 

8 Further assistance is available to households through a Council Tax 
Reduction Scheme, which helps residents on low incomes pay their council 
tax. Durham is one of only a handful of authorities offering a scheme that 
provides the same level of support as the previous initiative. It has meant that 
in the past five years there has been no increase in the levels of council tax 
eligible residents are expected to pay.  Northumberland is the only other 
authority in the region to offer a comparable scheme but recently announced 
that it will be reviewing the initiative. 

9 And work to highlight at a national level the impact of welfare reform and 
funding cuts on residents is also taking place, with the council submitting 
written evidence to the Work and Pensions Committee’s Inquiry into the 
Benefit Cap.  The submission, which was compiled in consultation with a 
range of partners, details how households have been affected and also 
outlines the support being provided by the authority and its partners. 

Smoking cessation 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

10 County Durham has seen a 36 per cent reduction in smoking prevalence over 
the past six years, with the most recent figures showing estimated smoking 
prevalence of 14.3 per cent.  For the first time, this figure is defined as not 
being significantly different to both the national (14.9 per cent) and north east 
(16.2 per cent) averages. 

Page 89



 

11 However, despite this success smoking remains the single biggest causal 
factor in health inequalities and premature death and disease in County 
Durham with an estimated 60,000 people who continue to smoke, putting their 
health and the health of others at risk. 

12 The council and its partners continue to work towards reducing smoking 
prevalence in the county.  Stop smoking support is available across County 
Durham but targeted work is also taking place to maximise uptake of services 
in areas of deprivation with routine and manual workers as well as pregnant 
women.  This level of commissioning is consistent with NICE 
recommendations. 

13 A recent audit of the stop smoking service, commissioned through Solutions 4 
Health, revealed that it is having an impact on reducing inequalities.  People 
from more deprived areas are setting a quit date and quitting smoking at a 
greater rate than those in the less deprived areas while the rate of people 
attending stop smoking services in County Durham and setting a quit date is 
significantly higher than the England average.  County Durham also displays 
significantly better rates for successful quitters at four weeks.  Between April 
2017 and March 2018, 2,497 residents stopped smoking with support from the 
smoking support service.  This exceeded the smoking support service 
2017/18 target of 2,401 smoking quitters. 

14 As well as the health impact, smoking can also have financial benefits for 
households.  For example, 33 per cent of households with a smoker fall below 
the poverty line.  If money wasn’t spent on tobacco, nearly 7,000 households 
would be lifted out of poverty. 

15 In County Durham, mothers smoking during pregnancy remains a challenge, 
with the Durham Dales, Easington and Sedgefield (DDES) clinical 
commissioning group area having the highest rate (21.9 per cent) in the north 
east and the third highest nationally.  An incentive scheme to reduce smoking 

Page 90



in pregnancy aims to address this issue and early data shows good retention 
in the stop smoking service amongst these women.  However, the challenges 
of reducing smoking in pregnancy is evident as 61 per cent of those recruited 
to the scheme live with a smoker. 

16 The council is taking a long-term and ambitious approach to reducing smoking 
levels in County Durham through the work of its local tobacco alliance, 
comprised of the council, NHS, stop smoking service provider and the 
voluntary sector.  The ambition is to achieve five per cent smoking prevalence 
level by 2025.  Working together we can support our local residents to give up 
smoking and to make their home and local environment smoke free. 

Fair funding 

17 According to the Local Government Association, by 2020 local councils will 
have faced a reduction in core funding of nearly £16 billion over 10 years.  
Durham County Council has already made £224 million in savings since 
2011/12. This has been achieved through a planned yet creative approach 
which has focused on protecting frontline services. Public consultation has 
also played a key part in the budget setting process, with residents being 
given the opportunity to influence how savings are made through a range of 
innovative consultation events 

18 However, with further forecasted 
savings of £35.3 million required 
over the next four years, the 
financial pressures facing the 
council are set to continue and the 
impact of the government’s 
ongoing funding cuts will be felt 
across all areas with significant 
risks to our funding from the fair 
funding review. 

19 In the face of these challenging 
financial circumstances, the 
council is proactively campaigning 
for fairer funding for local 
government and highlighting the 
impact of austerity at a local and 
national level. 

20 The leader of the council has written to the government in his role as chair of 
the Association of North East Councils (which represents all 12 of the region’s 
local authorities), to call for fairer distribution of funding in the forthcoming 
spending review, while the authority’s Cabinet member for children and young 
people’s services has written to the governing bodies of all schools and 
academies in the county to share her concerns about the financial pressures 
they are currently facing as a result of the government’s lack of investment.  
Furthermore, in response to estimates of a £19 million reduction in public 
health grant, the authority is looking at working with other councils and public 

Page 91



sector organisations to make the case for the formula for calculating the grant 
to be changed. 

Mental health 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

21 Poor mental health can affect anyone.  Statistically, one in four of us will be 
affected by a mental health problem in any given year and in the workplace, 
almost one in six people of working age have a diagnosable mental health 
condition.  The council and its partners are focused on improving mental 
health and wellbeing for our residents and joint workforce. 

22 Durham is one of 15 pilot areas chosen for the LGA’s national ‘Prevention at 
Scale’ offer involving support and advice to deliver, ‘at scale’, a preventative 
approach to significantly change health outcomes for local people.  Suicide 
prevention has been identified as the focus for this work as Durham’s rate is 
above the national average. It builds on a wide range of work, including Youth 
Aware of Mental Health, an internationally recognised programme of 
education for young people which is in place across 75 of our schools, the 
men’s sheds (or crees) network and Wellbeing for Life, a dedicated service 
offering low level support to people wanting to improve their health and 
wellbeing. 

23 Work is focussed on supporting our workforce in being able to talk about 
mental health and equip staff with the skills to be able to identify early signs of 
stress through a comprehensive training programme. It is also seeking 
insights from local communities, and men in particular, in relation to mental 
health and focusing on anti-stigma and discrimination in relation to mental 
health by supporting the Time to Change pledge. 

24 To mark World Mental Health Day on 10 October, the County Durham 
Partnership’s key theme at its annual event will be mental health.  The event 
will provide partners with an opportunity to share information about their 
services and projects, highlighting achievements, best practice and new 
approaches for supporting people with mental health needs and it will facilitate 
discussions to look at what more partners can do to support mental health 
awareness.  

Page 92



25 At the event, DCC will also sign the pledge to be a ‘Time to Change’ 
employer.  By signing the pledge, organisations demonstrate their 
commitment to change how they think and act about mental health in the 
workplace and make sure that employees who are facing these problems feel 
supported.  Organisations of all sizes are also being encouraged to work 
towards the Better Health at Work Award.  The council is currently working 
towards a silver award.  

26 Going forward, following wider stakeholder consultation, the Health and 
Wellbeing Board will agree a refreshed plan to improve the mental health of 
people in County Durham.  

Jobs and growth 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

27 The council is working hard to generate inward investment, jobs and growth.  
The county’s employment rate is at its highest in nine years and the 
importance of our strategy to secure the county’s future prosperity cannot be 
understated particularly against the background of Brexit and other economic 
uncertainty. 

28 In conjunction with our business arm, Business Durham, and the private 
sector, we are attracting investment into sites across the county including 
NetPark in Sedgefeld, Jade Enterprise Zone on the A19, Integra 61 on the A1, 
Forrest Park at Newton Aycliffe and Project Genesis in Consett.   

29 To support these prime locations, we are investing in our transport 
infrastructure.  Currently, there are junction improvements on our main road 
corridors on the A1 at Forrest Park and at the Sheraton junction on the A19. 
Opportunities to invest in and improve the East Coast Main Line are a priority 

Page 93



for us and our case will be highlighted to government to influence and support 
the new franchise for the east coast.  A new £13 million railway station at 
Horden will also unlock potential opportunities for further developments on the 
east coast. 

30 In Durham City, development of the Aykley Heads site will lead to the creation 
of up to 6,000 high quality, private sector jobs and a £400 million economic 
boost for the county.  Vacating our current HQ will free up a considerable 
amount of this valuable space and moving to the city’s waterside will help 
support the city’s economy.  We are also supporting other major 
developments in the city area including work related to Durham University’s 
masterplan and the Milburngate and Gates developments, which between 
them will offer a mixture of retail, residential, leisure and office space. 

31 We continue to invest in our town centres including Bishop Auckland, Stanley, 
Seaham, Spennymoor and Peterlee with plans to ensure there is a mix of 
retail and services to meet resident and business needs.  With £12m invested 
to date, we have also supported small business through our targeted business 
improvement programme and have recently commissioned town centre Wi-Fi 
solutions for Bishop Auckland and Stanley. 

32 Our DurhamWorks programme, which targets 16 to 24 year olds, has been 
granted a further £12 million of EU funding and extended to 2021 having so 
far signed up 5,000 young people, 3,100 of those having progressed into 
some form of employment or training. 

33 The visitor economy is also growing – more information is included in the 
visitor numbers section below. 

34 We’re also investing in business.  As well as having a stake in our business 
sites and providing business premises, we have our £20 million Finance 
Durham fund. Managed by Maven Capital partners, it provides flexible funding 
packages to ambitious businesses based in, or looking to relocate here and 
who are seeking the growth finance they need to thrive within the county.  
Funding allows them then to contribute to economic development, job creation 
and innovation within the county. 

Visitor economy 

35 Research published in July revealed that the county’s ambitious tourism 
targets have been exceeded three years ahead of schedule.  The STEAM 
research – which assesses data from attractions, accommodation, events, 
transport and visitor expenditure – shows that tourism is now worth 
£867million to the county’s economy.  

36 The annual study also showed that the county welcomed almost 20 million 
visitors in 2017, a 2.4 per cent increase on 2016, and the number of fulltime 
equivalent jobs supported by tourism was up 5 per cent in the same period. 

37 A number of factors have supported this record growth including a series of 
themed national destination marketing campaigns delivered by Visit County 
Durham, the council’s tourism arm, the opening of new hotels such as Hotel 

Page 94



Indigo in Durham City and Hotel 52 in Stanley and high profile events such as 
Lumiere which had a record 240,000 visitors in November 2017. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

38 A number of activities also support continued growth in the future for this 
important employment sector – tourism now accounts for 7 per cent of county-
wide employment. 

39 There is continuing investment in the county’s tourism product with substantial 
development in new attractions and facilities at Beamish Museum, and over 
£200 million worth of investment in Bishop Auckland including the outdoor 
spectacle of Kynren and The Auckland Project. 

40 Our festival programme continues to grow with world class events.  Lumiere 
has recently been recommissioned for 2019 and 2021 and planning for a 
special tenth anniversary edition next year is already underway.  Together 
with the Cricket World Cup and a new food festival at Seaham – 2019 
promises to be a bumper year for festivals. 

41 The Celebrating Durham campaign, which utilises the place brand This is 
Durham Place of Light, is also raising awareness of Durham as a vibrant 
destination to visit with outdoor advertising campaigns on the East Coast 
Mainline from Kings Cross to Edinburgh Waverley and at Newcastle Airport.  
There has also been sustained coverage of culture and business in the 
Journal and other regional news outlets (print and digital) as well as a Times 
supplement. 

42 The development work in Durham City has led to a number of enquiries from 
developers for potential hotel sites and Premier Inn have submitted a planning 
application as part of the Milburngate development. 

 

 

 

 

Page 95



 

 

Recent news  

 

Dozens of new recruits join the council 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

43 A campaign to recruit apprentices to posts across the council resulted in more 
than 500 applications. 

44 Fifty-three people were successful and were invited to attend an induction day 
at County Hall where they were able to meet managers and learn more about 
the authority. 

45 The apprentices are working across most council departments ranging from 
business admin to civil engineering, bricklayer to financial management, 
technical theatre assistant to large goods vehicle fitter, corporate fraud 
investigators to highways operatives, catering to corporate procurement. 

46 They vary from Intermediate (Level 2), Advanced (Level 3), higher (Level 4) to 
Degree (Level 6). 

47 An induction day was held for the apprentices at which they were welcomed 
by the council’s chief executive Terry Collins; managers from across the 
authority and trade union representatives; and learned more about the 
organisation and how it works.  

 

 

Page 96



 

Bin crews launch respect campaign 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

48 Bin crews, council managers, trade unions and police have joined together to 
highlight concerns over abuse, violence and reckless driving that endangers 
staff and the public.  

49 While over 250,000 bins are collected every week without issue, there is a low 
but growing number of cases where staff have been harassed or assaulted, 
and had a number of near misses as impatient motorists drive along 
pavements.  

50 Since introduction of CCTV on the vehicles a number of these incidents have 
been caught on camera, graphically illustrating the problem.  

51 The new respect campaign – which has the backing of Durham County 
Council, Durham Police and the Unison, Unite and GMB trade unions – 
follows 24 serious incidents in the last year. 

52 Whilst the overall number of incidents is low, the small number that do occur 
not only endanger crews, but can also impact on wider community safety too. 

53 One incident saw an impatient motorist driving on the pavement to avoid 
having to wait behind a refuse wagon – clearly endangering not only the 
vehicle’s crew but also pedestrians. 

 

  

Page 97



Archive receives national accreditation  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

54 The archive service for County Durham has received a prestigious national 
honour in recognition of its excellent practice and services. 

55 Durham County Record Office, run by Durham County Council, has been 
awarded Archive Service Accreditation. Only 5 per cent of the 2,500 archives 
in the UK hold the accreditation.  

56 Accreditation is the UK quality standard for archives, recognising good 
performance in all areas including management, the care of its unique 
collections and what the service offers to its entire range of users. 

57 Between 2017 and 2018 outside visitors engaged with the archive 900,000 
times in person, via the website and through enquiry services. The panel 
noted the Record Office’s excellent relationship with volunteers, including 
those who have worked on the Durham at War project which engaged over 
250 volunteers to create an interactive mapping website. 

58 The accreditation scheme is supported by a partnership of the Archives and 
Records Association (UK), Archives and Records Council Wales, National 
Records of Scotland, Public Record Office of Northern Ireland, Scottish 
Council on Archives, The National Archives and the Welsh Government 
through its Museums, Archives and Libraries Wales division. 

 

Page 98



Council set to deliver first phase of ‘game-changing’ business park  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

59 A new private sector business park capable of attracting up to 6,000 new jobs, 
worth £400 million to the county’s economy is set to move into its first phase 
of development. 

60 The unique site on Aykley Heads, set in mature parkland and with outstanding 
views over the World Heritage site, offers a once in a generation opportunity 
to transform Durham’s economic fortunes.  Already home to Atom Bank, the 
North East England Chamber and Salvus House – Aykley Heads is just a few 
minutes’ walk from both the city centre and the main line rail station.   

61 Now Durham County Council’s Cabinet has agreed a report which will trigger 
the development of phase one of the exciting project on the northern zone of 
the site, bringing forward 21,000 square feet of new business space next 
year. 

62 Expert led research has been completed to inform the best way to maximise 
the site’s potential and the building design will be flexible to accommodate 
multiple tenancies or expansion requirements for businesses locating onto the 
site. That approach will maximise potential demand and minimise the 
council’s financial risk.  

63 The site has the potential to attract over 700,000 square feet of development 
supporting approximately 6,000 new jobs.      
  

Page 99



 

We’ve bloomin’ done it! 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

64 County Durham is bloomin’ marvellous – that’s the verdict of judges of a 
prestigious regional gardening competition. 

65 The county has won a series of awards in Northumbria in Bloom, including 
best overall entry and best small city for Durham, and best large town for 
Chester-le-Street. 

There was further success for Sedgefield and Tanfield, in the best small town 
and best small village categories. 

66 Belmont also claimed best urban community, with the accolades adding to the 
county’s list of success in the annual competition over many years. 

67 The Durham City and Chester le Street entries were submitted by Durham 
County Council with the others put forward by either town or parish councils, 
or local ‘In Bloom’ groups. 

68 Northumbria In Bloom is part of the Royal Horticultural Society’s Britain in 
Bloom, a yearly nationwide gardening competition. Durham is in the running 
for an award in Britain in Bloom following its success in last year’s regional 
event, and welcomed judges from the national competition in August. 

Recommendation 

69 Cabinet is recommended to note the contents of this update. 

Page 100



Background papers 
 
 

Contact:  Theresa Rugman-Jones  Tel: 03000 268068 
  Julie Barnfather  Tel: 03000 268069 
  Emma Gardner  Tel: 03000 268054 

Page 101



 

Appendix 1:  Implications 

 
 
Finance – Not applicable. 

 

Staffing – Not applicable. 

 

Risk – Not applicable 

 

Equality and Diversity / Public Sector Equality Duty – Not applicable. 

 

Accommodation– Not applicable. 

 

Crime and Disorder– Not applicable. 

 

Human Rights– Not applicable. 

 

Consultation– Not applicable. 

 

Procurement– Not applicable. 

 

Disability Issues– Not applicable 

 

Legal Implications– Not applicable. 

 
 

Page 102



1 

 

 

Cabinet 

17 October 2018 

Draft Children and Young People’s 
Strategy 

 

 

Report of Corporate Management Team 

Margaret Whellans, Corporate Director of Children and Young People’s 
Service  

Lorraine O’Donnell, Director of Transformation and Partnerships 

Councillor Olwyn Gunn, Cabinet Portfolio Holder for Children and Young 
People’s Services 

Purpose of the Report 

1 The purpose of this report is to present Cabinet with the draft Children and Young 
People’s Strategy 2018/19 - 2020/21 (attached as Appendix 2) for comment. 

Background   

2 The Children, Young People and Families Plan 2016-2019 is due for renewal in 
April 2019 and there have been significant changes in the context for delivery 
nationally and in Durham in relation to children and young people. 

3 There have been some significant achievements for children and young people 
including the transformation of One Point children’s centres, which offered services 
for 0-5 year olds have become ‘family centres’ with services for 0-19 year olds and 
aim to provide a seamless service including practical help for those dealing with 
poverty and debt, and support to find the training and employment they need. It also 
includes the development of a Voluntary and Community Sector Alliance, to better 
coordinate the support in an area, make sure that people know what is available to 
them and help them to access it. 

4 For the first time, young people who are looked after by Durham County Council, 
have helped to write the 2017-18 Corporate Parenting Panel Annual Report.  The 
young people from the County Durham Children in Care Council (CICC) have 
influenced the content, writing style and design of the annual report, to ensure it is 
easy to read and understand. 

5 However, evidence shows we are not where we need to be on performance of 
children and young people’s services and inspection judgements for children’s 
social care and Special Educational Needs and Disabilities (SEND) services show a 
need for improvement, 39% of secondary schools require improvement, GCSE 
attainment is worse than nationally for the first time in 10 years and youth 
unemployment worse than the national average. 

6 The draft Children and Young People’s Strategy (CYPS) 2018/19 - 2020/21 is a 
partnership strategy for all children and young people and their families in County 
Durham.  The aim of this strategy is to provide focus and clarity on the priorities for 
improving services and life opportunities for children and young people.  

Page 103

Agenda Item 8



2 

 

7 The document considers what life is currently like for children and young people in 
County Durham, based on feedback from children and young people and analysis 
of their needs. It sets out where we want to be in three years and what actions we 
will undertake to achieve this. For the public it provides a summary of the 
importance of services and support for children and young people, who are the 
future of our county, and what they can expect from local services.  

Vision, aims and objectives 

8 Stage one of the consultation which looked at the proposed vision, aims and 
objectives, took place throughout May, June and July. This gave children and 
young people, management teams, Integrated Steering Group for Children (ISGC), 
partnerships (including the Children and Families Partnership and the Corporate 
Parenting Panel) and Children and Young People’s Overview and Scrutiny the 
opportunity to provide feedback on the proposed vision, aims and objectives of the 
strategy. 

9 The draft vision for the CYPS is: 

“County Durham will be a great place for children and young people to grow 
up in and for County Durham to be a place where all children are healthy, 
happy and achieving their potential”. 

10 The draft aims of the CYPS are as follows: 

a. All children and young people have a safe childhood 

b. Children and young people enjoy the best start in life, good health and 
emotional wellbeing 

c. Young people can access good quality education, training and local 
employment 

d. Achieve the best possible outcomes for children and young people with 
special educational needs and disabilities 

Consultation 

11 Engagement took place with a number of children and young people aged 4 to 22 
within County Durham through two Investing in Children agenda days. Children and 
Young People from different groups including young people with SEND, Children in 
Care, Lesbian, Gay, Bisexual, Transgender and Questioning (LGBTQ) and different 
areas across County Durham have had the opportunity to have their voice heard 
and views listened to.  

12 As part of the Children and Families Partnership, a Student Voice survey (an online 
questionnaire) took place in both primary and secondary schools in County Durham 
between January and April 2017. Of the 204 primary schools 97 participated (3,719 
students) and 20 of the 33 secondary schools (5,640 students). In total, more than 
a third of all eligible students in County Durham participated in the engagement. 
The survey is planned to be completed again in 2019.  

13 The issues which young people consider important to them include:  

a. Children and young people feel they need more support when leaving school 
to get into further education, training or employment. With a specific 
emphasis being placed upon more support needed for students who 
experience mental health difficulties.  

b. Young people reported that they would benefit from receiving more life skills 
at school  

Page 104



3 

 

c. Bullying appears to be apparent across the age groups. Children and young 
people reported that more needs to be done within school policies to ensure 
this is dealt with properly. 

d. Children and young people reported a lack of financial resources which 
negatively impacts on experiences in and out of school and therefore 
impacts on overall health and wellbeing 

e. The need to feel safer at home, school and in the community with consistent 
stability from parents, guardians and teachers was highlighted for all children 
and young people including those looked after.  

f. Children and young people felt that parental drug and alcohol misuse had 
negative impacts on overall health and wellbeing 

 
14 Stage two of the consultation is currently taking place and will give partners and 

stakeholders the opportunity to comment on the draft strategy before final sign off of 
the CYPS by the Children and Families Partnership. 

15 Stage two of the consultation has so far included management teams, CCG 
Executive Group, Children and Young People’s Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
and has been sent to the County Durham Partnership, thematic partnerships and 
AAP coordinators to share with their Boards for comment by 22nd October 2019. 

16 An Equality Impact Assessment screening tool has been completed as part of the 
process for developing the CYPS and is attached to this report at Appendix 3.  A full 
Equality Impact Assessment is being undertaken and will be attached to the final 
Cabinet report on 16th January 2019. 

17 It has been agreed that this strategy will be a blueprint for other partnership 
strategies which are due for review from April 2019, including the Joint Health and 
Wellbeing Strategy and Safer Durham Partnership Plan.   

Next steps  

18 Cabinet are requested to note the following key dates for the development of the 
CYPS 2018/19 - 2020/21. 

a. Local Safeguarding Children Board – 12th October 2018 

b. Integrated Care Board – 19th October 2018 

c. Meetings with partner representatives – During October 2018 

d. Final version of CYPS will be actively sign up to and agreed by members of 
the Children and Families Partnership – November 2018 

e. Cabinet receives final version of CYPS to ensure continued delivery and 
support for our young people – 16th January 2019 

Recommendations and reasons 

19 Cabinet is requested to: 

a. Receive the draft Children and Young People’s Strategy and comment 
accordingly (Appendix 2). 

  

Contact:  Jenny Haworth, Head of Strategy Durham County Council  

Tel: 03000 268071 

 

Page 105



4 

 

Appendix 1:  Implications 

 

Finance – Resources will need to be agreed and will guide resource decisions and 
priorities. 

Staffing – Resources will need to be agreed and will guide resource decisions and 
priorities. 

Risk – A clear strategy framework is vital to ensure improvement in Children’s services 
across the County. 

Equality and Diversity / Public Sector Equality Duty – An Equality Impact 
Assessment is being undertaken as part of the process for developing the CYPS.  

Accommodation - None 

Crime and Disorder – “All children and young people have a safe childhood” is a key 
aim of the CYPS and the Safe Durham Partnership are included in the consultation. 

Human Rights – None 

Consultation - Extensive consultation is being carried out in the development of this 
plan which is outlined in the report. Partners and children and young people have all 
been provided an opportunity to shape the direction and the content of this plan. 

Procurement – None 

Disability Issues – See Equality and Diversity / Public Sector Equality Duty. The draft 
strategy includes the aim of “Achieve the best possible outcomes for children and 
young people with special educational needs and disabilities” 

Legal Implications – The CYPS ensures it will incorporate the legal requirements 
pertaining to Children’s services. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 106



5 

 

 

Appendix 2:  Draft Children and Young People’s Strategy 

 

Attached as a separate document. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 107



6 

 

 

Appendix 3:  Equality Impact Assessment screening tool 

 

Attached as a separate document. 
 

 

 

 

Page 108



 
 
 

11 
  

 

 

 

County Durham  

 

Draft Children and Young People’s Strategy 

 

2018/19 - 2020/21 

 

 

 
To include partnership organisation logos in final version 

P
age 109



1 
 

Purpose 

This is a partnership strategy for all children and young people and their families in County 
Durham. 

The aim of this strategy is to provide focus and clarity on the priorities for improving services 
and life opportunities for children and young people. The document considers what life is 
currently like for children and young people in County Durham, based on feedback from 
children and young people and analysis of their needs. It sets out where we want to be in three 
years and what actions we will undertake to achieve this. For the public it provides a summary 
of the importance of services and support for children and young people, who are the future of 
our county, and what they can expect from local services.  

This strategy has been prepared jointly by all public services and voluntary and community 
services including the Council, local health services and the police who work together to 
improve outcomes for children, young people and their families through the Children and 
Families Partnership. 

For those responsible for delivering services, any future work programmes should contribute to 
achieving the aims set out in this strategy. It can therefore be used as an aid in deciding what 
to do and of equal importance, what not to do. Members, officers and partners will find this 
document of practical use in evaluating whether to participate in new national initiatives and 
funding bids and help select the work programmes that we need to do. The strategy is 
therefore a living document that is designed to be used regularly. 

 

National Policy  

There is a huge amount of national legislative and policy change affecting children’s services 

which have informed this strategy. Key policy areas are:  

 The strengthened Working together to Safeguard Children guidance published in July 

2018 aims to improve partnership working to protect children and young people. It sets 

new legal requirements for the police, Clinical Commissioning Groups and local 

authorities to make joint decisions to meet the welfare and safeguarding needs of local 

children and families.  

 The independent review, Foster care in England, published in February 2018, sets out 

six priority areas for the government’s vision for a better care system, driven by 

children’s needs and views.  

 The government’s Childhood Obesity: a plan for action, Part 1 and 2, published in 

June 2018, aims to reduce England’s childhood obesity within the next 10 years. Their 

goal is to half childhood obesity and reduce the gap in obesity between children from the 

most and least deprived areas by 2030.  

 Transforming children and young people’s mental health provision: a green 

paper, published in December 2017, proposes measures to improve mental health 

support for children and young people through earlier intervention and prevention, 

especially in schools and colleges.  

 The government is also consulting on draft regulations and statutory guidance relating to 

Relationships Education, RSE and Health Education which includes teaching 

children about physical and good mental health, online safety and healthy relationships.  

 The Internet Safety Strategy Green Paper, published in May 2018, considers 

developing children’s digital literacy and the safety of young people’s use of online 

dating websites and applications.  

 The Civil Society Strategy: Building a Future that Works for Everyone, published in 

August 2018, sets out how the government will work with and for civil society in the long-

term to create a country that works for everyone, including a review of the statutory duty 

placed on local authorities to provide appropriate local youth services.  

 Investment is part of an £800m package of measures in its social mobility action plan, 

called Unlocking Talent, Fulfilling Potential, aimed at boosting the life chances of 

disadvantaged young people.  The £50m early years investment aims to provide better 

access for children to highly qualified early years staff in areas of high deprivation and 

will be focused on improving nursery provision within school settings, as they are 

required to have graduate teachers.  The money will be used to ensure more newly built 

schools have nursery provision and to introduce and expand provision in high-

performing primary schools. 

 Ofsted’s new Inspecting Local Authorities Children’s Services (ILACS) Framework 

changes the way local authorities are inspected depending on previous judgement and 

places a stronger emphasis on partnership working within front-line services to improve 

children and young people’s lives.  

 There is also a new inspection framework for youth offending and a new education 

inspection framework expected early in 2019.  

 

Vision for Children and Young People in County Durham 

County Durham is changing. Throughout the last few years, the County Durham Partnership 

have had an unwavering focus on economic regeneration, in order to make Durham a better 

place to live and work, investing in local businesses, people and skills. The result of this focus 

is that the economy of the county has a stronger and more balanced mix of employment 

opportunities for residents, including industry, manufacturing, service sector, public sector and 

self-employment.  

The County Durham Partnership also have a longstanding commitment to make life better for 

children and young people in the county, and this is a strategic priority for all partners. We want 

to renew and strengthen our focus on improving life for our children and young people, by 

improving the access they and their families have to these economic opportunities, as well as 

improving children’s health, education, safety, and transitions into adulthood.  

 

 

 

 

P
age 110

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/improving-social-mobility-through-education


2 
 

Aims 

Our vision is that County Durham will be a great place for children and young people to grow 

up in and for Durham to be a place where all children are healthy, happy and achieving their 

potential. To achieve this, we have developed four key aims:  

County Durham will be the best area in the North East for children and young people to grow 

up in and be a place where all children are healthy, happy and achieving their potential 

 

1. All children and young people have a safe childhood 

2. Children and Young People enjoy the best start in life, good health and emotional 

wellbeing 

3. Young people can access good quality education, training and local employment  

4. Achieve the best possible outcomes for children and young people with special 

educational needs and disabilities  

 

 

Aim 1  

All children and young people have a safe childhood. 

We will provide a range of services for children, young people and families to help ensure they 

achieve this aim. We will focus on preventative measures through our early help and 

intervention services and will ensure that all children in need of help and protection are 

protected from harm. For those needing our statutory support services we will ensure that our 

social work practice is of a high standard. We will be an excellent corporate parent to the 

children and young people within the Council’s care and for those leaving the care system. We 

will work with education, youth support and other networks to ensure good services are 

available to all our children, young people and their families. 

 

Aim 2 

Children and Young People enjoy the best start in life, good health and emotional 

wellbeing.   

Better outcomes for children cannot be achieved through health and social care service 

improvement in isolation. How children live, learn and play are all key drivers of healthy 

development. Parenting is critical to a child’s development and evidence shows children who 

are exposed to adverse events such as domestic abuse or alcohol misuse can be affected 

negatively, both physically and mentally, throughout their adolescence and into adult life. 

Education, housing, community connections, employment and poverty all determine whether a 

child will be more likely to thrive and achieve their optimum potential in life.  We will work to 

ensure our children enjoy the best start in life and have good health and wellbeing, offering 

help when required. For our more vulnerable children and families we will provide a more 

targeted offer of support to reduce inequalities in outcomes. Children and young people will be 

supported to achieve their optimum mental health and wellbeing 

 

Aim 3 

Young people can access good quality local education, training and employment.  

We will focus on improving the educational attainment of our children and young people at 

least to a level where we are the best in the North East. We also need to ensure that young 

people have the right skills and are prepared for work and we need to work together to ensure 

children develop a love of learning in addition to ensuring that there are sufficient employment 

and training opportunities available. We will offer additional support for children who are 

vulnerable or who have additional needs.  

 

Aim 4 

Achieve the best possible outcomes for children and young people with special 

educational needs and disabilities (SEND)  

We aim to ensure that children and young people with special educational needs and 

disabilities have high quality support which meets their needs. Children, young people and their 

families will be involved in the design and plans for these services, with their voice being 

listened to and where possible acted upon. It is important that we are able to support these 

children and young people to secure meaningful employment which enables and prepares 

them to live independently into adult life.   

 

Promoting Equality of Opportunity 

In developing this strategy we recognise that income poverty is the most important driver of 
outcomes for children and young people. Our ambitions are underpinned by an unrelenting 
cross-partnership focus on tackling the impact of poverty and disadvantage on all 
residents, including children, young people and their families.  We have formed a Child 
Poverty Working Group, which aims to develop and implement a single coherent and 
coordinated approach to addressing and mitigating child poverty across County Durham.  The 
objectives of the group are being delivered through three key strands, namely; language and 
values associated with child poverty; poverty management in the community linked to early 
help; and an economic - inclusive growth approach. 

Health and wellbeing inequalities 

We understand that economic factors, alongside environmental and social inequalities can 

determine children, young people and their families’ risk of getting ill, their ability to prevent 

sickness, or their access to effective treatments. We have based our improvement plans on 

this understanding of the relationship between individuals and families, their environment and 

health (see diagram on next page). Individuals are placed at the centre and surrounding them 

are the various layers of influences on health – such as individual lifestyle factors, community 

influences, living and working conditions, and more general social conditions. This context is 

essential as the ability to achieve changes in outcomes is dependent on the wider influences of 

health. 

P
age 111



3 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Listening to our children, young people, families and local communities to improve 

services 

We recognise that we have responsibilities to ensure that all of our children, young people and 

their families are included within the opportunities that this vision will provide. We aim to listen 

to our children, young people and families, and continually review and learn from them, leading 

a programme of service improvement to better meet their needs. 

We are passionate about understanding individual needs and improving the life chances and 

wellbeing for children, young people and families who need extra support and care, including: 

 Young carers 

 Disabled children  

 Children in poverty 

 Families affected by substance misuse, mental health and domestic violence 

 Children with special educational needs 

 Children in care 

 Care leavers  

 Children subject to a care plan or child protection plan  

 Children and families who are economically disadvantaged  

 Unaccompanied asylum seeking children  

 Children with mental health needs 

 Young people who offend  

We want to ensure that all children and their families are fully able to take advantage of the 

opportunities we are creating for better employment and prosperity. This will mean better 

safeguarding, and a passionate commitment to ensuring that children have safe, loving and 

stable home environments, with any risks dealt with quickly and effectively.  

We will work more closely with families, schools, colleges and employers to ensure our children 

have a good start in life, good education and develop the skills to access good quality 

employment. We will work with employers to ensure that there are routes for young people into 

the new jobs that are on offer. 

We are also ambitious to improve the health of our children and young people. Our children 

and families have a challenging legacy in terms of higher than average levels of deprivation in 

the county, in particular key health measures such as childhood obesity, smoking and teenage 

pregnancies are not as good as we would like. Our vision is that all of our children have the 

opportunity to live healthy lives, and have the right environment for this to be achieved with 

optimum access to effective and advice which meet their needs. 

As our economic prospects improve, people of the county, its businesses and public sector 

bodies are looking forward. In looking to our future as a county, we are placing our children and 

young people at the heart of our thinking.  

An engagement strategy is currently been developed which outlines how partners will listen to 
our children, young people and families so that their ‘voice’ is heard and acted upon.  
 
 

 

Opportunities for children, young people and families to get involved:  

 

 

 

 

We have adopted a charter approach to listening to and acting upon the views and 

experiences of children and their families. The following charters are commitments of the 

Children and Families Partnership:  

 Investing in Children Membership award 

 Young Carer’s Charter 

 SEND Promise  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 Investing in Children 

(Children in Care Council)  

 Making Changes Together 

 Student Voice Survey 

 Bridge Young Carer’s service 

 

 Care Leavers Forum  

 DISC 

 Young Durham Facebook 

 LAC Young people’s service 

 AAP’s  

 

 

P
age 112



4 
 

Investing in Children Engagement  
Engagement has taken place with a number of children and young people aged 4 to 22 within 

County Durham through two Investing in Children agenda days. Children and Young People 

from different groups within Investing in Children, including young people with SEND, Children 

in Care, Lesbian, Gay, Bisexual, Transgender and Questioning (LGBTQ) and different areas 

across County Durham have had the opportunity to have their voice heard and views listened 

to. This engagement enables us to evaluate children and young people’s perceptions of current 

issues within education, health, special needs/disabilities and emotional wellbeing.  

Key findings from the Investing in Children Agenda day tell us that: 

 Children and young people feel they need more support when leaving school to get into 

further education, training or employment. With a specific emphasis being placed upon 

more support needed for students who experience mental health difficulties.  

 Young people reported that they would benefit from receiving more life skills at school.  

 Bullying appears to be apparent across the age groups. Children and young people 

reported that more needs to be done within school policies to ensure this is dealt with 

properly. 

 Children and young people reported a lack of financial resources which negatively 

impacts on experiences in and out of school and therefore impacts on overall health and 

wellbeing. 

 The need to feel safer at home, school and in the community with consistent stability 

from parents, guardians and teachers was highlighted for all children and young people 

including those looked after.  

 Children and young people felt that parental drug and alcohol misuse had negative 

impacts on overall health and wellbeing. 

Student Voice Survey ‘You Said’ 

As part of the Children and Families Partnership, a Student Voice survey (an online 

questionnaire) took place in both primary and secondary schools in County Durham between 

January and April 2017. Of the 204 primary schools 97 participated (3,719 students) and 20 of 

the 33 secondary schools (5,640 students). In total, more than a third of all eligible students in 

County Durham participated in the engagement. The survey is planned to be completed again 

in 2019.  

The Student Voice Survey indicates that: 

 53% of secondary school students feel that they are achieving expected progress in 

Reading, Writing and Numeracy 

 1,481 primary school pupils and 1,418 secondary school pupils who participated said 

that they had been bullied at their current school  

 In primary school bullying is more prevalent in above average Free School Meals (FSM) 

schools and Free School Meals eligible pupils in secondary school are more likely to 

have been bullied  

 The vast majority of both primary and secondary pupils reported that they feel safe. 

Feelings of safety are reported lowest at break time (primary) and around school when 

not in lessons (secondary) 

 2.6% of primary pupils reported never feeling safe when outside of school compared to 

6% of secondary pupils  

 The survey found that only 52.2% of Year 11 pupils knew how to get an apprenticeship  

 A higher percentage of boys (in both primary and secondary) reported to consuming one 

or more energy drinks per day  

 Only 37.1% of boys and 31.2% of girls in primary and 25.5% of boys and 17.7% of girls 

in secondary reported to being physically active for at least 60 minutes on all 7 days  

 In primary schools with above average FSM, significantly fewer pupils eat their 5-a-day 

(54.0% compared to 62.6%). FSM eligibility is also associated with less engagement 

with clubs outside of school. 

‘We did’  
Some of the immediate actions we have taken to respond to things children, young people and 

families have said are set out below. Key elements from the engagement have informed the 

priorities of this strategy.   

You said: bullying is more prevalent in above average FSM schools and FSM eligible pupils 

are more likely to be bullied  

We did: The Child Poverty Working Group (CPWG), in partnership with Education 

Durham, have developed a ‘cut the cost of the school day’ training programme which 

aims to reduce the stigma associated with living in poverty, increase opportunities for 

pupils living in poverty to access educational opportunities in school and extracurricular 

and challenge staff and pupil perceptions of poverty and deprivation. The training 

programme will be rolled out to both primary and secondary schools over the next three 

academic years (with a number of schools already signed up). 

You said: 1,481 primary school pupils and 1,418 secondary school pupils said that they had 

been bullied at their current school  

We did: The Children and Young People Mental Health, Emotional Wellbeing and 

Resilience group have agreed the roll out of the Durham Resilience programme to 25 

schools per year and to deliver the YAM (Youth Aware of Mental Health) programme in 

10 schools in 2017/18 and 20 schools in 2018/19. Providing emotional wellbeing and 

resilience nurses to build capacity and upskill staff and school nurses is also a key 

priority of the 0-19 programme. 

You said: pupils aren’t engaging in at least 60 minutes of physical activity every day   

We did: Public Health, education, culture and sport along with other partners have 

developed the ‘Active 30’ programme to encourage schools to get pupils more active by 

pledging to achieve 10, 20 or 30 minutes of exercise per day. Schools will be given tools 

that will encourage leaders in the educational sector to embed physical activity right 

across the agenda. This is being rolled out to schools during the 2018/19 academic year 

(with a number of schools already signed up). 

You said: 47.8% of Year 11 pupils did not know how to get an apprenticeship 

We did: promote careers education information and guidance information resources to 

increase awareness of all post-16 options (including apprenticeships) 

P
age 113



 
 
 

11 
  

100,500
children aged 0-17

Around 

21,000
children living in 

poverty 

Around

3,500
children in need

Around  

800 
looked after 

children

Around

10,200
young people with 

SEND at school

10%
of children have 

a diagnosable 
mental health 

disorder

72% of 

children achieving a 
good level of 

development at the 
end of reception 

Almost 500
children subject of 
a child protection 

plan 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

Where we are now 

Children and young people in County Durham 

20.9%.This is significantly higher than 

England, but lower than the North East. 

81 per 10,000. This rate is rising, showing an increase of 

over 50% since 2011, and is significantly higher than 

England but lower than the North East. 

14.5% of all school pupils. This is now not 

significantly different from England. 

408.5 per 10,000 children. Significantly higher than England 

(330/10,000) but lower than the North East (451.6/10,000). 

0

25

50

75

100

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

R
at

e 
pe

r 
10

0,
00

0

Durham England

0

10

20

30

England North East County Durham

%

0
5

10
15
20
25

England North East County Durham

%

0

25

50

75

England North East County
Durham

C
ru

de
 r

at
e 

pe
r 

10
,0

00

49.7 per 10,000 children. Higher in County Durham than 

England but lower than the North East. 

That’s around 10,000 children in County Durham. 

One Point report an additional 2,500 children 

& young people who do not meet the statutory 

threshold 

Statistically significantly worse than England

Statistically significantly better than England

Not significantly different to England

0
20
40
60
80

2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17

%

England County Durham

Now significantly better than England 

P
age 114



6 
 

 

   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Around              

5,300
babies are born per 

year

Around

900
babies born to 
mothers who 

smoke
Around 

150
low birthweight 

babies born 
annually

56%
of women 
breastfeed 

straight after 
birth

28%                        
still 

breastfeeding 
at 6-8 weeks

98%
of babies are 
imunised by     

age 1

15-20%
of women will 

experience poor 
perinatal mental 

health

This is significantly lower than England and the 

North East. Little change locally since 2011 

Significantly higher than England, and similar than the North East. 

3%, similar to 

England and the 

North East 

Pre and post birth 

No change over time 

0

25

50

75

100

2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17

%

Durham England

This is significantly lower than 

England and the North East.  0
10
20
30
40
50

England North East County Durham

%

Statistically significantly worse than England

Statistically significantly better than England

Not significantly different to England

The distribution of breastfeeding prevalence across County Durham 

is not equal. It is lower in the most deprived areas 

16.7%, significantly higher than England, and 

similar than the North East. 

0

10

20

30

40

2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17

%

Durham England

The distribution of SATOD across County Durham (by MSOA) is 

unequal. It is higher in the more deprived areas. 

That’s between around 760 and 1020 women in County Durham 

(based on around 5,100 women giving birth annually 

The distribution of breastfeeding initiation across County 

Durham is not equal. It is lower in the most deprived areas. 

P
age 115



7 
 

 

 
  

Early Years and Primary School 

33,447 
aged 0-5

35,394 
aged 6-11

72%
achieve a good 

level of 
development at 

end of Reception 57%
FSM status 

achieving good 
level of 

development at 
the end of 
Reception

Around 

1,400
children  aged 
5-6 overweight 

or obese

26%
of 5 year olds 
have decayed, 

filled or 
missing teeth 

(DMFT)

38%    
of children aged 

10-11 are 
overweight 

Nearly

1,500
hospital admissions 
caused by injuries in 
children (0-14 years)

This has been rising over time, now 

significantly higher than England. 

24.1%. This has been rising over time, now 

significantly higher than England. 

0
20

40

60

80

2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17

%

England Durham

0

10

20

30

%

England Durham

This is significantly higher than England. 

That’s over 2,000 year 6 children in County Durham. This has 

been rising over time, now significantly higher than England. 

0
10
20
30
40

%

England Durham

171.3/100,000. Significantly higher than England. Little change 

over time locally, compared to a slow reduction seen nationally. 

The distribution of DMFT across County Durham is not 

equal. It is higher in the more deprived areas 

0
50

100
150
200

R
at

e 
/1

00
,0

00

England Durham

Statistically significantly worse than England

Statistically significantly better than England

Not significantly different to England

The distribution of excess weight and obesity 

across County Durham is not equal. It is higher in 

the more deprived areas 

0

10

20

30

England North East County Durham

%

Similar to England and the North East.  Locally the proportion has more 

than doubled over time, faster than the national improvement. 

0
20
40
60
80

2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17

%

England County Durham

P
age 116



8 
 

•  

•  

•  

•  

•  

•  

•  

•  

•  

•  

•  

•  

•  

•  

•  

•  

•  

•  

•  

•  

•  

•  

•  

•  

•  

•  

•  

•  

•  

•  

•  

•  

•  

•  

•  

•  

•  

•  

•  

•  

•  

•  

•  

Secondary school and transitions 

26,231
aged 12-16

11,561      
aged 17-18

58%
young people 
gain 5 good 

GCSEs Around 

168
first-time 

young                
offenders

Around 6%     
16-17 year olds 

not in education, 
employment or 

training 

Over 

8,400 
A&E 

attendances 
(15-17 years)

216     
hospital admissions 
a year as a result of 

self-harm

196
under 18s admitted 

to hospital for 
alchohol specific 

conditions

173       
teenage conceptions 

(2016)

This has been rising over time, not significantly different to England or the North East. 

22 per 1,000 teenage conceptions in 2016, the lowest since the 

1998 benchmark. A decreasing trend locally and nationally.  The rate 

is now not significantly different to England 

0
10
20
30
40

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016

R
at

e 
/1

,0
00

Durham England

That’s around 600 young people aged 16-17.                                               

The proportion is not significantly different to England 

or the North East. 

391 per 100,000. That’s around 600 young people aged 

16-17. The proportion is not significantly different to 

England or the North East 

Statistically significantly worse than England

Statistically significantly better than England

Not significantly different to England

495 per 100,000. Now statistically significantly higher 

than England and the North East.  

0
100
200
300
400
500

England North East County Durham

R
at

e
/1

00
,0

00

56.2 per 100,000. Decreasing trend locally and nationally. 

Significantly higher in County Durham than England 

0
50

100
150
200

R
at

e 
/1

00
,0

00

Durham England

401 per 100,000. Decreasing trend locally and the rate 

is now not significantly different to England 

0

200

400

600

800

2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17

R
at

e 
pe

r 
10

0,
00

0

0
250
500
750

1,000

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016R
at

e 
/1

00
,0

00

England County Durham

P
age 117



9 
 

•  

  0-5s, how many <12s? 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Vulnerability: The scale of the challenge 

100,540
children & young 

people

Around 6,000 
children known to 

social care/early help

3,500 
children in need

Almost 500 
children subject of a 

CPP

Over 800 
looked after 

childrenAround 

10,200 
children with 

SEND

Around 1,800
school pupils with social, 

emotional and mental 
health needs

Around

10,000 
children with a 

diagnosable mental 
health condition 

Around 

21,000
children living in 

poverty

Child poverty is unequally distributed within County Durham.         

2.6% of all school pupils in 

County Durham.                                            

408.5 per 10,000 children. Significantly higher than England 

(330/10,000) but lower than the North East (451.6/10,000). 

49.7 per 10,000 children. Higher in County Durham than 

England but lower than the North East. 

81 per 10,000. This rate is rising, showing an increase 

of over 50% since 2011, and is significantly higher 

than England but lower than the North East. 

10% of children in 

County Durham 

14.5% of all school pupils. This is now not 

significantly different from England. 

% of children living in the 30% 

most deprived LSOAs, by 

County Durham and CCG 

locality 

P
age 118



10 
 

 

 
Within  

 

 

 

 

 

 

     

 

    

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
  

Measuring inequalities within County Durham 

County Durham there is inequality from pre-birth, throughout childhood and adolescence 

Life expectancy at birth is shorter
7.7 yrs shorter for males

7.1 yrs shorter for females

Fewer mothers breastfeed for longer The gap at 6-8 weeks is almost 100%

More mothers are smokers when they have their 
baby 

4 out of 5 areas with the highest prevalence are 
in the most deprived decile

More children have excess weight A 20% gap for children aged 4-5 and 10-11

In the more deprived areas of County Durham: 

Map showing 30% most deprived MSOAs nationally in County Durham 

 

Implications for improving life in County Durham 
 

Pre and post birth  

 Reduce the number of mothers who smoke 

 Increase breastfeeding 

 Increase services for perinatal mental health  

 

Early years and primary school 

 Increase attainment levels for all children  

 Improve mental health 

 Improve dental health 

 Reduce the number of hospital  

admissions for unintentional injuries  

 Reduce the number of children who are 

overweight or obese 

 

 

Secondary school and Transitions 

 Improve educational attainment 

 Look at A&E attendances 

 Reduce hospital admissions for alcohol 

related attendances  

 Reduce hospital admissions as a result 

of self-harm 

 Improve mental health and wellbeing 

 Continue to reduce teenage 

conceptions  

 

P
age 119



 
 
 

11 
  

Current Model 

What are services for children?  

Local services for all children and young people include: 

o Schools and nurseries 

o Sports and leisure activities and facilities 

o Libraries 

o Arts and cultural activities 

o Green spaces 

o Transport 

o Communities 

o Health care 

o Primary Health care 

o Specialist Health care including Child and Adolescent Mental Health Services 

(CAMHS) 

o Social care and specialist services for those needing extra support  

How are service provided? 

Our services cover all 100,540 children and young people aged 0 to 19 in the county with extra 

services for those with additional needs across health, education and social care.  

Where there is a child safeguarding issue all partners work together within the model for 

services for children, outlined below, to deliver services to protect children and young people.  

Future Health and social care integration  

With the intention to create an integrated health and social care plan for County Durham there 

is the opportunity to look at how money and resources are best managed in a collaborative 

way to reduce duplication and maximise the effectiveness and quality of service offer. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Model: Services for Children (figures as at July 2018)  

 

 

 

 

Key 
One Point Family Centres provides a variety of free advice and support and a range of 
activities from children and their families. 
 
Families First Teams are multiagency locality based teams providing a range of 
services from early help to safeguarding 
 
MARAC provides a mechanism for partners (including social workers, health and police) 
to work together to ensure children are safe. 
 

 

P
age 120



 

12 
 

County Durham Draft Children and Young People’s Strategy 

Vision: County Durham will be a great place for children and young people to grow up in and for Durham to be a place where all children are healthy, happy and achieving their potential. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Aims 

2. Children and young people 

enjoy the best start in life, 

good health and emotional 

wellbeing 

3. Young people can access 
good quality local, education 

training and employment 

1. All children and young 

people have a safe childhood 

Objectives 

2.1 Ensure that every child 
has the best start in life  

(0 - 5) 

2.2 High quality nursery and 
primary education which 
meets all children’s needs  

3.2 Good quality 

employment and training 

opportunities for all young 

people 

3.1 Children and Young 

People have the best 

possible education 

3.4 Young people are 

prepared for work 

4. Achieve the best 

possible outcomes for 

children and young people 

with special educational 

needs and disabilities 

4.2 Young people with 

special educational needs 

and disabilities secure 

meaningful employment  

4.3 Ensure that young 

people with special 

educational needs and 

disabilities are well 

prepared for adult lives and 

can live independently  
 

4.1 Children and young people 
with special educational 
needs and disabilities have 
high quality support, which 

meets their needs 

1.1 Provide a range of 

universal services for 

children, young people and 

families 

1.2 Protect and support those 

children and young people in 

need of help and protection 

1.4 Provide excellent care for 

looked after children and care 

leavers 

2.3 Improve health and 
wellbeing outcomes for 
children with a specific focus 
on vulnerable young people 
(5-24) 

2.4 Children and young people 
and their families are supported 
to achieve their optimum 

mental health and wellbeing 

3.3 Improved educational 

attainment for all 

disadvantaged children and 

young people 

1.3 Provide excellent social 

work practice and support for 

children, young people and 

families in County Durham 

 

P
age 121



 

13 
 

County Durham Draft Children and Young People’s Strategy 

Vision: County Durham will be a great place for children and young people to grow up in and for Durham to be a place where all children are healthy, happy and achieving their potential. 

This element of the strategy fully reflects the Ofsted annual conversation self-assessment action plan  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Aims 

Objectives 

What do we need to be good at? (core deliverables) 

 Ensure high quality case work 

 Ensure that statutory work is undertaken 

in a timely and responsive way 

 Consistency of decision making across  

front line staff 

What will help us achieve our objectives? (enabling factors) 

Partnership Working 

 Strong partnership governance 

arrangements 

 Strong multi-agency auditing 

arrangements 

 A new LSCB structure 

 

 

1. All children and young 

people have a safe  

childhood 

1.2 Protect and support those 

children and young people in 

need of help and protection 

1.3 Provide excellent social 

work practice and support for 

children, young people and 

families in County Durham 

 Strong quality framework for social work practice  

 Having consistent and manageable caseloads 

 Embed feedback from children and young people in 

service design and delivery 

 

 

Performance Management 

 Liquidlogic case management system 

 Real time analysis of performance 

 Systematic learning from internal and external scrutiny 

 Leaning out inefficient use of social worker time 

 Strong frameworks to ensure children are kept safe 

1.4 Provide excellent care for 

looked after children and care 

leavers 

Participation  

 Systematic analysis of feedback from 

children, young people and their 

families 

 Signs of Safety model 

 All plans for looked after children achieve a 

permanent, safe and loving living 

arrangement throughout childhood and 

beyond 

 Ensure sufficiency of high quality 

placements to meet demands of the children 

we look after  

 We have a comprehensive “Care Leaver 

Offer” for care leavers 

 

Supporting arrangements  

 Work through AAPs to build 
community resilience  

 Work with VCS to develop effective 
community services  

 Early help family centres 
 

 

1.1 Provide a range of 

universal services for 

children, young people and 

families 

 Early intervention and prevention  

 Safe maternity – Child Death Overview 

Panel (CDOP) thematic review  

 Reducing unintentional injuries and 
minor injuries  

 

P
age 122



 

14 
 

County Durham Draft Children and Young People’s Strategy 

Vision: County Durham will be a great place for children and young people to grow up in and for Durham to be a place where all children are healthy, happy and achieving their potential. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

*Vulnerable children and families include looked after children and care leavers, children on a child protection plan, young carers, children and young people being supervised by the youth offending service and children and young people 

with special educational needs and disabilities 

Aims 
2. Children and young people 

enjoy the best start in life, 

good health and emotional 

wellbeing 

Objectives 

2.2 High quality nursery and 

primary education which 

meets all children’s needs 

2.3 Improve health and wellbeing 
outcomes for children with a 
specific focus on vulnerable 
children and young people  

(5-24) 

 Increase in prepared and ready to learn 
and ready for school   

 Children achieving a good level of 
development at the end of reception 

 Improving child development outcomes 
age 2 to 2.5 years 

 

What will help us achieve our objectives? (enabling factors) 

Partnership Working 

 Shared partnership vision and an integrated 

delivery programme to meet core deliverables 

 Ensuring partners work together to deliver person 

centred care for children and young people  

  

 

 Further reducing teenage pregnancies and 
intensive work based on hotspot areas 

 Decrease the social gradient in admissions to 
hospital for unintentional injuries 

 Reducing inequality in excess weight amongst 
children aged 4-5 and 10-11 years  

 Reducing inequalities in oral health (TBC) 

 Reducing alcohol admissions in under 18s 

 Reducing rate of self-harm admissions  
 

 

 

Performance Management and Intelligence 

 Data and Intelligence - local health profiles 

 Joint Strategic Needs Assessment supports analytical 
view of priorities for children and young people’s health 

 Access to data to identify areas where targeted 

intervention is required to inform commissioning 

decisions   

  

Communications 

 Map of universal offer – all staff have a 
shared understanding of pathways of 
support 

 Effective communication of public health 
messages to influence social norms 
around diet, exercise and risk taking 
behaviour 

What do we need to be good at? (core deliverables) 

2.1 Ensure that every child 

has the best start in life (0-5) 

2.4 Children and young 
people and their families are 
supported to achieve their 
optimum mental health and 

wellbeing 

 Reducing smoking and inequalities in smoking in pregnancy 

 Improving perinatal mental health 

 Reducing alcohol consumption in pregnancy 

 Reducing inequalities in breastfeeding initiation and at 6-8 weeks 

 Improving management of obesity and promotion of healthy weight 

 Improving speech, language and communication development  

 Improving support for vulnerable parents  

 Improving oral health in County Durham  
 

 Promoting resilience, prevention, and 
early intervention 

 Raising profile of emotional wellbeing 

 Improving access and effective support 
to services including  bereavement, crisis 
and community support  

 Caring of the most vulnerable 

 Developing the workforce to ensure they 

are confident and competent  

 Ensuring mental health in schools is 

embedding and delivering outcomes 

 

Commissioning 

Planning and commissioning - 

improved integration 

P
age 123



 

15 
 

 

County Durham Draft Children and Young People’s Strategy 

Vision: County Durham will be a great place for children and young people to grow up in and for Durham to be a place where all children are healthy, happy and achieving their potential. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Aims 

3. Young people can access 

good quality local education 

training and employment 

Objectives 

What do we need to be good at? (core deliverables)  

 Being clear about our education strategy for County 
Durham and what good education looks like 

 Identification of skills needs of employers, including 
Science, Technology, Engineering and Mathematics 
(STEM), and working with young people and parents on 
these skills 

 Ensuring a good culture in schools, tackling bullying 
effectively 

 Working with education providers to address 
underperformance in all schools and settings 

 Having a sufficiency of places for all pupils 

 Working effectively with a mixed economy of schools, 
new academies, free schools UTCS, MATS, alongside 
maintained schools  

What will help us achieve our objectives? (enabling factors) 

Partnership Working 

Greater integration between education 

services, economic development and 

the business community 

3.2 Good quality employment 

and training opportunities for 

all young people 

3.1 Children and Young 

People have the best possible 

education 

3.3 Improved educational 

attainment for all 

disadvantaged children and 

young people 

3.4 Young people are 

prepared for work 

 Meeting our duty to provide early education for 
disadvantaged 2 olds, starting support at birth 

 Challenging school pupil premium strategies for 
specific groups 

 Working with schools to close the gap for all 
disadvantaged children including vulnerable 
groups 

 Every baby is read to every day  

 Organising our resources and case work to 
achieve the best outcomes and highest 
aspirations for Looked After Children 

 Broaden the range of local opportunities to 

ensure that a diverse offer of vocational, 

apprenticeship, work-related opportunities and 

higher education institutions are available for 

young people  

 Working with business, employees and higher 

education institutions to seek opportunities for 

young people 

 Developing cultural capital and signposting 

children and young people to effective 

enrichment programmes  

 Ensure an awareness of accessibility for young 

people accessing employment, training and 

educational opportunities across the County 

 Working with businesses, 

employers and universities  

to identify future skills 

needed in the local 

economy to inform our 

educational strategy 

 Work with schools to 

ensure a broad and 

suitable curriculum offer 

Performance Management 

A more targeted performance management 

approach setting ambitious outcome targets for 

universal services and all vulnerable groups 

Resources Management 

 Making sure that schools are in the right 

places 

 Ensure that every school has a Head 

teacher that is quality assured 

P
age 124



 

16 
 

 

County Durham Draft Children and Young People’s Strategy 

Vision: County Durham will be a great place for children and young people to grow up in and for Durham to be a place where all children are healthy, happy and achieving their potential 

The left-most objective fully reflects the draft written statement of action from the SEND inspection.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Aims 

What do we need to be good at? (core deliverables) 

 A revised strategy in line with SEND inspection 

outcomes co-produced with parents and partners 

 Quality assurance of Education and Healthcare Plans 

(EHC) plans and improve consistency of partner 

contributions  

 Children’s therapy services across health and 

education – quality and equity improved 

 Timely autism assessments 

 Providing families with information about additional 

services 

 Sufficiency of education placement 

 Strategic and operational approach to co-production 

 Strengthened and co-produced local offer 

What will help us achieve our objectives? (enabling factors) 

Partnership Working 

 Strong strategic governance for joint commissioning, operational 

partnerships and quality improvement 

 Effective democratic scrutiny and monitoring of SEND matters by 

multiple agencies 

 Clarification of the role of Designated Clinical Officer and 

Designated Medical Officer 

 Effective governance procedures for commissioning of services for 

CYP with SEND 

4. Achieve the best possible 

outcomes for children and young 

people with special educational 

needs and disabilities 

4.2 Young people with special 

educational needs and 

disabilities secure meaningful 

employment 

4.3 Ensure that young people 

with SEND are well prepared 

for adult lives and can live 

independently  

Objectives 

Performance Management 

 Develop a SEND scorecard across education, health and 

care providers 

 Ensure that performance is better captured across multiple 

services and that all providers are SEND compliant  

 Improve analysis of needs and outcomes for CYP with 

SEND across education, health and care providers to better 

inform commissioning 

 Benchmark SEND reform implementation 

 

4.1 Children and young people 

with special educational needs and 

disabilities have high quality 

support which meets their needs 

Strategic Approach to Co-Production 

 Strategic and operational approach to 

co-production across the local area 

 Service user feedback informs service 

design  

 

 Develop a legacy offer post 

Durham Works programme 

 Good transition into adult 

services 

 Good housing support with the 

appropriate accommodation 

P
age 125



 

17 
 

Delivery Framework  

There is a delivery framework underpinning the strategic aims and objectives which includes 
detailed action plans and programmes for improvement as follows:  

 Aim 1: All children and young people have a safe childhood: From January 2018, a 

new universal inspection framework was introduced by Ofsted. The ILACS (Inspection 

of Local Authority Children’s Services) focuses on how a local area provides services to 

help care and protection of children and young people. A 12 month plan to improve the 

quality of social work practice in Durham has been developed as the service prepare for 

inspection under the ILACS framework. The eighteen actions in this plan are being 

monitored through a Quality improvement Board and the Integrated Steering Group for 

Children. 

 Aim 2: Children and young people enjoy the best start in life, good health and 

emotional wellbeing: This outcome will be monitored by three programmes namely; 

Health Child programme, Local Transformation Plan for Mental Health and Best Start in 

Life programme. Detailed action plans are currently being drafted. 

 Aim 3: Young people can access good quality education, training and 

employment opportunities: Plans to monitor this outcome are under development. 

Outcomes from DurhamWorks (a partnership project to support young people who are 

not in education, employment or training) can be measured and plans for Education are 

currently under review.  

 Aim 4: Achieve the best possible outcomes for children and young people with 

special educational needs (send) and disabilities: The SEND written statement of 

action, written in response to the area wide inspection of these services undertaken in 

2017, is monitored through the SEND Quality Improvement Board and the Integrated 

Steering Group for Children. 

Monitoring and Review 

Each delivery framework will be monitored through the governance framework described 

above using a range of performance indicators and actions (each of the sub groups will have a 

delivery plans and be responsible for the delivery of those plans). The delivery framework will 

be subject to an annual refresh to ensure that actions and measures are current.  The strategy 

itself will be subject to a fundamental review every three years where the outcomes and 

objectives are revisited and the strategy will be rewritten to ensure that it is current and reflects 

the strategic environment.  

Scrutiny of Progress  

Working together to safeguard children requires us to have multiagency assurance 

arrangements to judge the effectiveness of how we safeguard and promote the welfare of all 

children in the county. Our scrutiny arrangements cover all local safeguarding partners and 

comprise:  

 

• The local safeguarding children’s board (LSCB) which oversees partnership 

safeguarding 

• A programme of multi-agency and single agency audits  

• Feedback from children, young people and families  

• Partner feedback  

• Review and analysis of performance  

• Political oversight through the council’s cabinet  

• Independent scrutiny through the children and young people’s overview and scrutiny 

committee  

• Corporate parenting panel  

• Peer support and challenge through the sector lead improvement and partners in 

practice programmes 

• Continuing monitoring and learning from external inspection, serious case reviews 

How will we measure success? 

We aim to bring the whole resources of local public services and the voluntary sector to work 

with children and families to improve the life chances of our children and young people. Our 

aspiration is for County Durham to be a great place for children and young people to grow up in 

By 2020 we want to see:  

 Reduced impact of poverty on children and young people’s lives   

 More children and young people from County Durham accessing apprenticeships 

and higher education opportunities 

 More County Durham young people obtaining high quality jobs 

 Fewer children and young people in need of high level safeguarding interventions, 

through early help 

 Our more vulnerable children and young people living safe and healthy lives, 

achieving well and making successful transitions to adulthood. 

 Reduced teenage pregnancies 

 Reduced levels of childhood obesity  

 Reduced impacts of youth offending on young people’s lives  

Examples of key performance indicators supporting these ambitions include: 

 Percentage of all school pupils eligible and claiming for Free School Meals 

 Percentage of 16-17 year olds in an apprenticeship  

 Percentage of children who are Not in Education, Employment and Training (NEET) 

 Rate of children with a Child Protection Plan per 10,000 population 

 Rate of looked after children per 10,000 population aged under 18 

 Percentage of care leavers in suitable accommodation/EET  

 Gap between the average Attainment 8 score of Durham disadvantaged pupils and the 

average Attainment 8 score of non-disadvantaged pupils nationally (at KS4) 

 Percentage of children looked after continuously for 12 months or more who have had 

the required number of health assessments 

 % mothers smoking at time of delivery  

 Prevalence of breastfeeding at 6-8 weeks and initiation  

 

P
age 126



 

18 
 

Appendix 1  

 

INTEGRATED CARE BOARD JOINT WORKING ARRANGEMENTS STRUCTURE - CYP 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

County Durham Integrated Care Board 

Chair: Stewart Findlay 

 

 

Health & Wellbeing Board 

Chair: Cllr Lucy Hovvels  

 

Integrated Steering Group for Children 

 

Chair: Margaret Whellans / Gill Findley 

 

Clinical Commissioning Groups  NHS Foundation Trusts  Durham County Council  County Durham Partnership  

LSCB/ 

Safeguarding 

Executive 

Chair: Michael Banks 

Adults Wellbeing and 

Health/CYPS Overview 

and Scrutiny 

Committee 

Chairs: Cllr John Robinson 

/ Cllr Christine Potts 

 

Special Educational 

Needs and 

Disabilities (SEND) 

Group 

Chair: Phil Hodgson/ 

Gill Findley 

 

 

Healthy Child 

Programme 

Group 

Chair: Gill O’Neill 

 

 

 

Looked After 

Strategic 

Partnership 

Chair: Cllr Peter 

Brookes 

 

Transitions  

 

Chair: Head of 

Early Help, 

Inclusion and 

Vulnerable 

Children 

 

Joint 

Commissioning 

Group for Adults 

and Children 

Chair: Denise 

Elliott 

 

 

CYP Mental Health, 

Emotional 

Wellbeing & 

Resilience Group 

Chair: Gill O’Neill 

 

 

Vulnerable 

Groups & 

Safeguarding 

(virtual group) 

Chair: Gill Findley  

 

 

Joint Strategic/ 

Integrated Needs 

Assessments 

Children & Families Partnership 

Chair: Margaret Whellans  

P
age 127



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 1 

EIA Template October 2015 

 

Durham County Council Equality Impact Assessment 

NB: The Public Sector Equality Duty (Equality Act 2010) requires Durham County 

Council to have ‘due regard’ to the need to eliminate unlawful discrimination, 

harassment and victimisation, advance equality of opportunity and foster good 

relations between people from different groups. Assessing impact on equality and 

recording this is one of the key ways in which we can show due regard. 

Section One: Description and Screening 

Service/Team or Section 
 

Transformation and Partnerships, PACE 

Lead Officer 
 

Jayne Watson 

Title 
 

Senior Partnership Officer 

MTFP Reference (if 
relevant) 
 

 

Cabinet Date (if relevant) 
 

19th January 2019 

Start Date 
 

10th September 2018 

Review Date 
 

 

 

Subject of the Impact Assessment 

Please give a brief description of the policy, proposal or practice as appropriate (a 
copy of the subject can be attached or insert a web-link): 
 

The Children and Young People’s Strategy (CYPS) is a strategy for children, 
young people and their families across County Durham. 
 
The CYPS will give focus and clarity around the priorities for improving services 
and life opportunities for children and young people. 
 
Based on feedback from children and young people, the CYPS looks at the current 
situation, and outlines where we want to be in three years, what actions we will 
take to get there and what service users can expect.  
 
Our ambition is that County Durham will be a great place for children and young 
people to grow up in and for Durham to be a place where all children are healthy, 
happy and achieving their potential. To achieve this, we have developed four key 
aims: 
1. All children and young people have a safe childhood 
2. Children and Young People enjoy the best start in life, good health and 
emotional wellbeing 
3. Young people can access good quality education, training and local 
employment 

Page 129



 2 

EIA Template October 2015 

 

4. Achieve the best possible outcomes for children and young people with special 
educational needs and disabilities 
 
A link to the draft CYPS can be accessed HERE 

 

Who are the main stakeholders? (e.g. general public, staff, members, specific 
clients/service users): 
Children, young people and families in County Durham. 
 

 

Screening 

Is there any actual or potential negative or positive impact on the following 
protected characteristics? 

Protected Characteristic Negative Impact 
Indicate: Y = Yes, 
N = No, ? = unsure 
 

Positive Impact 
Indicate: Y = Yes, 
N = No, ? = unsure 
 

Age 
 

N Y 

Disability 
 

N Y 

Marriage and civil partnership  
(workplace only) 

N N 

Pregnancy and maternity 
 

N Y 

Race (ethnicity) 
 

N Y 

Religion or Belief 
 

N ? 

Sex (gender) 
 

N Y 

Sexual orientation 
 

N Y 

Transgender 
 

N Y 

 

Please provide brief details of any potential to cause adverse impact. Record full 
details and analysis in the following section of this assessment. 

No adverse impact is anticipated – The Strategy aims to reduce the impact of 
inequality for all children by focusing on their safety, wellbeing and access to 
opportunity. 
 

 

How will this policy/proposal/practice promote our commitment to our legal 
responsibilities under the public sector equality duty to: 

 eliminate discrimination, harassment and victimisation,  

 advance equality of opportunity, and  

 foster good relations between people from different groups 

Page 130

https://democracy.durham.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=122&MId=11095&Ver=4


 3 

EIA Template October 2015 

 

The statutory requirement to produce a Children’s strategy was revoked by the 
government in 2010.  Our commitment to develop the CYPS is testament to the 
continuous progress to improve outcomes for children, young people and 
their families in County Durham. The strategy aims to improve outcomes for all 
children, young people and families but will be of particular benefit for vulnerable 
groups for example those with a special educational needs and/or disability, mental 
health provision, also disadvantaged groups for example gender gap in sports 
participation, lower participation rates of young women in certain careers etc.  
 
The engagement and consultation activity around the development of the CYPS will 
help to promote a better understanding of the respective groups, and will help identify 
and address the needs of specific groups of people within the county. 

 

 

Evidence 

What evidence do you have to support your findings?  
Please outline your data sets and/or proposed evidence sources, highlight any 
gaps and say whether or not you propose to carry out consultation. Record greater 
detail and analysis in the following section of this assessment. 
 

There is a range of national legislative and policy change affecting children’s 
services, which have informed the CYPS.  
Key policy areas are: 

 The strengthened Working together to Safeguard Children guidance published 

in July 2018, which aims to improve partnership working to protect children and 
young people. It sets new legal requirements for the police, Clinical 
Commissioning Groups and local authorities to make joint decisions to meet the 
needs of local children and families. 

 The independent review, Foster care in England, published in February 2018, 

sets out six priority areas for the government’s vision for a better care system, 
driven by children’s needs and views. 

 The government’s Childhood Obesity: a plan for action, Part 1 and 2, published 

in June 2018, aims to reduce England’s childhood obesity within the next 10 years. 
Their goal is to half childhood obesity and reduce the gap in obesity between 
children from the most and least deprived areas by 2030. 

 Transforming children and young people’s mental health provision: a green 

paper, published in December 2017, proposes measures to improve mental health 
support for children and young people through earlier intervention and prevention, 
especially in schools and colleges. 

 The government is also consulting on draft regulations and statutory guidance 

relating to Relationships Education, RSE and Health Education which includes 
teaching children about physical and good mental health, online safety and healthy 
relationships. 

 The Internet Safety Strategy Green Paper, published in May 2018, considers 

developing children’s digital literacy and the safety of young people’s use of online 
dating websites and applications. 

Page 131



 4 

EIA Template October 2015 

 

 The Civil Society Strategy: Building a Future that Works for Everyone, 

published in August 2018, sets out how the government will work with and for civil 
society in the long term to create a country that works for everyone, including a 
review of the statutory duty placed on local authorities to provide appropriate local 
youth services. 

 Ofsted’s new Inspection of Local Authorities (ILACS) Framework changes the 

way local authorities are inspected depending on previous judgement and places a 
stronger emphasis on partnership working within front-line services to improve 
children and young people’s lives. 

 There is also a new inspection framework for youth offending and a new 

education inspection framework expected in early in the New Year. 
 
 
 
Engagement has also taken place with the following on the CYPS 

 Investing in Children x two agenda days 
- Key findings are included in the CYPS 

 Student Voice Survey 
- Key findings are included in the CYPS 

 GRT families have been approached to participate in the consultation  
 

Additional engagement on CYPS has been sought from: 
• Integrated Steering Group for children 31st May                      
• AHS Management Team 7th June 
• Children and Families Partnership 19th June 
• CYP Overview and Scrutiny Committee 2nd July  
• Health and Wellbeing Board 4th July  
• Business Durham (TBC) 
• TAP Management Team 14th August  
• AHS Management Team 16th August  
• Extended Management Team (TBC) 
• Integrated Steering Group for children 20th August 
• CYP Overview and Scrutiny Committee 10th September  
• Health and Wellbeing Board (by email) 
• Children and Families Partnership 20th September  
• Public consultation to 21st September  

 

 

Screening Summary 

On the basis of this screening is there: 
 

Confirm which 
refers (Y/N) 

Evidence of actual or potential impact on some/all of the protected 
characteristics which will proceed to full assessment? 
 

Yes – to be 
updated 
accordingly 

No evidence of actual or potential impact on some/all of the 
protected characteristics? 
 

 

 

Page 132



 5 

EIA Template October 2015 

 

Sign Off 

Lead officer sign off: 
Senior partnerships officer 
 

Date: 27.09.18 

Service equality representative sign off: 
Equalities team leader 
 

Date: 27.09.18 

 

If carrying out a full assessment please proceed to section two. 

If not proceeding to full assessment please return completed screenings to your 

service equality representative and forward a copy to equalities@durham.gov.uk 

If you are unsure of potential impact please contact the corporate research and 

equalities team for further advice at equalities@durham.gov.uk 

 

Page 133

mailto:equalities@durham.gov.uk
mailto:equalities@durham.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



Cabinet 
 
17 October 2018 
 
Selective Licensing in County Durham 
 

 

 
 

Report of Corporate Management Team 
Ian Thompson, Corporate Director of Regeneration and Local 
Services 
Councillor Kevin Shaw, Cabinet Portfolio Holder for Strategic 
Housing and Assets 

 
Purpose of the Report 
 

1 The purpose of this report is to seek approval in principle to the undertaking of 
detailed preparatory work with the intention of submitting an application to the 
Secretary of State for Communities and Local Government for a county wide 
selective licensing designation.  The results of those preparations would be 
submitted to Cabinet at a later date prior to any application being submitted. 
 

Background 
 
2 The Housing Act 2004 gave local authorities the powers to introduce selective 

licensing of privately rented homes in order to tackle problems in their areas 
that result from low housing demand and/or significant anti-social behaviour.  
This means that landlords who rent out properties in an area that is subject to 
selective licensing are required to obtain a licence from the local authority for 
each of their properties in order to rent them out. 
 

3 Selective licensing is a discretionary scheme for local authorities and covers 
privately rented properties.  The Housing Act 2004 allows local housing 
authorities to designate areas for Selective Licensing to support the 
improvement of privately rented properties, providing certain conditions are 
met. 
 

4 In areas designated, landlords must apply for a licence if they want to rent out 
a property, this includes landlords who rely on lettings agents to manage their 
properties on their behalf.  This means the council can check whether they 
are a “fit or proper person” to be a landlord or letting agent, as well as making 
other stipulations concerning management of the property and appropriate 
safety measures.   The stipulations are listed in the licence conditions and the 
conditions are at the discretion of the local authority. 
 

5 Failure to do this could result in a fine.  There are positive impacts for both 
tenants and landlords associated with selective licencing in problematic areas. 
 

Page 135

Agenda Item 9



It can lead to: 

 
 more reliable, longer term tenancies, 
 better quality and safer property standards, 
 less empty properties, 
 reduced levels of homelessness, 
 increased property and rent values, 
 safer, more pleasant areas to live due to lower levels of crime, littering 

and other anti-social activity. 
 

Landlords have access to: 
 
 help to deal with problem tenants, 
 a tenant referencing scheme to vet prospective tenants, 
 support and advice on how to be a better landlord, 
 opportunities to join landlords' forums and be involved in the 

development of future local initiatives. 
 

6 In April 2015 additional criteria were introduced which extended the conditions 
for designating an area to include: areas experiencing poor property 
conditions; an influx of migration; a high level of deprivation; and high levels of 
crime, thus enabling local authorities to make effective use of selective 
licensing to address specific problems in certain areas. 
 

7 Under the amendments introduced in 2015, should a local authority decide to 
make a designation that covers more than 20% of its geographical area or 
more than 20% of the private rented stock, an application to the Secretary of 
State will be required. 
 

8 For selective licensing to work effectively, it should form part of a wider 
strategic approach to an area.  Local authorities should ensure selective 
licensing compliments other measures where other measures alone are not 
enough to tackle the underlying housing problems of a specific area. 
 

9 Selective licensing must be consistent with the Council’s overall housing 
strategy and be co-ordinated with procedures for homelessness, empty 
homes, anti-social behaviour and housing market renewal activity.  The 
authority must also demonstrate the role of other partners such as police and 
social services in ensuring the designation reaches its goal. 
 

10 A designation can run for a maximum of five years and the administration of 
the scheme can be funded from the licence fee. 
 

11 The Government announced in June 2018 that they will use independent 
commissioners to complete a review of how selective licensing is used and 
find out how well it is working.  The commissioners will gather evidence from 
local authorities and bodies representing landlords, tenants and housing 
professionals and the findings will be published in Spring 2019. 

 

Page 136



County Durham Housing in Context 

 
12 County Durham has a population of almost 224,000 households across 290 

settlements.  The county stretches from the North Pennines Area of 
Outstanding Natural Beauty (AONB) in the west to the North Sea Heritage 
Coast in the east. 
 

13 The county has a dispersed settlement pattern of towns and villages which is 
a legacy of the rise and fall of mining, steel and other heavy industries.  The 
housing offer in the county reflects issues of its post-industrial history.  Whilst 
there are some beautiful places to live in the county, with a mix of traditional, 
older housing and more modern family accommodation which are well 
connected to labour markets and for which very strong demand is clearly 
evident, there remains a general oversupply of poorer quality terraced 
housing.  In localised areas, this stock can be subject to lower demand and 
can be associated with higher than average proportions of longer term empty 
properties. 
 

14 Long term empty properties can be clustered in particular locations, tenures or 
even settlements.  The council understands the impact that long term empty 
homes can have on a community and will work to bring stock back into use 
where possible. 
 

15 It is recognised that without local or government funding to tackle housing 
regeneration in deprived communities these areas will continue to decline.   
Lack of funding is likely to constrain the ability of local areas to respond to 
regeneration needs. 
 

16 Prior to Large Scale Voluntary Transfers (LSVTs) in Durham social housing 
stock was brought up to the decent homes standard then following LSVT 
social housing providers have continued investment in their stock and areas. 
 

17 Following austerity savings in local government, the resource available to 
services within the private rented sector (PRS) continues to reduce and as a 
result, quality can lag in the PRS.  Without any investment, it will continue to 
do so. 
 

18 A new Housing and Homelessness Strategy for County Durham will be 
published later this year.  This will show how the proposed selective licencing 
will be co-ordinated with procedures for homelessness, empty homes, anti-
social behaviour and housing market renewal activity. 
 

19 This application for selective licencing will demonstrate the role of other 
partners such as police and social services in ensuring the designation 
reaches its goal. 
 

20 There is already commitment shown from the police and from Durham Police 
Crime and Victims Commissioner as well as support from Phil Wilson MP who 
is currently taking a private members bill through parliament for more 
mandatory regulation within the PRS. 

Page 137



 
21 At recent town and villages regeneration meetings attended by the Portfolio 

Holders for Economic Regeneration and Strategic Housing and Assets, the 
issues within the PRS were consistently raised by local members. 
 

Conditions for applying for a selective licence designation 
 
22 The Housing Act 2004 (amended 2015) sets out the conditions required for a 

selective licencing designation.  The designation may be made if the area to 
which it relates satisfies one or more of the following conditions: 
 

 low housing demand; 

 anti-social behaviour; 

 poor property conditions; 

 high levels of migration; 

 high level of deprivation; and 

 high levels of crime. 
 

23 In considering whether to designate an area for selective licensing on the 
grounds of the above, consideration should be given to whether the area has 
a high proportion of property in the private rented sector.  Nationally the 
private rented sector currently makes up 20% of the total housing stock in 
England, according to the most recent English Housing Survey of 2015/16. 
 

24 In addition, when considering whether to make a selective licensing 
designation the local authority must first identify the objective it intends 
designation will help it achieve.  It must also consider whether there are any 
other courses of action available that would achieve the same objective. 
 

25 It is also important in any application to demonstrate how selective licensing 
will work in partnership with other existing initiatives (e.g. landlord 
accreditation).  Selective licensing itself is not a stand-alone tool. 
 

26 Overall, the Government intends that selective licensing be used only where 
absolutely necessary and whilst it is often seen as the only solution in local 
communities, the criteria surrounding it means that it is a complex and 
extremely time-consuming approach, but where appropriately used it can be 
part of an overall solution to particular challenges. 
 

27 If the problems of anti-social behaviour are only associated with a small 
number of properties, Interim Management Orders (IMO) should be 
considered rather than a selective licensing designation.  In certain 
circumstances the local authority is empowered to make Interim Management 
Orders in respect of privately rented properties. 
 

28 This authorises the council to take control of the residential property, however, 
it should only be used as a last resort for the most problematic of properties 
and only for one or two properties in a street, not for whole streets of 
properties. 
 

Page 138



29 Once an IMO has been made, the council effectively becomes the temporary 
landlord of the premises concerned.  Whilst it does not obtain any interest in 
the property, it becomes responsible for its proper management and for 
ensuring that any immediate health, safety or welfare concerns are dealt with 
as soon as possible.  Once an IMO has been made, the landlord may not 
become involved in the management of the property or create tenancies or 
licences.  However, the council may only issue new tenancies and licences 
with the approval of the landlord.  IMO’s are therefore only a single measure 
in the council’s response to issues in the private rented sector. 
 

Consultation requirements 
 
30 In seeking to progress a selective licensing designation, local authorities must 

take reasonable steps to consult persons who are likely to be affected and 
consider any representations made in accordance with the consultation.  
Consultation should include local residents, including tenants, landlords and 
where appropriate, their managing agents and other members of the 
community who live or operate businesses or provide services within the 
proposed designation. 
 

31 Consultation should be widely publicised using various channels of 
communication.  Once the consultation has been completed the results 
should then be published and made available to the local community, 
including a summary of the responses received and should demonstrate how 
these have either been acted on or not, giving reasons. 
 

32 If a designation does not require confirmation from the Secretary of State the 
local authority must consult for at least ten weeks.  If however, confirmation is 
required, the suggestion is still to consult for at least ten weeks unless there 
are special reasons for not doing so. 
 

33 Any consultation will be completed before a further report and business case 
are presented to Cabinet. 
 

34 Where a designation does not require confirmation from the Secretary of 
State, it cannot come into force until three months after it is approved by the 
council.  Where it requires confirmation, it cannot come into force until three 
months after it has been confirmed by the Secretary of State. 
 

Selective Licensing in County Durham 
 
35 Previously there were three designations in operation across County Durham: 

 

 Dean Bank, Ferryhill 

 Chilton West, Chilton 

 Wembley, Easington Colliery 
 

36 The Dean Bank and Chilton West designations came to an end in March 2018 
and the Wembley designation is due to expire in June 2019.  All three 
designations will have run for a period of ten years. 

Page 139



 
37 All three areas were initially designated for licensing by the former district 

councils on the grounds of low housing demand and significantly high levels 
of anti-social behaviour.  The designations formed part of a wider master plan 
for the areas and had originally contained an element of housing renewal 
such as selective clearance and group repair alongside a multi-agency 
approach to managing the issues in the areas. 
 

38 The number of properties in each designation were / are; Dean Bank, 648; 
Chilton, 154; Wembley, 197.  This is the total number of dwellings per 
designation as opposed to total number of licenced properties. 
 

39 Table 1 shows the percentage of private rented properties across the three 
designations as at autumn 2017.  All of the localities have seen an increase in 
the percentage of properties within the PRS within the lifetime of the 
designations. 
 

40 The following information is a summary of data available for some of the 
areas in Durham and is intended to give a snap shot of the varying issues 
within a selection of the villages.  The full business case will include data 
collection for all of Durham and from all of our partner organisations as well as 
DCC data.  
 
Table 1 
 

 

 
Initial Data Intelligence 
 
41 According to the 2011 census, the number of households in Durham was 

223,803 with 28,142 within the Private Rented sector (12.57%). 
 

42 Information from the Office of National Statistics (ONS) indicates the private 
rented sector would continue to grow with numbers reaching in excess of 
41,000 by 2015 (17.36% of the households in Durham).  See table 2. 
 

  

2008 2012 2017

Dean Bank 34% 41% 45%

Chilton 41% 35% 51%

Wembley 53% 68% 71%

% private rented stock across three designations

Page 140



Table 2: 
 

 

43 There is no information available to show the breakdown of the numbers of 
private rented properties within local areas in Durham. 
 

44 There are areas in Durham where the numbers of private rented properties is 
increasing at a higher rate than that predicted in table 2, for example Horden. 
 
Table 3: 
 

 

45 In 2015 social housing provider, Accent disposed of properties by auction with 
the majority of these going into the PRS.  As a result we have seen an 
increase of 64% of properties in the private sector in this area, although at this 
point many remain empty. 
 

46 However, using local intelligence table 3 below shows Horden (numbered 
streets area) and Easington Colliery (A & B streets) have a high percentage of 
private rented accommodation, significantly higher than the regional and 
County Durham average shown in Table 2. 
 
Table 4 
 

 

47 The number of long-term empty homes across Durham is currently 6,410 as 
at mid May 2018; this figure does not include social housing stock or student 
accommodation. 

No. %age No. %age No. %age No. %age

North East 169,505 14.33% 183,780 18.48% 193,583 16.25% 197,034 16.44%

Durham 32,707 13.93% 37,889 16.06% 40,790 17.23% 41,279 17.36%

2015

PRS predictions

2012 2013 2014

Year RSL (empties) PRS O/Occ
Empty (inc in 

PRS figure)

2014 199 292 163 174

2017 43 479 132 163

%age change -78% 64% -19% -6%

Area %

Horden ( numbered streets area) 72.17

Easington Colliery  (A & B streets) 74.09

South Moor 46.56

Dene Valley 41.06

New Kyo 45.15

Page 141



 
48 Table 5 below shows the top 10 areas with the highest number of empty 

properties.  Some areas such as Barnard Castle have a high proportion of 
holiday lets and this should be taken into account when comparing areas. 
 
Table 5 
 

 

49 Table 6 below shows the worst 10 areas for fly tipping – an activity very often 
prevalent in areas with high levels of empty properties.  Overall, there were 
7,674 incidents of fly tipping across the County in 2017-2018. 
 
Table 6 
 

Fly Tipping 2017-18 

Elvet and Gilesgate 405 

Bishop Auckland Town 323 

Pelton 286 

Shildon and Dene Valley 284 

Ferryhill 252 

Horden 248 

Woodhouse Close 245 

Blackhalls 231 

Coudon 209 

Crook 201 

 
50 The number of reported and confirmed incidents of ASB across County 

Durham for 2017-2018 shows 587 cases.  Table 7 below highlights the top 10 
worst affected areas. 
 

  

Area Number

Shildon and Dene Valley 330

Weardale 314

Barnard Castle West 258

Easington 212

Ferryhill 188

Horden 179

Evenwood 167

Trimdon and Thornley 165

Deerness 163

Bishop Auckland Town 160

Long-term empty properties

Page 142



Table 7 
 

 

51 In addition to the above mentioned ASB cases and fly tipping, there have 
been a number of cases dealt with for the following variety of issues which 
also could be associated with ASB: 
 
Table 8 

 

52 If we include the figures in table 8 together with the numbers for fly tipping 
(7,674) and ASB (587) this provides an overall figure of 16,814 reports / 
incidents in 2017-2018. 
 

53 In considering whether an area suffers from a high level of crime in the 
context of a potential selective licensing designation, the local authority should 
give consideration to whether the area has displayed an increase in crime 
over a relatively short period, such as in the previous 12 months. 
 

54 Police figures for 2017-2018 show an increase in overall crime across County 
Durham, rising from 46,550 crimes in 2016-17 to 66,357 crimes in 2017-2018.  
A rise of almost 20,000 crimes (42.5% increase). 
 

55 Local housing authorities can address poor property conditions through their 
powers in Part 1 of the Housing Act 2004, which are not extensive.  The 
Housing Health and Safety Rating System (HHSRS) gives local authorities 
powers to target health and safety issues within a property and the curtilage of 

Page 143



a property.  The HHSRS is used by local authorities to assess the condition of 
homes and is an assessment of 29 hazards. 
 

56 The HHSRS comprises of two categories: Category 1 hazards which oblige 
local authorities to take action or insist the landlord takes action to rectify the 
problem; where Category 2 hazards are found, local authorities have the 
discretionary power to act. 
 

57 In 2013, Building Research Establishment (BRE) were commissioned by DCC 
to provide information on key housing and domestic energy variables with a 
focus on private sector housing.  We do not have any up to date property 
condition surveys, however, by using the information from the BRE as a proxy 
it shows that a significant number of properties in County Durham suffer from: 
Category 1 hazards; disrepair; and fuel poverty due to a combination of low 
household income and thermally inefficient housing stock.  See table 7. 
 

58 It should be noted that disrepair is not part of HHSRS; it was included in the 
BRE model as the decent homes standard was still a provision for the private 
rented sector.  This is no longer the case therefore to determine the condition 
of properties in an area a stock condition survey would be necessary.  
 
Table 9 
 

 

59 The 2014/15 English Housing Survey found that 29% of private rented 
properties would fail the Government’s decent homes standard (DHS) 
compared to 14% of social housing.  The DHS is a non-statutory standard 
which is most frequently referred to in relation to the social rented sector. 
 

60 Shelter’s 2014 report, Safe and Decent Homes, found that over 6 in 10 private 
sector renters (61%) have experienced at least one of the following problems 

All 

Hazards

Excess 

Cold

Falls 

Hazards

Barnard Castle West 3,052 37% 23% 8% 10% 17% 18% 46

Weardale 3,103 35% 18% 9% 10% 15% 21% 47

Evenwood 3,080 32% 15% 9% 8% 14% 24% 50

Blackhall 2,851 29% 16% 7% 7% 15% 29% 51

Crook North and Tow Law 2,563 29% 10% 11% 10% 13% 28% 53

Craghead and South Moor 2,994 24% 4% 12% 10% 10% 37% 59

Coundon 591 22% 5% 10% 8% 11% 34% 57

Easington 2,875 23% 11% 7% 7% 13% 33% 54

Horden 2,621 21% 7% 8% 6% 11% 39% 57

Chilton 3,205 20% 4% 10% 8% 10% 34% 59

Ferry Hill 3,136 18% 2% 9% 7% 9% 36% 61

Seaham 3,149 16% 5% 6% 5% 8% 22% 58

Disrepair
Fuel 

Poverty

Low 

Income 

Househol

ds

SAPWard Dwellings

HHSRS Cat 1 Hazards

Page 144



in their home over the past 12 months: damp, mould, leaking roofs or 
windows, electrical hazards, animal infestations and gas leaks.  With 10% 
saying their health had been affected because of their landlord not dealing 
with repairs and poor conditions in their property in the last year. 
 

61 All social housing stock throughout County Durham now meets the Decent 
Homes standard and Registered Providers continue to invest in their stock 
with a number including stock improvement programmes in their business 
plans. 
 

62 In addition, some social housing providers are looking at new development 
opportunities across the county which will see the provision of modern, high 
specification, thermally efficient dwellings being built which will help to raise 
standards even further in the social rented sector. 
 

63 The initial data collected shows different issues in different areas across the 
county from Horden seeing a high number of PRS properties to Shildon 
seeing a high number of empty properties although some areas do appear in 
the top 10 of each condition. 
 

64 Further data collection will be required to provide a strong business case 
which will include migration, health and fire service data.  In addition, local 
intelligence will also be included. 
 

Selective licencing in other neighbouring local authorities 
 
65 The majority of the neighbouring authorities (shown below) have selective 

licencing designations in parts of their authority areas which are due to expire 
from October 2018 onwards, therefore no evaluation of their effectiveness has 
been completed to date: 
 

(a) Redcar and Cleveland 
(b) Gateshead 
(c) Newcastle 
(d) Hartlepool 
(e) Middlesbrough 

 
66 In 2014 the Chartered Institute of Housing (CIH) on behalf of Sunderland City 

Council completed an evaluation of the selective licence designation in 
Hendon.  The report highlighted there was strong evidence that levels of 
crime and ASB had reduced since the introduction of the designation. 
 

67 There was also an initial impact on the reduction in the number of empty 
properties; however, that number has since risen again. 
 

68 CIH’s overall view was that the scheme had been successful in tackling a 
range of issues.  However, there still remained a number of challenges i.e. the 
need to continue to bring down the number of empty properties and long 
standing management issues. 
 

Page 145



69 Since the government changed legislation and required local authorities to 
seek consent from the Secretary of State for designations that cover more 
than 20% of its geographical area or more than 20% of the private rented 
stock, the London Borough of Newham is the only local authority to have 
introduced a selective licensing designation covering 100% of their PRS 
market. 
 

Liverpool City Council 
 
70 Liverpool City Council has implemented a city wide selective licensing 

scheme approximately 4 years ago (prior to government changing consent 
requirements for such work) with the aim of tackling low demand and driving 
up standards in the private rented sector. 
 

71 The scheme was introduced with a belief that nearly 25% of the city’s housing 
stock was in the private rented sector although the census and ONS 
information suggested 23.3%.  Since the introduction of the city wide scheme 
the figure is believed to be around 30%. 
 

72 There were huge demands put upon mainstream services such as health and 
police and the council was receiving circa 4,000 complaints per annum about 
properties in the private rented sector. 
 

73 Since its inception, over 43,000 licences have now been issued across the 
city and the council’s intelligence on private landlords and the city’s private 
rented accommodation has increased significantly which anecdotally has 
seen an improvement in property standards and a decrease in complaints 
thus far. 
 

74 Furthermore, Liverpool have seen in excess of 100 successful prosecutions 
as well as warnings and cautions.  Over 10,000 compliance checks have 
been completed with over 76% found to be non-compliant. 
 

75 Although there appears a high level of non-compliance and subsequent 
prosecutions, Liverpool City Council feel that there is a subsequent positive 
direction of travel as they are seeing conditions and management practices 
improve within the PRS. 
 

76 Liverpool now have far improved engagement with PRS landlords and greater 
knowledge of properties and are seeing an improvement in the quality of the 
PRS offer within the city. 
 

77 Appendix 2 shows the number of landlords Liverpool were aware of before 
and after the introduction of city wide selective licensing.  These maps clearly 
show a huge difference in the knowledge of where private landlords operate. 
 

 
  

Page 146



Summary 
 
78 In order to submit an application to the Secretary of State for Selective 

Licensing, further work needs to be undertaken on the volume of premises 
affected to ensure the statutory requirements are met. 
 

79 It is proposed that Selective licensing will be used in Durham as part of an 
overall solution to the challenges within the PRS.  Other measures will 
continue and it is hoped that Selective Licensing will drive forward the 
improvement of the PRS stock. 
 

80 Selective Licencing is only one tool to tackle issues in the PRS, however this 
does give the powers to intervene and enforce positive change in property 
management - in turn help reduce the volume of reactive complaints. 
 

81 The initial data collected shows different issues in different areas across the 
county from Horden seeing a high number of PRS properties to Shildon 
seeing a high number of empty properties.  Although some areas do appear in 
the top 10 of each condition. 
 

82 The data information from Liverpool clearly shows with the introduction of 
mandatory selective licencing, Durham could have a much-improved 
engagement with PRS landlords and greater knowledge of properties and see 
an improvement in the quality of the PRS offer within the county. 
 

83 Further data collection will be required to provide a strong business case 
which will include migration, health and fire service data.  In addition, local 
intelligence can also be included. 
 

Interim Measures 
 
84 There are a range of interim measures to be put in place leading up to the 

submission of the business case: 
 
(a) Working Group – to be set up to collate and consider all data 

collection and contribute to the business case. 

(b) Referencing – tenant referencing is currently undertaken in the 3 
selective licencing designations and consideration will be given to the 
continued use of this valuable information in these areas and subject to 
Police resources, also across the wider DCC area. 

(c) Landlord Data collection – various teams internal and external to 
DCC currently work and hold landlord information.  In line with data 
protection required a shared database will be developed. 

(d) Landlord Accreditation – the current landlord accreditation scheme 
will continue and following a positive press statement it is hoped further 
landlords will sign up to accreditation prior to the introduction on county 
wide selective licencing. 

Page 147



 
85 There are a range of options to consider: 
 

Option 1 – cease the current SL designation in Wembley when it expires 
in June 19.  This option would see no selective licence designation in 
Durham and may see further potential decline in the areas. 
 
Advantages 

 No concerns raised by those opposed to SL. 
 

Disadvantages 

 Further decline in the area in question, reduced demand, increase in 
empty homes or incidences of fly tipping and may well stigmatise the 
area further  
 

Option 2 – Consider a designation for under 20% of the geographical 
area of county Durham or under 20% of the PRS stock.  This option would 
see the designations in identified areas in the county, those causing all 
agencies significant issues. 

 
Advantages 

 Increase the level of resource in the areas to tackle issues and 
challenges. 

 Able to designate following consultation and cabinet approval and no 
need for secretary of state permission. 

 Will concentrate resources in some of the worst affected areas. 
 

Disadvantages 

 The cost of the SL fee is unpopular with some landlords and there are 
insufficient funds to fund other schemes i.e. demolition or group repair 
therefore may not be received well by landlords. 

 Would only see a very small proportion of properties subject to the 
licencing. Potential to move the issues to other areas not subject to a 
selective licence designation. 

 
Option 3 - Consider a designation to cover all of the areas that prove a 
problem to the different agencies. 
 
Advantages 

 Increase the level of resource in the areas to tackle issues and 
challenges. 

 Will concentrate resources in some of the worst affected areas. 
 

Disadvantages 

 The cost of the SL fee is unpopular with some landlords and there are 
insufficient funds to fund other schemes i.e. demolition or group repair 
therefore may not be received well by landlords. 

 The need for Secretary of State permission. 
 

Page 148



Option 4 - Consider a designation to cover 100% of the geography of 
Durham and 100% of all PRS stock.  This option would ensure the PRS stock 
in Durham would be subject to a selective licence designation. 

 
Advantages 

 Increase the level of resource in the areas to tackle issues and 
challenges. 

 All PRS stock and landlord subject to the same legislation. 

 All PRS landlord subject to the same licence conditions and no disparity 
of service. 

 Will cover all PRS stock across the County. 

 Will raise standards across the PRS. 
 
Disadvantages 

 The cost of the SL fee is unpopular with some landlords and there are 
insufficient funds to fund other schemes i.e. demolition or group repair 
therefore may not be received well by landlords. 

 The scheme can only be introduced if approved by the Secretary of 
State. 
 

Recommendations 
 

86 Cabinet is recommended to: 
 
(a) Note the contents of the report; 

 
(b) Authorise the Corporate Director for Regeneration and Local Services 

to consult relevant stakeholders on the proposal to introduce Selective 
Licensing across the county; 
 

(c) Request the Corporate Director for Regeneration and Local Services to 
prepare a business case on the merits of Selective Licensing across 
the County and to report to a future meeting of the Cabinet, 

 

(d) Agree to finance the interim measures to a total of £200,000 across 
financial years 2019/20 and 2020/21. 

 
 

 Contact:  Lynn Hall  Tel: 03000 265728  

  

Page 149



Appendix 1:  Implications 

 
Finance –  
Interim measures to be funded from reserves.  New licensing activity will be funded 
from the license fees, although any further issues encountered will be flagged in the 
business case. 
 
Staffing –  
Within existing staffing resource although further reports maybe presented 
highlighting additional staffing implication. 
 
Risk –  
The areas may decline if selective licensing designation is not introduced.  An 
application requiring Secretary of State approval might not be approved.  Landlords 
opposed to Selective Licensing could mount a legal challenge.  
 
Equality and Diversity / Public Sector Equality Duty –  
None. 
 
Accommodation –  
None. 
 
Crime and Disorder –  
The aim of this approach is to reduce crime and antisocial behaviour in certain 
geographical areas. 
 
Human Rights –  
None. 
 
Consultation –  
Consultation required with staff, local residents and members. 
 
Procurement –  
None. 
 
Disability Issues –  
None. 
 
Legal Implications – Under the Housing Act 2004 the introduction of Selective 
Licensing requires the Council to demonstrate that the conditions triggering eligibility 
for the imposition of such restriction are applicable in all or part of the area.  If more 
than 20% of the Council’s area is to be the subject of Selective Licensing, approval is 
required from the Secretary of State. 
 
  

Page 150



 
Appendix 2 – Liverpool City Council, Selective Licensing Intel 
 

 
 

Page 151



 

Page 152



Page 1 of 3 

Cabinet Report 
 
17 October 2018 
 
Director of Public Health Annual Report 

 

 
 

Report of Corporate Management Team: 

Jane Robinson, Corporate Director, Adult & Health Services 

Amanda Healy, Director of Public Health County Durham  

Councillor Lucy Hovvels, Portfolio Lead for Adult and Health Services 

 
 
Purpose of the Report 
 
1 The purpose is for Cabinet to receive the 2018 annual report of the Director of 

Public Health for County Durham. 
 
Background 
 
2 Under the Health & Social Care Act 2012, one of the statutory requirements of the 

Director of Public Health is to produce an annual report about the health of the local 
population.  The local authority has a duty to publish the report.  The government 
has not specified what the annual report might contain and has made it clear that 
this is a decision for individual Directors of Public Health to determine.  

3 The 2018 report focuses on the new vision for the public’s health in County 
Durham.  The report shares the work that has been done in the last year to set out 
a new vision for the health and wellbeing of County Durham.  The work is built on 
some huge achievements over the last five years including a major reduction in 
smoking levels across County Durham. 

4 The Public Health Vision emerged from the Sustainable Community Strategy as 
well as the Joint Strategic Needs Assessment (JSNA), with the aim of improving 
and protecting the health and wellbeing of the people of County Durham and to 
reduce health inequalities.  

 
5 It is based around a fictional family ‘The Taylors’ and describes the challenges the 

family face.  However it is also very focussed on the ‘assets’ that the family have 
and how these can protect health and wellbeing. 

6 The reports sets out seven strategic priorities and then specific actions against each 
priority for the forthcoming year. 

7 The priorities are based on an understanding of the health and wellbeing needs as 
set out in our local JSNA and are: 

 Good jobs and places to live, learn and play 

 Every Child to Have the Best Start in Life   

 Mental Health at Scale 

 High quality drug and alcohol services 

Page 153

Agenda Item 10



Page 2 of 3 

 Healthy workforce 

 Positive behaviours 

 Better quality of life through integrated health and care services 
 

8 The report ends with a short set of recommendations which will be reported on in 
2019. 

9 The annual report will be uploaded onto the council website.  It will be presented to 
relevant organisations including the Joint Governing Bodies of North Durham and 
Durham Dales Easington and Sedgefield Clinical Commissioning Groups, 
Healthwatch, Overview and Scrutiny and Health and Wellbeing Board.  It will be 
shared with the Altogether Partnerships.  Copies will be made available in the 
members library and to individual members where requested.  

Recommendations 
 
10 Cabinet is requested to: 

(a) Receive the 2018 annual report of the Director of Public Health, County 
Durham 

(b) Agree to publish the report.  

 
Background papers 
 
 

Contact:  Amanda Healy  Tel: 03000 264323  

 

 

Page 154



Page 3 of 3 

 

Appendix 1:  Implications 

 
 
Finance  
The publication of the report is funded by the ring fenced public health grant.  
 
Staffing 
No impact 
 
Risk 
No impact 
 
Equality and Diversity / Public Sector Equality Duty 
No impact 
 
Accommodation 
No impact 
 
Crime and Disorder 
No impact 
 
Human Rights  
No impact 
 
Consultation   
This is the independent report of the Director of Public Health and is not subject to 
consultation 
 
Procurement   
No impact but should inform council commissioning plans in relation to services that 
impact on the health of the population 
 
Disability Issues    
No impact 
 
Legal Implications 
Section 73B(5) of the Health and Social Care Act 2012 amended the National Health 
Service Act 2006 to include the requirement that the Director of Public Health for a local 
authority must prepare an annual report on the health of the people in the area of the local 
authority. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 155



This page is intentionally left blank



Director of Public Health Annual Report 2018

A new vision for ‘The Taylors’ 
Improving health in County Durham

Page 157



Acknowledgements 

Many thanks to 

Michelle Baldwin, Public Health Strategic Manager,
Katie Dunstan-Smith – Public Health Intelligence Specialist, 
Lisa Lynch – Public Health Programme Manager, 
Gill O’Neill – Deputy Director of  Public Health, 
Kirsty Roe – Public Health Intelligence Specialist, 
Tracey Sharp – Independent Consultant in Public Health, 
Lorna Smith – Specialty Registrar in Public Health,
Tammy Smith – Public Health Advanced Practitioner,
Jane Sunter – Public Health Strategic Manager,
Chris Woodcock – Public Health Strategic Manager

Page 158



 Contents

                                                                                                                Page 

Foreword  ..................................................................................................  2

Health and wellbeing across County Durham ....................................... 3-7

Reducing smoking levels in County Durham – 
our challenges and achievements  .......................................................8-13

Introducing the Taylor family  ............................................................. 14-17

Our priorities and actions  .................................................................. 18-19

 What will this mean for the Taylor family?  ...............................................  20

 Recommendations  .................................................................................  21
    

    

1Page 159



Foreword

I would like to welcome you to my first annual report. It is my role as Director 
of  Public Health to promote and protect the health and wellbeing of  people in 
County Durham.

Good health is central to people’s happiness and wellbeing. It also makes an 
important contribution to the local economy as healthy people live longer and 
are more productive.

I am delighted to be working in County Durham. As the largest local authority in the North East with 
over 524,000 residents, I was attracted to the role due to the scale of  the opportunity but also the 
diversity across the county.  

County Durham has so many positive aspects, from the Heritage Coast to the City of  Durham with its 
top 100 university, cathedral and castle making it a centre of  culture, to towns and villages steeped in 
history.

It is also diverse from a health and wellbeing perspective. The county’s residents have different 
experiences of  health and illness patterned by socioeconomic status, which includes their life 
expectancy, healthy life expectancy and key challenges across the lifecourse in smoking levels, 
breastfeeding, mental health and an increasingly older population with a range of  health conditions. 
There are a wide range of  organisations working in County Durham committed to improving health and 
wellbeing which is also very positive.

It is time to think afresh about how we address these challenges with our local communities, and in a 
positive way. It has been five years since public health teams transferred to local authorities from the 
NHS. It is therefore timely to review our approach to improving and protecting the public’s health, as 
well as the public health function in Durham County Council.

This report shares the work that has been done in the last year and sets out a new plan for the 
health and wellbeing of  County Durham. This plan is built on some huge achievements over the last 
five years, including a major reduction in our smoking levels. This is highlighted in the report and 
demonstrates what we can achieve by working together. However we have much more to do. In this 
report I have set out our approach to understanding local health and wellbeing through our Joint 
Strategic Needs Assessment (JSNA). This has helped me to look at the health and wellbeing across 
County Durham and determine the priority areas to focus our collective efforts on.

Our vision and plan sets out how the whole council can contribute to the health and wellbeing of  the 
people in County Durham. As Director of  Public Health, my team can only achieve change by working 
with others and this includes those seeking to improve housing, employment, education and our local 
environment.

In setting out refreshed priorities, it has been really important to ensure that we seek to reduce any 
differences in health across our county, and between County Durham and the rest of  England that are 
unacceptable and preventable.

Most importantly, my role is about working with and on 
behalf  of  local residents and the Elected Members that 
represent those residents. 

To that end I have used a family approach throughout this report. You will be introduced to the Taylor 
family. This is a fictional family, but they serve to highlight the issues some of  our local families do face 
as well as what we can achieve collectively to improve better health and wellbeing.

I hope you enjoy this report and see how you can get involved in the actions that I have set out.

Amanda Healy 
Director of  Public Health

2

Amanda Healy 

Page 160



3

Health and wellbeing across County Durham  
 
The Joint Strategic Needs Assessment (JSNA) has a range 
of  information to help us understand the major health and 
wellbeing issues of  importance locally. 

It helps to inform the planning and improvement of  local services and guides us to make the 
best use of  the funding. It is a must do for the local authority working with colleagues in the 
clinical commissioning groups in County Durham which are responsible for commisioning 
healthcare and informs our Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy (JHWS) locally. This 
responsibility is carried out by the Health and Wellbeing Board.

County Durham’s JSNA is not just about health and social care, but reflects the many 
factors that can influence people’s health and wellbeing. Locally it has provided the 
evidence base for the JHWS, and has informed the development of  other key strategies 
and plans, including the Sustainable Community Strategy, the Children, Young People and 
Families Plan, the Mental Health and Wellbeing Strategic Plan, the Smoke Free Tobacco 
Control Alliance Plan, the Domestic Abuse and Sexual Violence Plan, the Affordable Warmth 
Strategy and Cold Weather Plan, and the Oral Health Strategy. 

Traditionally JSNAs have adopted what can be described as a deficit model of  health 
and wellbeing focusing on problems, needs and deficiencies in communities such as 
deprivation, illness and death. Whilst it is important that we continue to understand 
population health and wellbeing needs and health inequalities, it is no less important that we 
understand the assets (or strengths) that people, communities and groups have in order to 
use this support and improve their health and wellbeing. By focusing on what’s strong not 
what’s wrong, a good JSNA can identify those local assets (strengths) which are improving 
health and wellbeing such as groups, networks, activities, spaces and service provision. 
Our local JSNA is starting to include these assets to provide a whole picture of  health and 
wellbeing.

Durham Insight is a shared intelligence, research and knowledge base for County Durham, 
informing strategic planning across Durham County Council and its partners, and by 
thematic partnerships. The aim is to provide users an easy way to access and share 
information, intelligence, research and knowledge for deeper insights about their local area 
or communities. The main aim of  this site is informing and supporting our Joint Strategic 
Needs Assessment and other assessments and strategies managed by the authority and its 
partners. 

https://www.durhaminsight.info/

Page 161



4

Key messages from the JSNA

Our county
l  County Durham is the seventh largest authority in England, lying at 

the heart of  the North East region. It covers a total area of  862 square 
miles with a variety of  landscapes rich in wildlife, attractive countryside, 
villages, historic towns and coastline. It is home to around 524,000 people, 
of  whom 238,500 are in employment. The population is projected to grow to 
566,000 people by 2039. There are around 17,120 businesses employing nearly 170,000 
employees. County Durham shares many of  the problems of  the North of  England, 
arising from a long term pattern of  sectoral change and industrial decline. It also has 
unique challenges arising from its legacy of  scattered industrial settlements, and its lack 
of  large urban areas to drive growth.

l The county, though commonly regarded as a predominantly rural area, varies in 
character from remote and sparsely populated areas in the west, to the former coalfield 
communities in the centre and the east, where villages tend to accommodate thousands 
rather than hundreds. Around 90% of  the population lives east of  the A68 road in 
approximately half  of  the county by area. 

l Overall health and wellbeing has improved significantly in County Durham but it still 
remains worse than the England average. In addition, large health inequalities still remain 
across County Durham, especially with regards to breastfeeding, babies born to mothers 
who smoke, childhood obesity and premature deaths. The impact of  this becomes 
obvious when looking at life expectancy; a child born today in the most deprived areas 
of  County Durham could expect to live between 7 and 8 years less than one born in the 
least deprived areas.

 

Our children
l  There are around 28,000 children under 5 years old living in the county 

and over 100,000 under 18s.

l Unlike the national trend, the county has seen a gradual fall in the number 
of  its children and young people since 2001. 

l However, the number of  pre-school children aged 0 to 4 is projected to 
increase by 3% by 2039. 

l Almost 21,000 of  our children and young people live in poverty.

l Childhood obesity is a persisting issue, with almost one in four 10-11 year olds being 
obese; this is significantly worse than England.

l Admissions to hospital caused by unintentional and deliberate injuries are significantly 
higher than England at almost 1,500 admissions per year.

l GCSE attainment and the number of  children with a good level of  development at the 
end of  reception is similar to national levels. 

l First time entrants to the youth justice system saw a reduction of  45% between 2010 and 
2016.

Page 162



5

Our adults
l  There are around 316,000 people of  working age (18-64) living in County 

Durham and this is predicted to decline by over 2% by 2039.

l Over 90,000 people are living in income deprivation and over 30,000 
 households in fuel poverty.

l Long term unemployment is higher locally than the national average; 5 people 
per 1,000 of  the working age population are in long term unemployment.

l Smoking rates are reducing over time but there is still a long way to go to reach our target 
of  5% prevalence by 2025.  

l Smoking prevalence is still much higher in the more deprived areas of  the county. 

l Similar to the rest of  the UK, poor mental health is a significant burden of  illness in the 
population. In County Durham there are over 42,000 people registered with depression. 

Our older people
l  County Durham has an ageing population with over 105,000 people aged 

65+ and over 12,000 aged 85 and over.

l The number of  people aged 65 and over has increased by nearly 30% over 
the last couple of  decades, and now represents one fifth of  the county’s 
resident population – this increase is predicted to continue.

l Around 25,000 pensioners are living alone and there are similar numbers living in 
deprivation. Many older people experience both isolation and poverty. 

l Almost 5,000 people live with dementia. This is predicted to increase over the coming 
years.

Our assets
l  The county has many physical assets with a World Heritage Site, 70 

parks and open spaces, an area of  outstanding natural beauty covering 
the upper Teesdale and Weardale and 15km of  defined Heritage Coast. 
The attractiveness of  the local environment is reflected in the number of  
awards the county has received which includes 21 green flags for parks and 
green spaces.

l Partnership working in County Durham is very well established and there is a real 
commitment to improve and protect the health of  local residents.

l There are many examples of  community volunteering projects through which local 
people give their time to improve their local environment. The most high profile event is 
the Big Spring Clean which runs on an annual basis and saw 4,131 volunteers giving up 
5,417 combined hours to collect 4,123 bags of  rubbish.

Page 163



6 7

17.8%

2.7

Living with 
low income

35.7

£
14.2%

28.67.2

Estimated 
smoking 

prevalence *

Healthy Life
Expectancy

Starting Well

6.6%

8.44.2

Diagnosed 
with Asthma 
(all ages) *

0.9%

1.50.2

Diagnosed 
with dementia *

5070

0.0 4.5

Deliveries that 
are to teenage 

mothers

2.1% 23.9%
Children living 

in poverty
4.5 48.2

16.6%
Percentage of 

people reporting a 
long-term mental 
health problem *

6.3 28.4

2.4%

Unemployment

0.2 5.4

1316196

565
per 100,000

Admission 
to hospital
attributable
to alcohol

Ageing Well

Living Well

57.6%

36.8

GCSE 
Achievement
(5A*-C inc. 

Eng & Maths)

84.6

54.3%
Breastfeeding

initiation
30.6

27.6%
Breastfeeding 
at 6/8 weeks
59.0 11.3

91.6

35.09.8

Living with a
limiting long term
illness or disability

23.6% 

3.3%

5.10.6

Diagnosed with 
Chronic Obstructive 
Pulmonary Disease 

(COPD) *

36.2%
Children with 
excess weight 

(Year 6)
44.220.7

23.7%
Children with 
excess weight 

(reception)
32.316.2

19.4%

35.09.8

Older people 
living in deprivation

£

Pensioners 
living alone

33.0%

20.7 42.6

18.4%

37.90.0

Smoking 
at time of
delivery

59
years

A walk through the lifecourse
in County Durham

71

61
years

A Middle Layer Super Output Area (MSOA) is a small geographic area. They are part of a 
geographic hierarchy designed to improve the reporting of small area statistics in England and 
Wales. There are 66 MSOAs in County Durham with an average population of around 7,500.

Best Middle Super Output Area in County Durham
Worst Middle Super Output Area in County Durham

Note: *denotes GP registered population

Key

52

Some of the health issues are set out in the walk and how we compare across 
County Durham. Understanding these differences helps us to focus our attention 
to ensure our local people can ‘start well, live well and age well’.

P
age 164



8

How we have made a difference to health and wellbeing

While we have outlined many health and wellbeing challenges in the JSNA and walk through 
the lifecourse, we have also had some major achievements in improving health in recent 
years.  Reducing levels of  smoking is one such area and of  critical importance given the 
impact it has on people’s health, finances and those that live with them.

Reducing levels of smoking 

 

In refreshing our priorities based on the JSNA, I have reflected on where we have made real 
changes to local people’s health and wellbeing and what contributed to that change.

The impact of  smoking on our local residents has been a key challenge over many years. 
The current impact of  smoking in County Durham can be seen on page 10 (smoking in 
County Durham our challenges).

In the Taylor family, John and Sarah smoke and this has an impact on them and those 
around them. John and Sarah are two of  the 60,000 smokers in County Durham.

In years gone by, that number would have been much greater. Even since 2012, there has 
been a reduction of  22,000 smokers, more than the capacity of  an international cricket 
match at the Emirates Riverside Stadium.

Vision statement

A child born now in any part of  County Durham will reach adulthood 
breathing smoke free air, being free from tobacco addiction and 
living in a community where to smoke is unusual. We owe it to our 
children to make it happen.

0
2011

Statistically significantly worse than England
Not statistically significantly worse than England

England

County Durham

Smoking prevalence, County Durham and England, 2011- 2017

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

5

10

15

P
re

va
le

n
ce

 (
%

)

20

25

Smoking prevalence, 14.2%

Page 165



9

County Durham tobacco alliance partners deliver a 
comprehensive tobacco control package of  eight key strands:

Building 
infrastructure, 

skills and 
capacity, and 
influencing 

decision making 
through 

advocacy

Reducing 
exposure to 

tobacco smoke

Media 
and 

communications, 
social 

marketing 

Motivating and 
supporting 

smokers to stop

Tobacco 
regulation 

Reducing 
availability and 
supply e.g. on 
illicit tobacco

Research, 
monitoring and 

evaluation 

Reducing 
advertising and 

promotion

Working together we can support our local residents to give up smoking and to make their 
home and local environment smoke free.   

 

We have a clear ambition for where we want to be:

To achieve 5% smoking prevalence level by 2025.

This has not happened by chance alone but by the concerted effort and support of  local 
people wanting to make changes. We have taken a long term ambitious approach to 
reducing smoking levels in County Durham through the work of  our local tobacco alliance. 
The tobacco alliance is made up of  several organisations including the NHS, partners 
across Durham County Council, stop smoking service provider and the voluntary sector, and 
is championed by elected members.

Page 166



10 11

BANK

SURGERY

Smoking in County Durham

Our challenges
 

Low birth weight 
Cost to the economy

People in 
poverty

Smoking prevalence

Smoking at time 
of delivery

Hospital admissions
Mortality

ACCIDENT AND EMERGENCY

Disease

3% of newborns have 
a low birth weight

900 babies are born 
to mothers who smoke

One in ten 15 year olds smoke

Over 6,500 people set a quit date with 
the stop smoking service last year

20,000 people are registered with COPD
40,000 people are registered with asthma
500 new cases of lung cancer a year
75 new cases of oral cancer a year

Over half of these 
had quit at four weeks

Emergency admissions

Nearly 2,000 emergency hospital 
admissions for COPD last year

14% of adults smoke
People working in routine and manual jobs are more likely to smoke
Smoking and smoke related ill health are higher in more deprived areas

Around 1,000 people a year die from causes attributable to smoking
30% of adult deaths were smoking related
200 premature deaths from lung cancer

33% of households with a smoker fall below the poverty line
Nearly 7,000 households would be lifted out of poverty if money 
wasn’t spent on tobacco  

Over 7,000 hospital admissions are attributable to smoking
Nearly 300 children admitted to hospital for asthma

Young people Hospital admissions due to
smoking cost £35 per head

P
age 167



BANK

SURGERY

Making smoking history in County Durham

Tobacco
regulation

Helping smokers quit
Reducing exposure to 
secondhand smoke

Reducing the availability 
of tobacco products

Infastructure to deliver tobacco control

Research, monitoring and evaluation

ACCIDENT AND EMERGENCY

Smokefree families Protecting children from under age sales

Smokefree play parks Smokefree touchlines

Stoptober

Stamping down on illicit tobacco sales - 
detection dogs highlight dangers of 
illegal tobacco

Durham receives CLeaR award
for local tobacco control work

A new stop smoking service launched in 2016
Working with maternity services to reduce smoking in pregnancy
Wellness on wheels

Targeted wellbeing community asset based approach
Health Equity Audit 
Small area geography

Lead commissioner of Fresh, an award winning tobacco programme
Fire service safe and well visit referrals to the stop smoking service
A Smokefree NHS, leading the way

Media, communications and social marketing

Reducing the supply of illicit tobacco

Reducing tobacco promotion

Our achievements

12 13

P
age 168



14

 
 
 

Introducing the Taylor family

This is a fictional County Durham family – the Taylor family. However, they face some of  the 
key challenges that a lot of  our local communities face.

This is Sarah and John John is in a low paid job and 
worries about money especially 
with a new baby on the way.
Sarah is pregnant and has 
been drinking quite a lot to 
cope. They live in a privately 
rented house. John and Sarah 
are smokers.

Dan is Sarah’s son from a 
previous relationship. He was 
doing well at school but felt 
under pressure to do better 
and ended up dropping out of  
school. He has been staying 
at a friend’s house on the sofa 
and taking drugs to fit in with 
his friends.

Callum has a learning disability 
and Olivia is overweight. They 
both eat lots of  fast food and 
play video games for hours 
after school.

Their house is always cold and 
damp and George was very 
ill with the flu last winter. Both 
struggle to get around their 
home safely. Jean has just had 
a fall and can no longer care for 
George. They often feel isolated 
from their community.

And Dan, teenage son 
from a previous relationship

They have two younger 
children, Olivia and 
Callum

And grandparents, 
Jean and George

Page 169



15

And while the Taylor family may face challenges they also 
have some real positives in their lives:

l Strong sense of  family and support for one another.

l Callum receives good support in school.

l John enjoys his job and has some great friends. He coaches at the local football team.

l Sarah is very caring and spends time helping out at Olivia’s school.

l Jean until recently volunteered at the knit and natter group, teaching others to knit.

l Dan enjoys physical activity and runs on a regular basis.

l Olivia goes to arts and crafts at the children’s centre.

l Sarah and John provide a loving, safe home for Olivia and Callum and keep in touch 
with Dan.

l George enjoys researching his family history.

 

Supporting and working with the Taylor family to improve health and wellbeing in County 
Durham are a plethora of  organisations. The County Durham Partnership is made up of  key 
public, private and voluntary sector organisations that work together to improve the quality 
of  life for the people of  County Durham. The County Durham Partnership is made up of  
five thematic groups, altogether wealthier, altogether better for children and young people, 
altogether healthier, altogether safer and altogether greener. These groups work collectively 
in a range of  partnerships including the County Durham Health and Wellbeing Board, the 
Safer Durham Partnership, County Durham Children and Families Partnership and the Area 
Action Partnerships. Improving the public’s health can only happen by working with other 
partnerships in County Durham which are a key asset.

Page 170



16 17

The JSNA has helped 
us to draw out some key 
challenges faced by the 
Taylor family. Identifying 
these challenges have 
helped us to agree our 
priorities for action.

Seven 
strategic 

priorities to 
make a 

difference

The Taylors

Good jobs and 
places to live, 
learn and play

Every child to 
have the best 
start in life

Mental health 
at scale

High quality 
drug and alcohol 

services

Promoting 
positive 

behaviours

Healthy 
workforce

Better quality 
of life through 

integrated 
health and 

care services

The Taylors 2018

l  Around 1/3 of  dwellings are 
social or private rented.

l  Over 25,000 people are 
economically inactive due 
to long term sickness.

l  Over 30,000 households 
experience fuel poverty.

l  Over 600 16-18 year olds 
are not in education, 
employment or training.

l  Each year over 60 young 
people are admitted to 
hospital for substance 
misuse.

l  For every 100 routine and 
manual workers 21 are 
current smokers.

l  2 out of  3 adults are 
overweight or obese.

l  46 full classrooms of  4-5 
year olds with excess 
weight.

l  For every 1,000 school 
aged children there are 
44 with a known learning 
disability.

l  1 in 6 mums are smokers 
when they have their baby.

l  1 in 3 adults drink over 14 
units of  alcohol a week.

l  Around 19,000 people 
aged over 65 are lonely.

l  7 out of  10 eligible people 
aged over 65 received the 
flu vaccination.

P
age 171



Our priorities and actions  
 
It is my role to ensure that the priorities identified are turned into action. It is only by joined 
up action, similar to that I have described around smoking that the Taylor family will be able 
to have healthier lives. 

Key actions that will take place in the next year are set out below.

 

18

Action  l  All schools in County Durham working towards healthy  
  schools with emphasis on mental health.

 l  Provide dedicated support for women smoking while  
  pregnant and include support for their partners.

 l Introduce breastfeeding friendly venues.

 l To understand the health and wellbeing needs of  
  children with special educational needs and disability.

Every child to 
have the best 
start in life

Good jobs 
and places to live, 

learn and play

Action  l  To develop health standards for private landlords to  
  implement.

 l  Older people to have support to ensure their homes are  
  warm and safe and not at risk of  fuel poverty.

 l  Set out a plan to restrict the increase in take-away food  
  premises.

Action  l Support small businesses to take action about mental  
   health, and train staff  to become mental health first  
    aiders.

  l  Get involved in time to change to reduce stigma and  
   discrimination due to mental health.
 

Mental 
health 

at scale

Page 172



19

Action  l Introduce the Active 30 to help children to become   
  more active.

 l Reducing exposure to second hand smoke.

 l Increase awareness about the risks of  alcohol.

Promoting 
positive 

behaviours

Action  l To support people needing help with our new drug   
   and alcohol service.

  l  To work with families to help them with drug and   
   alcohol issues.

  l  Promote awareness about sensible levels of  alcohol  
   intake. 

High quality 
drug and alcohol 

services

Action  l Support organisations to promote the wellbeing of    
   their staff.

  l  To reach more organisations with our Better Health at  
   Work award.

  l  To support a range of  marketing campaigns to   
   promote health and wellbeing.

Healthy 
workforce

Action  l To encourage people to have the flu vaccination.

  l  To work with health and social care organisations to  
   integrate services to improve quality of  life.

  l  Support people to get involved in local social and   
   physical activities to reduce social isolation.

Better quality 
of life through 

integrated health 
and care 
services

Page 173



20

What will this mean for the Taylor family?

 
Both have stopped smoking with the 
help of  the local stop smoking service 
and encouragement from their midwife.  
Their baby is doing well in their smoke 
free home and Sarah is attending a 
breastfeeding support group every 
week. They support others trying to 
become healthier as well as having 
more disposable income. Sarah 
receives support for alcohol use at a 
local children’s centre. At work, John 
has become a mental health first aider.

Dan is accessing services for his 
substance misuse. His mental health 
has improved and he is an advocate for 
Stamp It Out a local community group.

Dan has been helped to find a flat. He 
volunteers at a local leisure centre and is 
working towards his lifeguard certificate.

They now live in a smoke free home.  
They are eating more home cooked 
meals.

They go swimming once a week at 
their local leisure centre where Dan 
volunteers.

Jean and George are now better 
prepared for winter weather. They have 
both had their free flu immunisation 
and receive help to improve the energy 
efficiency in their home. With support 
from carers, Jean is back at her knit 
and natter class and George is taking 
an IT class at the local library.

Dan

Olivia and Callum

Jean and George

Sarah and John

Page 174



21

Develop the use of assets within the Joint Strategic Needs Assessment1

Continue with the key ambition of 5% smoking levels by 20252

Implement the actions for each priority, working with partners across County Durham3

Good jobs and 
places to live, 
learn and play

Every child to 
have the best 
start in life

High quality 
drug and alcohol 

services

Mental health 
at scale

Promoting 
positive 

behaviours

Better quality 
of life through 

integrated 
health and care 

services

Healthy 
workforce

Recommendations
 

Page 175



44364 AHS

Please ask us if you would like this document
summarised in another language or format. 

Braille Audio Large print

Arabic Chinese Urdu

Polish Punjabi Spanish

Bengali Hindi German

French Turkish Malay

polski Español

Deutsch  
Français  Türkçe  Melayu  

publichealth@durham.gov.uk
03000 267 660

Page 176


	Agenda
	2 Minutes of the meeting held on Wednesday 12 September 2018
	4 Mainstream Primary and Secondary Formula Funding 2019-20 and Transfer to High Needs Block - Joint Report of Corporate Director of Children and Young People's Services and Corporate Director of Resources [Key Decision: CORP/R/18/06]
	4 Appendix 2
	4 Appendix 3
	4 Appendix 4

	5 Durham History Centre Update - Report of Director of Transformation and Partnerships
	6 County Durham Partnership Update - Report of Director of Transformation and Partnerships
	7 Council Activity Update - Report of Director of Transformation and Partnerships
	8 Draft Children and Young People's Strategy - Joint Report of Corporate Director of Children and Young People's Services and Director of Transformation and Partnerships
	8 Cabinet report Appendix 2 - Draft CYPS
	8 Cabinet report - Appendix 3 - CYPS EIA screening

	9 Selective Licensing in County Durham - Report of Corporate Director of Regeneration and Local Services
	10 Director of Public Health Annual Report - Joint Report of Corporate Director of Adult and Health Services and Director of Public Health, County Durham
	10. 44364 AHS Public Health Annual Report




